TOWN OF WINCHESTER

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
Regular Meeting Agenda
June 05, 2023, 7:00PM
P. Francis Hicks Room
Streamed live on YouTube and Channel 194

FLED
CLERK'S OFFICE
CALL TO ORDER (Tum your cell phones off)
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE JUN -2 2083
AGENDA REVIEW
TOWN CLERK OF WINCHESTER
APPROVAL OF MINUTES WINSTED, CT

A) Minutes of Regular Meeting on May 15, 2023

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS
The Board of Selectmen welcomes public comments, speakers will be limited to three (3)
minutes or less and may speak only once. Please give your name and address.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT

CORRESPONDENCE

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A) Consider and possibly act on matters related to revising the FY2024 budget and
submitting a revised draft to the Town Meeting.

NEW BUSINESS

A) Discussion on the FY2022 Town audit (King, King & Assc.).

B) 23-41 Consideration and approval of the Neighborhood Assistance Act Tax Credit
Program for American Mural Project (AMP).

C) Discussion on the State Department of Education’s study regarding the funding of the
Gilbert School (Selectman Sedlack).

D) 23-42 Consider and possibly act on the interim tax collection plan (Town Manager
Kelly).

E) 23-43 Refunds as recommended by Collector of Revenues (Town Manager Kelly)

F) 23-44 Proposed Line-Item Transfer (Town Manager Kelly).

G) 23-45 Proposed Line-Item Transfer (Town Manager Kelly).

H) 23-46 Proposed Line-Item Transfer (Town Manager Kelly).

I) 23-47 Proposed Line-Item Transfer (Town Manager Kelly).

J) 23-48 Proposed Line-Item Transfer (Town Manager Kelly).




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

TOWN OF WINCHESTER

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
Regular Meeting Agenda
May 01, 2023, 7:00PM
P. Francis Hicks Room
Streamed live on YouTube and Channel 194

SELECTMEN’S COMMENTS AND REPORTS

EXECUTIVE SESSION (to include Town Manager Kelly) for
A) Discussion on possible sale of Town-owned land.
B) Discussion on strategy and negotiations of contracts

POST-EXECUTIVE SESSION BUSINESS
A) Consider and possibly act on referring Town-owned parcels to the Planning & Zoning
Commission for an 8-24 referral and to the Town’s real estate agent for listing on the
market.
B) Consider and possibly act on any contracts as discussed in Executive Session.

CITIZENS’COMMENTS
The Board of Selectmen welcomes public comments, speakers will be limited to three (3)
minutes or less and may speak only once. Please give your name and address

ADJOURNMENT




Town of Winchester

Board of Selectmen
Regular Meeting
Monday May 15, 2023

ltem 1 Call to Order
Meeting called to order by Mayor Todd Arcelaschi at 7:00pm

Attending Members Todd Arcelaschi (Mayor) Jonathan Morhardt (Selectman)
Candy Perez (Selectwoman) Jack Bourque (Selectman)
Candace Bouchard (Selectwoman) Linda Groppo (Selectwoman)
Steve Sedlack (Selectman)

Staff Members Josh Kelly (Town Manager)
Ann Marie Rheault (Finance Director)

Glenn Albanesius (Town Clerk)

ltem 2 Pledge of Allegiance  The Pledge was recited by all

Item 3 Agenda Review - No Changes

ltem 4 Approval of Minutes
* Minutes of Special Meeting on May 1, 2023

Motion - Sel. Bouchard / Second - Sel. Morhardt
Vote to accept minutes - Unanimous (7 - 0)

* Minutes of Regular Meeting on May 1, 2023
Motion - Sel. Groppo / Second - Sel. Bourque
Vote to accept minutes - Unanimous (7 - 0)

ltem 5 Citizens Comments - The following people addressed the Board

* Stephen Kosinski
* Candy Perez

ltem 6 Town Manager's Report - Josh Kelly reported to the Board on the following topics. . .

* A Special Town Meeting will be held at 6pm on June 5 at the Hicks Room in Town Hall to approve
the sale of Town-Owned property at 201 Pratt Street (formerly Batcheller School) and a home at
17 Front Street.

* Two of the enterprises that took advantage of the Towns "Forgivable Loans for Start up Businesses"
are edging closer to opening. The new Ax Throwing venture located next to the Little Red Barn
Brewery has targeted July 4th for its opening. A new bakery has signed a lease at 450 Main Street
and plans to open within the next several months.




* Frontier has begun to connect Winsted homes to it's new fiber optic cable. Feedback regarding the
service has been positive.

* The Town is in the process of submitting an application for CT COT's Connectivity Grant program.

* A survey, targeting Main Street parking and safety has been developed and all are encouraged to
complete the questionnaire found on the Town website.

* Several new hires have started their new Town of Winchester careers. Linda Valez joined the
Assessors team while Geoff Green and Shane Whynott have filled openings in the Land Use
Department.

Finance Directors Report
ltem 7 * Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault reviewed current General Fund, Cash Flow and CIP data....

* An updated Solar Credit spreadsheet was submitted.
* A brief mention was made about a possible rebate to Water and Sewer users. Consideration of this
action is dependent on future financial reporting.

ltem 8 Correspondence
* Jack Bourque spoke about the Soldiers Monument informative letter submitted to the BOS for review.

* Steve Sedlack asked the Board to add a review of the State Bd of Educations letter to the Town
regarding Gilbert School funding to the next Selectman Meeting agenda.

ltem 9 Boards and Commissions - Sel. Sediack introduced the following actions.

1) Brad Burcorff (R) has submitted a written Application for Consideration as a member of the
Board of Recreation with a term to expire 4/2028.
2) George Closson (D) is submitted for Re-Appointment as a Member of the Water & Sewer
Commission with a term expiration of 06/28
Motion - Sel. Sedlack / Second - Sel. Bouchard
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
3) Joseph Lemelin (U) is submitted for Re-Appointment as a Member of the Water & Sewer
Commission with a term expiration of 06/28
Motion - Sel. Sedlack / Second - Sel. Bourque
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
* A notice of resignation was received via E-mail and accepted from the following volunteer.
Jamie Duffy (R) from the Recreation Board
Jamie's volunteer time and service to the Town is acknowledged with deepest gratitude.
* The following groups have position openings. Interested candidates are encouraged to apply!
Arch. Review Committee - 1 Permanent Seats and 2 Alternate Seats
Board of Assessment Appeals - 1 Alternate Seat
Economic Development Commission - 2 Alternate Seats
Laurel City Commission - 5 Permanent Seats
Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Commission - 3 Permanent Seats
Recreation Board - 2 Permanent Seats
Soldiers Monument - 1 Permanent Seat
Zoning Board of Appeals - 2 Alternate Seats



ltem 10 Unfinished Business
A) Consider and Possibly Act on on the establishment of Public Comment at the Board of Selectmen

meetings.
* Mayor Arcelaschi commented briefly on the topic of Public Comment and closed by asking the
Board if anyone wanted to weigh in. No discussion ensued and no further action was taken.

ltem 11 New Business -
A) 23-29 Consider and Possibly Act on the granting of a Driveway Variance at 349 W.Wakefield Blvd.

Public Works Director Jim Rollins gave a brief history of the property and ended by recommending
the Board grant the variance.
Motion Statement - "] move that the Board of Selectmen grant a Driveway Variance to Kenneth and
Vickie Hawkins for 349 W. Wakefield Blvd."
Motion - Sel. Bouchard / Second - Sel. Perez
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
B) 23-30 Refunds as recommended by the Collector of Revenue
Motion Statement - " | move that the Board of Selectmen authorize the refunds recommended by
the Collector of Revenue in the amount of $3,845.25."
Motion - Sel. Bouchard / Second - Sel. Perez
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
C) 23-31 Proposed Line item Transfer
Motion Statement -" | move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer of $1850.00
from (211-811-0000) Training and Education, $500.00 (211-826-0000) Maintenance of Equipment,
$900.00 (211-829-0000) Maintenance of Uniforms, and $1200.00 (211-832-0000) Contracted
Labor to (211-807-0000) Telephone in the amount of $400.00, 211-822-0000) Electricity in the
amount of $2200.00, (211-823-0000) Heating Fuel in the amount of $1600.00 and (211-831-0000)
Contracted Services in the amount of $250.00."
Motion - Sel. Sedlack / Second - Sel. Morhardt
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
D) 23-32 Municipal Suspense Tax List
Motion Statement - " | move that the Board of Selectmen approve the Town of Winchester Suspense
List."
Motion - Sel. Perez / Second - Sel. Bouchard
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
E) 23-33 Consider and Possibly Act on the Appointment of a Town Auditor
Motion Statement - "l move that the Board of Selectmen authorize the Town Manager to sign the
letter of engagement with King, King & Associates, for the terms described in correspondence
received May 11, 2023 to complete the 2022-2023 audit.
Motion - Sel. Bourgue / Second - Sel. Sedlack
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
F) Consider and Possibly act on referring Town owned parcels to the Planning & Zoning Commission
for an 8-24 referral and to the Town's Real Estate Agent for listing on the market.



G) 23-34 Proposed Line Item Transfer
Motion Statement - "I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer of $20,000 .00
from (117-191-0000) Administrative Assistant, $2550.00 (117-197-0000) Fringe Benefits-Medical
Benefits, to $15,300.00 (117-193-0001) Temp Help, $7000.00 (117-187-0000) Overtime and
$250.00 (117-808-0000) Postage."
Motion - Sel. Perez / Second - Sel. Groppo
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
H) 23-35 Proposed Line Item Transfer
Motion Statement - "I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer of $400.00
(120-809-0000) Restoration of Books to $10.00 (120-809-0001) Maintenance of Books and Maps,
$350.00 (120-811-0000) Training and Education, $40.00 (120-828-0002) Indexing System."
Motion - Sel. Bourque / Second - Sel. Bouchard
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
| ) 23-36 Proposed Line ltem Transfer
Motion Statement - "I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer of $100,000
from (210-192-0000) Labor, Skilled and Professional, $6000.00(210-197-0011) Overtime-Drug
Investigations, $18,000 (210-192-0014) Training Activities, $1500.00 from (210-811-0002) Fire
Range Repairs, and $200 (210-811-0003) Emergency Response Team to $50,000.00
(210-192-0010) Holiday Pay, $74,000.00 (210-197-000) Overtime, $1000.00 (210-807-0000)
Telephone and $200.00 (210-814-0000) Membership, Dues and Subcriptions."
Motion - Sel. Perez / Second - Sel. Sedlack
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
J) 23-37 Proposed Line Item Transfer
Motion Statement - "I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer of $300.00
from (214-826-0000) Maintenance of Equipment, $750 (214-826-0002) Communications
Equipment, $750.00 (214-827-0000) Maintenance of Structures to $1600.00 (217-807-0000)
Telephone, $100.00 (214-822-0000) Electricity and $100.00 (214-823-000) Heating Oil."
Motion - Sel. Morhardt / Second - Sel. Groppo
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
K) 23-38 Proposed Line Item Transfer
Motion Statement - "I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer of $300.00
from (216-846-0000) Tires to $300.00 (216-855-0000) Dog Disposal Fees."
Motion - Sel. Groppo / Second - Sel. Morhardt
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
L) 23-39 proposed Line Item Transfer
Motion Statement - "I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer of
(- $11730.34) from (311-194-0000) General Labor, (-1085.41) (311-194-0000) General Labor
(-730.00) (313-827-0000) Maintenance of Structures to $11,730.34 (313-194-0000) General Labor,
$1085.14 (313-197-0000) Overtime and $730.00 (313-823-0000) Heating Fuel."
Motion - Sel. Perez / Second - Sel. Morhardt
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
Motion - Sel. Perez / Second - Sel. Morhardt



[tem 12

Item 13

ftem 14

Item 15

A mid-meeting Motion was offered at the suggestion of Public Works Director Jim Rollins
Motion Statement - "I move that the Board of Selectmen add New Business agenda ltem (M) as
requested by Jim Rollins the Public Works Director."
Motion - Sel. Perez / Second - Sel. Morhardt
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
Motion Statement - "l move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer of
$10,000.00 from (311-859-0000) Contracted Services to $10,000.00 (311-826-0000) Maintenance
of Equipment.”
Motion - Sel. Perez / Second - Sel. Bouchard
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)

Executive Session -

A) Concerning the possible Sale of Town-Owned land

B) Discussion on Strategy and Negotiations of Contracts
Motion Statement - "Motion to enter Executive Session to discuss the Sale of Town-Owned land
and Strategy and Negotiations of Contracts, taking the Town Manager to be part of the meeting at
at 7:58pm.

Motion - Sel. Morhardt / Second - Sel. Sedlack
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)
The Board returned from Executive Session at 9:37pm with no action taken.

Citizens Comments - None

Selectmen’s Comments and Reports -

* Sel. Groppo reminded everyone of the upcoming 89th Annual Laurel Festival activities

* Sel. Perez commented on the new website shortcomings and asked for corrective action

* Sel. Bourque reviewed upcoming Memorial Day events

* Mayor Arcelaschi reminded Voters and Property Owners that the Annual Town Budget referendum
will be held on May 27th at Pearson School from 8am to 8pm.

Adjournment
* Motion - Sel. Sedlack / Second - Sel. Morhardt

To adjourn the meeting at 9:45pm
Vote to approve - Unanimous (7 - 0)

ATTEST:

Glenn Albanesius, Town Clerk
These Minutes are subject to formal approval at the next scheduled meeting. Any amendments, corrections or revisions

will be noted in the next Meeting Minutes.



TOWN OF WINCHESTER - CITY OF WINSTED
Town Hall — 338 Main Street
WINSTED, CONNECTICUT 06098

TO: Board of Selectmen
FROM: Josh Kelly, Town Manager
SUBJECT: Manager’s Report
MEETING DATE: June 5, 2023

Below you will find a list of updates that highlight activities occurring around town
since the Board last met and some reminders of activities that occurred in the prior
month or that are coming soon. If you have any questions about these items or items
that do not appear on this list, please email me at townmanager@townofwinchester.org.

¢ 508 Main Street: The Town is presently seeking quotes for different components of
building restoration to determine how next steps may be feasible.

e Budget: The initial budget vote failed. A Special Board of Selectmen meeting was
held last week to discuss reductions to be made to the budget before it is put
forward for a second round of consideration.

o Communities Challenge Grant: The state has officially signed the contract with the
Town to award this funding. The five Town-focused subprojects from our
Communities Challenge Grant must begin their work before August. Small focus
groups will be created to move these projects forward.

o Economic Development: Papa’s Market has officially opened at the former Hunny
Bunns site; the expansion of the Little Red Barn Brewery and the axe-throwing
business both remain in development and are set to open in the near future. Home &
Cake, a bakery and home goods store, is set to open in the near future. The Town is
currently seeking proposals for a residential development on the site of
Mountainside Drive, off Wallens Hill. Work continues to grow the grand list and
attract more large businesses and other forms of development to town.

o Fiber Optic Internet: In their most recent communication with the Town Manager’s
Office, Frontier said that the majority of the Town has now had fiber optic cable
installed to it. Connections have begun to be made.

o Grants: The Town of Winchester has been notified that all seven of its applications
for FY 2024 Congressionally-Directed Spending have been forwarded to the US
Senate Appropriations Committee. This includes:

o $1,980,000 for the construction of an addition on the Elm Street Fire House.
o $96,000 for the digitalization of land use records in Town Hall.

o $1,960,000 for improvements to the sewer plant.

o $640,000 for an extension of the sewer line down Rowley Street.



o $952,000 for improvements to 44 Elm Street.
o $1,860,000 for improvements to Tatros Pond Park area, including culvert and
dam improvements.

o $2,000,000 for the completion of Sue Grossman Greenway in Winsted.

o TOTAL: $9,488,000
Last year all items from Winchester that went in front of the appropriations
committee were funded, so we have reason to be optimistic about this forward
progress. A special thank you to US Senators Chris Murphy and Richard Blumenthal
for their help in moving these funding requests forward. Additionally, the Town is
working to apply for up to $800,000 as part of a Connectivity Grant being offered by
the State DOT.
Historic District: The Director of Economic Development and I met with
representatives from the State, Preservation CT, and the prospective new owner of
one of the major mill buildings in the downtown area to discuss the possibility of
creating a small industrial-focused historic district on the southern side of Main
Street, which would allow the building owners in that area to take advantage of
historic tax credits, making development at those sites more feasible. A grant is
being sought to cover costs related with creating such a historic district.
Human Resources: In May, all staff reporting to me completed a self-evaluation. In
June, I will complete an evaluation of all staff. If the Board of Selectmen is interested
in hearing more about this process or specifics surrounding any given evaluation,
please let me know.
Main Street Parking & Safety Survey: In an effort to be proactive and be more
prepared for future grants, the Town is conducting a survey to gauge resident
sentiment on Main Street parking and safety along Main Street. All are encouraged
to take the survey, which can be found on our website at
https://www.townofwinchester.org/subpages/community-surveys. =~ The survey
closes soon, please make sure you take it before the deadline!
Personnel: The Town is currently working through the hiring process for a new
Purchasing Agent.
Realtors’ Association: I attended the annual Local Leadership meeting held by the
regional Realtors’ Association in May; I used the opportunity to speak about
Winchester, highlighting the investments being made in town and the current
opportunities we have surrounding the sale of small Town-owned parcels and the
RFP process for Mountainside Drive.
Unions: Police Union negotiations are set to begin soon; we are working to establish
dates for negotiating sessions.
Winchester Wire: The spring edition of the Winchester Wire was sent to residents in
mid-May.

Here are a few upcoming events to mark on your calendars:

e Monday, June 12, 2023 (7pm): Town Budget Meeting.
e Monday, June 19, 2023: Juneteenth (Town offices closed).



Tuesday, June 20, 2023 (7pm): Regular Board of Selectmen meeting.

Tuesday, June 27, 2023: Recommended date for the second budget referendum.
Monday, July 3, 2023 (7pm): Regular Board of Selectmen meeting.

Tuesday, July 4, 2023: Independence Day (Town offices closed).

Monday, July 17, 2023 (7pm): Regular Board of Selectmen meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Joshua Steele Kelly
Town Manager & CEO



Boards & Commissions

(STEP | FOR NEW APPOINTMENTS - TO BE RECOGNIZED AT TONIGHT'S MEETING)

1 CONSIDERATION

Date

Name

Board/Commission

Party

Permanent/

Alternate

Term
Ends

NOMINATIONS
(STEP 2 FOR NEW APPOINTMENTS - TO BE VOTED INTO NOMINATION AT TONIGHTS MEETING)
Date Name Board/Commission Party Permanent/ Term
Alternate Ends
05/15/2023 Bradley Burcoff Recreation Board R Member 04/2028
(Rplc. A.
Warner)

APPOINTMENTS

(FINAL STEP FOR NEW APPOINTMENTS - TO BE VOTED ON FOR APPOINTMENT AT TONIGHTS MEETING)

Date Name Board/Commission Party Permanent/ Term
Alternate Ends
RE-APPOINTMENT
(TO BE VOTED ON FOR RE-APPOINTMENT AT TONIGHTS MEETING)
Date Name Board/Commission Party Permanent/ Term
Alternate Ends
RESIGNATION
(TO BE MENTIONED AT TONIGHTS MEETING)
Date Name Board/Commissi Party Permanent/ Term Ends
on Alternate

APPOINTMENTS BY OTHER. APPOINTING AUTHORITIES




Boards & Commissions

(TO BE MENTIONED AT TONIGHTS MEETING)

Date Name Board/Commission Party Permanent/ Term Appointing

Ends

Alternate Authority

CURRENT VACANCIES
(TO BE MENTIONED AT TONIGHTS MEETING)

Board/Commission Position Openings Meets On Appointing Authority
Architectural Review Committee Member & 1&2 As needed Planmpg .and Zoning
Alternate Alternates Commission
Board of Assessment Appeals Alternate 1 TBD March/September  Board of Selectmen
Member
E icD | t
conor.m(.: evelopmen il o 2 Alternates 1st & 3rd Board of Selectmen
Commission Alternate
Laurel City Commission Regular 5 TBD January-June Board of Selectmen
Inland Wetlands & Wat d
ran ; .e dnds ercouises Member 3 3rd Wednesday of each Board of Selectmen
Commission month
st
Recreation Board Member 2 1t Wednesday of each Board of Selectmen
month
nd
Soldiers Monument Member 1 2nd Thursday of each Board of Selectmen
month
th
Zoning Board of Appeals Member & 2 Alternates 4™ Tuesday of each Board of Selectmen

Alternate month


https://www.townofwinchester.org/architectural-review-committee
https://www.townofwinchester.org/laurel-city-commission

BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION REQUEST

No.:23-41 Date: June 05,2023
Topic: New Business (A)- Consideration and approval of American Mural Project’s
application for Neighborhood Assistance Act Tax Credit Program application (with

attachments)

From: Joshua Kelly, Town Manager

Background: As indicated in the attached correspondence, the American Mural Project
(AMP) has prepared a proposal for Neighborhood Assistance Act Tax Credit Program
that must be submitted through the municipality.

This proposal indicates an application requesting $24,500 for an exterior vestibule.

Requested Action: The Board of Selectmen should approve proposed application and
designate Town Manger Josh Kelly as the liaison for Neighborhood Assistance Act Tax
Credit Program from the American Mural Project.

Manager’s Recommendation: 1 recommend that the Board of Selectmen approve proposed
application and designation of Town Manager Josh Kelly as the liaison for the
Neighborhood Assistance Act (NAA) Tax Credit Program from the American Mural
Project.

Recommended Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen support the application and
designation of Town Manager Josh Kelly as the liaison for application for Neighborhood
Assistance Act Tax Credit Program from the America Mural Project .

Attachments
Communications
Applications.



Department of Revenue Services
State of Connecticut
(Rev. 02/23)

Municipality: Winchester

Form NAA-01

2023 Connecticut Neighborhood Assistance Act (NAA)
Program Proposal

This form must be completed and submitted to your municipality for approval. All items must be completed
with as much detail as possible. If additional space is needed, attach additional sheets. Please type or
print clearly. See attached instructions before completing. Do not submit this form directly to the
Department of Revenue Services.

Part | — General Information

Name of tax exempt organization/municipal agency:

American Mural Project

Address: g \whiting Street, PO Box 538, Winsted, CT 06098

Federal Employer Identification Number: 26-3993911

Program title: _Exterior Vestibule

Name of contact person: _Amy Wynn

Telephone number: (860) 379-3006

Email address: a@my@americanmuralproject.org

Total NAA funding requested ($250 minimum, $150,000 maximum): $ 24,500.00

Is your organization required to file federal Form 990 or 990EZ, Return of Organization Exempt
from Income Tax?

Yes X No

If Yes, attach a copy of the first page of your most recent return.

If No, attach a copy of your determination letter from the U.S. Treasury Department, Internal
Revenue Service.

Visit us at portal.ct.gov/DRS for more information.



Part Il — Program Information

Check the appropriate description of your program:

100% credit percentage
[X] _ Energy conservation; or
[ 1 Comprehensive college access loan forgiveness (see Conn. Gen. Stat. § 12-635(3)).

60% credit percentage
Job training/education for unemployed persons aged 50 or over,
Job training/education for persons with physical disabilities;
Program serving low-income persons;

Child care services,

Establishment of a child day care facility;

Open space acquisition fund; or

Other (specify):

PEPPRE

Description of program:
Construction of exterior vestibule for new main entryway.

Need for program:
All exterior doors to the facility are direct entrances to the exhibit, i.e. there is no transitional space between

the outside and the gallery space. Frequent use of these doors causes heat loss, stresses the cooling system, .
and wastes funds. For the new main exhibit entryway door on the southeast corner of the building, which will

be most frequently opened and closed, we seek to prevent loss of heating and cooling through the

construction of a transition space, or vestibule, for this entryway. This will save energy and money, and will
support our commitment to be responsible stewards of our limited natural resources.

Neighborhood area to be served:
AMP is in Winsted, CT and has a number of partnerships within the Winsted community and the NW CT

region. AMP serves Winsted and residents throughout Connecticut via its education programs (grades 3 -
college), as a pro-active neighbor interested in improving the area, as an employer, and as a destination that
drives the local and state economy through tourism and cultural enrichment. AMP served 4,200 people in 2022 -
and is ahead of projections to serve at least 6,500 in 2023.

Plan to implement the program:

Plans for the new entryway have been reviewed by engineers and have received approval by the town's
planning and zoning board. We have preliminary plans for the vestibule and have received a cost estimate.
The vestibule plan will next be reviewed by our engineers and, once adjustments have been made, will then be
submitted for planning and zoning to review. One final planning and zoning approval has been received, we
will get bids and incorporate this work into the construction, planned for April/May 2024.

Form NAA-01 (Rev. 02/23) _ ] ] Page 2 of 5
Visit us at portal.ct.gov/DRS for more information.



Timetable:

Program start date: 04/01/2024
MM - DD - YYYY

Program completion date: _11/30/2024
MM - DD - YYYY

Post-project audit due date:

MM -DD -YYYY

The program start date must not be more than two years prior to the program completion date.

Any program receiving $25,000 or more in NAA funding is required to provide a post-project audit,
prepared by a certified public accounting firm, to the municipality overseeing the program, no later
than three months after the program completion date.

Part lll — Financial Information

Program Budget:
Complete in full. Expenditures must equal or exceed total funding.

Sources of Revenue:

NAA funds requested $24,500.00

Other funding sources - itemized sources:

a) AMP donations and grants $15,700.00
b)
c)
d)

Total Funding: $40,200.00

Proposed Program Expenditures:

Direct operating expenses - itemized description:

a) _Materials $17,000.00
b) _Labor $17,500.00
c)
d)
Administrative expenses - itemized description:
a) _Construction Management $4,500.00
b) _Administration (Contracts, Finanances, NAA Admin) $1,200.00
c)
d)
Total Proposed Expenditures: $40,200.00
Form NAA-01 (Rev. 02/23) Page 3 of 5

Visit us at portal.ct.gov/DRS for more information.



Part IV — Municipal Information

To be completed by the municipal agency overseeing implementation of the program

Name of municipal agency overseeing implementation of the program:

Mailing address:

Name of municipal liaison:

Telephone number:
Fax number: _

Email address:

Post-Project Audit

Is a post-project audit required for this proposal?

[ ] Yes X1 No

If Yes, date post-project audit due:

Date

Form NAA-01 (Rev. 02/23) . . . Page 4 of 5
Visit us at portal.ct.gov/IDRS for more information.



2023 Connecticut Neighborhood Assistance Act (NAA)
Program Proposal
Instructions

Complete all items on Form NAA-01, 2023 Connecticut Neighborhood Assistance Act (NAA) Program Proposal.
Incomplete applications will not be accepted. For where to direct inquiries, see Additional Information below.

Part | —General Information

Enter the name of the tax exempt organization
or municipal agency, address, Federal Employer
Identification Number, and email address.

Program Title: Assign a unique program title to each
program for which your organization is making an
application.

Federal Form 990: Attach a copy of the first page of
your organization’s most recent federal Form 990 or
Form 990EZ. If your organization is not required to file
either Form 990 or Form 980EZ, attach a copy of the
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service.

Part Il —Program Information

Description of Program: Describe the program,
including information about how the program will
operate, its benefit to the community, how recipients
will be selected, and any measures used to determine
the program’s impact on the community.

Need for Program: Demonstrate a need for this
program. For example, provide relevant statistics.

Neighborhood Area to Be Served: Describe the
neighborhood or municipality this program will serve.

Plan to implement the program: Describe how
the program will operate. Identify other persons or
organizations involved in the administration of the
program.

Timetable: Indicate the starting and completion dates
of the program. The program completion date must not
be more than two years from the program start date.

Part lll —Financial Information

Each program proposal must include a program budget
that includes all sources of funding and all anticipated
expenditures. The information provided in the budget
may be used during a post-project audit.

Sources of Revenue: The budget must include the
requested NAA funding and any other anticipated
revenue sources.

NAA Funding Requested: Indicate the total amount
your organization is requesting for its program.

Form NAA-01 (Rev. 02/23)

This amount may not exceed the total proposed
expenditures. Please note that the minimum NAA
funding is $250, with a maximum funding of $150,000
per organization or agency per year.

Other Funding Sources: Provide a detailed
description(s) and the amount(s) of all funding sources.

Proposed Program Expenditures: The budget must
include a detailed description and the amount of all
direct operating and administrative expenditures.
Expenditures must equal or exceed total funding.

Direct Operating Expenses: Expenses include
materials, equipment, wages, salaries, tuition fees,
sub-contracting services, and any other expenses
needed to administer the program.

Part IV —Municipal Information

This part is to be completed by the municipal agency
overseeing implementation of the program.

Municipal Liaison: The municipality must designate
an individual to serve as a liaison with the Department
of Revenue Services (DRS) for all NAA matters.

Post-Project Audit: Any program receiving $25,000
or more in NAA funding is required to provide a
post-project audit, prepared by a certified public
accounting firm, to the municipality overseeing the
program, no later than three months after the program
completion date.

Additional Information

See the Guide to Connecticut Business Tax Credits
available on the DRS website at portal.ct.gov/DRS.
E-mail any questions to NAAProgram@ct.gov or call
860-297-5687, Monday through Friday, 8:30 a.m. to
4:30 p.m. for more information.
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Report to the Town of Winchester
From: Amy Wynn, Executive Director, American Mural Project
Re: Neighborhood Assistance Act Tax Credit Program, Projects 1,2 & 3

May 31, 2023

Although not required to provide a report at this level of funding, we submit the following for the record.
Project 1: Energy Efficient Doors

The American Mural Project (AMP) received $7,000 in corporate donations from Eversource through the
Neighborhood Assistance Tax Credit Program in 2021 for this project. There were two doors replaced on
the first platform level. Prior to the renovation, the two wall openings were covered with wood where
heat and air conditioning would leak, were inaccessible egresses and were eyesores. The replacement
doors have been installed and are energy efficient, allow light into the building, and one will be the
permanent entrance to the building upon additional renovations.

Project 2: Roof Repairs and Insulation

AMP received $20,000 in corporate donations from ConnectiCare, Northwest Community Bank, Salisbury
Bank & Trust, and Webster Bank through the Neighborhood Assistance Act Tax Credit Program in 2021
for this project. Specifically, this project addressed the roof over the wing on the west side of the
building, which was showing signs of disrepair including rot, deterioration and poor drainage. The roof
project is complete, eliminating leaks and increasing AMP’s energy efficiency. The project has allowed us
to move our program space from a small area downstairs to a larger, redesigned area on the second level
that includes a small kitchenette area and its own bathroom. The space is used for year-round offerings
that include summer programs, an after-school program throughout the academic year, and school field
trips, among others.

Project 3: Energy Efficient Lighting
AMP did not receive any Neighborhood Assistance Act Tax Credit Program funding for this project.



STATE OF CONNECTICUT
STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

To: Clerk of the Senate
Clerk of the House of Representatives

From: Charlene M. Russell-Tucker, Commissioner of Education < -
Date: May 8, 2023
Subject: Study of the Funding Process for the Gilbert School

Pursuant to Section 261 of Public Act 22-118, enclosed is the Study of the Funding
Process for the Gilbert School.

Please note that by copy of this memo, | am distributing copies of this study in
accordance with C.G.S. 11-4a.

If you have any questions, please contact Laura Stefon, Chief of Staff and Legislative
Liaison, at 860-713-6493.

CRT:kk

cc: Education Committee
Office of Legislative Research
State Library

Enclosure



4@ STATE OF CONNECTICUT
Eg‘év%)iﬂ DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Study of the Funding Process for the Gilbert School

. Introduction and Background

The State Department of Education (“Department” or “CSDE”) submits this report pursuant to Public Act
22-118, § 261, which requires the Department to conduct a study of the funding process for the Gilbert
School, an endowed academy approved pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes (“C.G.S.”) § 10-

34. The Act further requires the Department to submit, in accordance with C.G.S. § 11-4a, any
recommendations relating to the funding process for the Gilbert School to the joint standing committee
of the General Assembly having cognizance of matters relating to education.

The Gilbert School enrolls students in Grades 7-12 and has a total enrollment as of October 1, 2022, of
410 students of which 400 are from the Town of Winchester. The adopted budget for the 2022-23
school year was $8.3 million, not including federal COVID relief funding. Revenue to support the school’s
budget is derived from tuition charged to the Winchester Board of Education, a small cohort of
international boarding students, an award from the Gilbert Foundation, and other miscellaneous
sources. The overwhelming majority of the Academy’s revenue is from the tuition charged to the
Winchester Board of Education.

By way of background, C.G.S. § 10-34 governs endowed academies in Connecticut, authorizing the State
Board of Education (“SBE”) to “examine any incorporated or endowed high school or academy in this
state” and approve the school or academy “if it appears that such school or academy meets the
requirements of the State Board of Education for the approval of public high schools.” For any approved
endowed academy, the statute further requires “any town in which a high school is not maintained shall
pay the whole of the tuition fees of pupils attending such school or academy, except if it is a school
under ecclesiastical control.” There are currently three such schools in Connecticut: the Gilbert School,
Norwich Free Academy, and Woodstock Academy.

Pursuant to C.G.S. § 10-33, school districts that do not maintain a high school are required to designate
a high school approved by the SBE that students in the school district may attend. The school or schools
designated by the sending town that does not maintain a high school may be an endowed academy or a
traditional public school operated by another board of education. Under C.G.S. § 10-33, the sending
town is required to pay the tuition as determined by the receiving school district. The statute provides
no dollar limitation, or other methodology, as to the amount of tuition the designated high school may
charge. Similarly, the plain language of C.G.S. § 10-34 allows endowed academies to charge tuition,
without limitation, to school districts that do not maintain a high school and which send students to
such an academy. Given that both C.G.S. § 10-34, which relates to endowed academies in particular,
and C.G.S. § 10-33, which relates to designated high schools in general, contain a similar structure for
the payment of tuition by sending towns, it is instructive to examine both for purposes of the current
study regarding the Gilbert School, an endowed academy.

To that end, Section Il of this report includes a brief overview of some of the designated high school
arrangements in place in two Connecticut school districts, Pomfret and Woodstock. Collectively, these



two districts — neither of which maintains its own high school — send students to an endowed academy
and to traditional public high schools. Section lll examines a cooperative arrangement, authorized
under C.G.S. § 10-158a, between the Salem Board of Education, which does not maintain its own high
school, and the East Lyme Board of Education. As will be discussed in Section |ll, a notable element of
this arrangement is that it includes a specific methodology for the determination of tuition — a
circumstance that provides for some measure of stability and predictability for each of the parties to the
arrangement.

1. Review of Select Designated High School Arrangements

As noted at the outset, C.G.S. § 10-33 authorizes any local board of education that does not maintain its
own high school to designate a high school, or multiple high schools, for students to attend. The statute
requires the sending board of education to pay tuition to the receiving board of education, but it does
not specify a methodology for the calculation of that tuition or any parameters regarding the amount of
that tuition. To gain a better understanding of how these arrangements work in practice, the
Department consulted a selection of Superintendents in school districts that do not maintain their own
high school, including Woodstock and Pomfret.

The Woodstock Board of Education recognizes Woodstock Academy (“WA”), an endowed academy, as a
designated high school for purposes of C.G.S. § 10-33. The Woodstock Board of Education and WA have
a written agreement (“Woodstock Agreement”) in place that governs the terms and conditions of the
relationship, and an unsigned version of this Agreement is attached hereto as Appendix A. With regard
to the payment of tuition, the Woodstock Agreement addresses the issue of tuition for regular
education and special education services, but there is no specific methodology in place for determining
tuition on a prospective basis. In particular, Section 5 of the Woodstock Agreement (emphasis added)
provides as follows:

REGULAR EDUCATION TUITION PAYMENT: Regular education enrollment for budget purposes
for each prospective year will be the enrollment of the previous October 1. The regular
education tuition payment for each prospective fiscal year will be based on the total
enrollment of Woodstock students multiplied by the per student regular education tuition as
determined by The Academy’s budget for each prospective fiscal year. The Academy agrees to
establish two regular education tuition rates after consultation with the Board.

Thus, while the Woodstock Agreement contains certain general parameters of the designated high
school arrangement, including a section specific to tuition, there is no limitation on the amount of the
annual increase in tuition that WA may charge sending towns. The Woodstock Agreement includes an
addendum in which tuition for each year is specified in writing. In accordance with Section 5 of the
Woodstock Agreement, copied above, tuition in succeeding years is “determined by The Academy’s
budget for each prospective fiscal year.” The percentage amount of the increases in tuition can vary on
a year-to-year basis, which can have an obvious impact on the budgeting process of the Woodstock
Board.

The Department also contacted the Pomfret School District, which reported that, as a town without its
own high school, it had designated high school agreements in place with a number of entities, including
traditional public high schools operated by other boards of education as well as an endowed academy.
The Department examined the designated high school agreements that Pomfret had in place with the
Killingly and Putnam Boards of Education. Both are attached hereto for reference, as Appendix B and
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Appendix C, respectively. In the Killingly Agreement, Appendix B, Section 10 is entitled “Budget
Information” and describes the manner in which the amount of tuition is determined and
communicated, as set forth below:

Killingly shall deliver to Pomfret no later than March 15 of the preceding school year an
estimate of the per pupil tuition costs for regular and special education. Killingly will also share
with Pomfret any and all budget data requested for the calculation of the tuition rate. Killingly
recognizes that Pomfret must depend upon these estimates in preparing budgets for education
purposes, and therefore agrees that such estimates will be made in good faith.

In accordance with the above provision, Pomfret receives an estimate of the succeeding year’s tuition
costs by March 15 of a given year, and the contract explicitly recognizes the importance to Pomfret of
being able to rely on such estimates for budgeting purposes. The Pomfret-Killingly Agreement also
addresses special education costs in Section 8.

The agreement in place between the Pomfret and Putnam Boards of Education is similar. In particular,
Appendix C, Section 4b of the Putnam Agreement provides as follows:

Regular Education Tuition payment for each fiscal year will be based on the enrollment . ..
multiplied times the per student regular education tuition as determined by the Putnam Board
in collaboration with the Pomfret Board for that fiscal year.

Thus, in accordance with the terms of this provision, the tuition rate is determined collaboratively by the
Putnam and Pomfret Boards of Education. The agreement, however, does not include a methodology
for determining the rate of tuition to be charged to Pomfret as a sending board of education.

Finally, the Pomfret Board of Education shared an agreement in place between that board of education
and WA between 2013 and 2018 for purposes of using Woodstock Academy as a designated high school.
This document is attached hereto as Appendix D. Similar to the agreement described above involving
the Woodstock Board of Education, the agreement in place between the Pomfret Board of Education
and WA provides as follows with regard to the setting of tuition rates: “Regular Education Tuition
payment for each prospective fiscal year will be based on the enrollment [from the prior October 1]
multiplied times the per student regular education tuition as determined by [Woodstock Academy’s]
budget for each prospective fiscal year.” Appendix D, § 4b. Thus, in this situation, the tuition amount
chargeable to Pomfret is, in accordance with C.G.S. §§ 10-33 and 10-34, determined unilaterally by WA,
the endowed academy.

I, Cooperative Arrangement Pursuant to C.G.S. § 10-158a: Salem and East Lyme Boards of
Education

This Section explores the cooperative arrangement agreement in place between the East Lyme Board of
Education and the Salem Board of Education, which does not maintain its own high school. This
arrangement is notable for purposes of this study because the agreement in place between the parties
contains a specific methodology for the calculation of tuition to be assessed to Salem for educating that
school district’s students.

By way of background, C.G.S. § 10-158a authorizes boards of education to enter into written
agreements to provide a whole host of services on a cooperative basis, including, among other things,
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“school accommodations services, programs or activities, special education services.” Salem is a small
town in southeastern Connecticut that does not have its own high school.

Salem initially designated East Lyme High School as its high school of record in 1979, but in 1997 opted
to take the additional step of entering into a cooperative arrangement agreement with the East Lyme
Board of Education. The cooperative arrangement agreement in place between Salem and East Lyme is
attached hereto as Appendix E. As stated in that agreement, the 1997 cooperative arrangement
agreement was made in connection with a bonding process to increase the enrollment capacity of East
Lyme High School to accommodate Salem students. The agreement itself describes the history of this
relationship in greater detail, as set forth in Appendix E’s Preamble:

The term of the [initial] agreement was set at twenty years consistent with the bonding
timeline. The agreement was amended throughout the years to respond to the changes in the
educational landscape. The most recent change included the billing structure for the students
with special education needs. The revised structure is congruent with contemporary practices
of inclusion and differentiation. The premise for this revision is a mutual belief that both Salem
and East Lyme High students should have the same access to services and opportunities
provided by East Lyme High School regardless of their place of residence. Salem and East Lyme
have enjoyed a collaborative and productive working relationship between the leaders of the
district for many years.

Consistent with the provisions of C.G.S. § 10-158a3, the Salem and East Lyme Boards of Education devised
an agreement that allowed for a shared governance structure for the new entity. In addition, through
the cooperative arrangement agreement, the parties were able to devise contractual terms that were
uniquely suited to their particular circumstances, including a clear, predictable and mutually agreed
upon methodology for calculating tuition — both for regular education students and a separate
calculation for those receiving special education. These provisions are set forth in Section 3 of Appendix
E (pages 5-9) and is further articulated in Appendixes B and C* (pages 13-14) of the Cooperative
Arrangement agreement (which itself is Appendix E of this document).

With regard to regular education, Section 3.1 of the Agreement calculates a “Base tuition rate,” which is
based on East Lyme’s submission to the CSDE on Form ED001 relating to expenses per student related to
East Lyme High School for two school years prior, excluding items such as transportation, debt service,
special education, land and building costs. (Please note that the EDO01 has been replaced with an
electronic filing via the CSDE’s Education Financial System.) The calculation includes an inflation
adjustment factor for the most recent two-year period. Section 3.1 goes on to detail that the Base
tuition rate is calculated by East Lyme’s Superintendent, or a designee, in December of each school year
for the following school year, using the particular methodology outlined in detail of Appendix B of the
Agreement. Once the base rate tuition is calculated, it is included in each school district’s budgeting
process for the following year’s budget, and any overcharge or undercharge in actual per student
expenses is later reconciled using a process described in the Agreement. The Agreement also includes a
methodology for excess billing for special education students, as articulated in Sections 3.2, 3.5, and in
Appendix C of the Agreement.

1 These references to Appendixes B and C refer to appendixes in the Cooperative Agreement
itself, which appears here as Appendix E.



The cooperative arrangement in place between Salem and East Lyme is notable because it includes a
specific methodology for calculating tuition, which allows for advance planning on the part of both
parties to the agreement. For this reason, the CSDE considers this model to be a best practice and one
that other similar entities may wish to replicate.

v. Recommendation

In addition to a review of the various types of arrangements for the provision of educating students in
communities without a high school, the CSDE also met with representatives of the Gilbert School,
Winchester Public Schools, and the Town of Winchester to better understand the various perspectives
around the current arrangement for setting tuition for Winchester resident students attending the
Gilbert School. The main concern that arose, which is frankly a longstanding one and not unique to the
Gilbert School, is the lack of control Winchester has in determining the tuition rate and the
corresponding impact that has on the Winchester Public Schools and conversely the Town of
Winchester’s budget process. As a remedy to this concern, they strongly advocated for a legislative
change to the endowed academy statute that would require mediation and binding arbitration between
the endowed academies and the municipalities they serve when there is a stalemate over the setting of
the tuition rate.

The Department does not recommend a modification of the endowed academy statutes. Based on our
review of the various funding mechanisms for the endowed academies and other designated high
schools, the Department would recommend that the Winchester Board of Education and the Gilbert
School enter into a long-term legal arrangement that provides for a specific methodology for calculating
regular and special education tuition. This will allow for better budget planning for both parties and has
proven successful in the Salem/East Lyme relationship. The arrangement could also include a provision
for arbitration/mediation in instances where they were necessary to achieve agreement versus a
statutory change which mandates the requirement for all of the endowed academies. We believe a
long-term agreement would also resolve or at least mitigate the annual discord that arises when tuition
rates are set versus the proposed change in statute to require arbitration/mediation which would allow
the current situation to continue but just provide a specific mechanism for resolution.



Appendix A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE WOODSTOCK ACADEMY BOARD
OF TRUSTEES AND THE WOODSTOCK BOARD OF EDUCATION

This Agreement is made this day of , , between The Woodstock Academy Board of
Trustees (hereinafter referred to as "The Academy") and the Woodstock Board of Education (hereinafter
referred to as the "Board” or the "Woodstock Board™)) (collectively referred to as the "parties™).

Founded in 1801, The Woodstock Academy is a co-educational, non-selective, independent secondary school
serving students in grades nine through twelve, plus post-graduates. The Academy community takes great
pride in its comprehensive and diverse programs, opportunities for academic rigor and enrichment, long
history and traditions, as well as the natural beauty of its surroundings.

The Academy is governed by an independent, self-perpetuating Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees
is composed of Trustees of the Corporation, Trustees of the Community and Trustees of the Sending
Towns as outlined in its Manual of Governance. Trustees of the Sending Towns come from the Boards
who have a contract with The Academy for educational services. The Woodstock Academy’s bylaws
and charter, subject to change from time to time, permit the board of education of each sending town
with a contract to designate one trustee from the board. The Trustees of the Sending Towns are
recommended by their boards of education and proposed to The Woodstock Academy Nominating
Committee for election by the Board of Trustees. Trustees of the Sending Towns terms expire with
reorganization of their respective boards of education and provide public representation on The
Woodstock Academy Board of Trustees.

The Woodstock Academy is an independent school with a public purpose. As such, The Academy is
committed to its status as an independent school and dedicated to providing a superior secondary education
to our sending town and private tuition students.

The parties to this Agreement, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and stipulations set out
herein, agree to the following mutually acceptable terms and conditions:

1. ACADEMY DESIGNATION: As provided for in Section 10-33 of the Connecticut General Statutes,
the Board recognizes The Academy as a designated high school. This designation is not exclusive.
The Board maintains the right to designate additional schools as designated high schools for the
instruction of Woodstock students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12).

2. ACADEMY SERVICES: The Academy will furnish educational facilities, programs, and activities for
grades nine (9) through grade twelve (12) for high school students residing in the Town of
Woodstock, subject to all the requirements, privileges, restrictions and awards accorded to its
student body. Woodstock students shall be afforded all of the rights and privileges of public-school
students enrolled at The Academy, on the same terms and conditions of other publicly enrolled high
school students.

3. ENROLLMENT: The Board will provide an electronic copy of all the contact information for
eligible eighth grade students within 30 days of being requested by The Academy. The Board
shall notify The Academy by April 1 of each year of anon-binding, anticipated number of ninth
grade enrolleesforthe subsequent school year.

4. STUDENTS: Any students residing in the Town of Woodstock and recommended by the Board who
have not completed the prescribed program for high school graduation shall be entitled to all the
privileges and advantages of attendance at The Academy if, residency status has been verified in
advance by the Woodstock Board, in accordance with the policies and procedures of the
Woodstock Public Schools. In the event of any known changes in address of a Woodstock student,
The Academy shall promptly notify the Woodstock Superintendent of Schools of the student’s new
address. The Superintendent of the Woodstock Public Schools may at his/her discretion prohibit
the enrollment of any student who has attained the age of twenty-two (22) years, as permitted by
applicable law.

Upon termination of this contract, or any extension thereof, all Woodstock students then
enrolled at The Academy shall be provided the option of completing their high school
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9.

education at The Academy up to, and including, graduation at the expense of the Woodstock
Board.

REGULAR EDUCATION TUITION PAYMENT: Regular education enrollment for budget purposes
for each prospective year will be the enrollment of the previous October 1. The regular education
tuition payment for each prospective fiscal year will be based on the total enroliment of Woodstock
students multiplied by the per student regular education tuition as determined by The Academy’s
budget for each prospective fiscal year. The Academy agrees to establish two regular education
tuition rates after consultation with the Board.

SPECIAL EDUCATION TUITION AND SERVICES: The Academy provides a wide range of special
education services to its students and The Academy will continue to expand these services when
required by increased special education student load and/or need. The Woodstock Board will be
responsible for reimbursing The Academy for the actual costs of special education programs for
Woodstock students who require special education services, consistent with the requirements of the
student’s Individual Education Program (IEP), in addition to the regular education tuition for
each student. The cost of educating Woodstock students who require special services will be
computed individually for each student in a timely manner in order that the Woodstock Board may
apply for partial state reimbursement as permitted by Connecticut statutes. Such cost shall be
determined using an agreed upon method of dividing the prior year special services enrollment into
the following year Academy budget for special services to derive a daily tuition rate per student.
Prior to October 1 of each year and following a determination by a Planning and Placement Team
(PPT) meeting, if it is determined that a student will be assigned to spend fifty (50) percent or more
of the student’s time in either a resource room or self-contained environment, the regular education
tuition cost shall be waived for that school year and tuition costs shall be based on special education
services only. Any increase or decrease of assigned time following October 1 of each year shall result
only in adjustments in special education costs.

The Academy agrees to comply with the provisions of the Individual with Disabilities Education Act
(IDEA) and related state laws or regulations as they relate to enrolled resident students from
Woodstock. Woodstock shall remain the local education agency (as such term is understood under
the IDEA) for any student that is a resident Woodstock. The Academy agrees to accept all
Woodstock students requiring special education services based on the PPT decisions and through
the PPT process which cooperatively develops IEPs for such students. The parties acknowledge,
however, that The Academy may not be able to appropriately educate certain Woodstock students
who require extensive and/or specialized education, or related services, and the Woodstock Board
shall be responsible for providing an education for these students at the sole expense of the
Woodstock Board. Determination of such placement shall be made by a legally constituted PPT with
the opportunity for input from Academy staff members as needed and the Woodstock Director of
Student Services.

EXPULSION: Woodstock students who are expelled by The Academy, based on the students’
actions and in accordance with applicable law, shall continue to be counted as part of the
Woodstock October 1 student census. The cost of providing any alternative education to expelled
students shall be the responsibility of The Academy, subject to the provisions of the paragraph
regarding special education students. In providing alternative education to Woodstock students,
The Academy will be guided by the regulations concerning homebound tutoring. In the event that a
student attempts to withdraw after a disciplinary infraction, The Academy shall notify the
Woodstock Superintendent of the withdrawal and reasons therefor.

TRANSPORTATION: The Woodstock Board shall be responsible for providing transportation of its
students to and from The Academy on a daily basis.

INVOICES: The Academy will invoice the Woodstock Board for the tuition costs of all students
residing in the Town of Woodstock on a quarterly basis, with payments due August 30, November
30, February 28, and April 30. In the event the Woodstock Board shall fail to make payments to
The Academy as required herein, the Woodstock Board shall be liable to The Academy, in addition
to the installment due, for interest at the rate of three-hundredths of one percent (0.03%) per day
for each day that the payment is late following the due date. Inthe event of a failure to make a timely
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

payment, there shall be an initial 30-day cure period.

TERM: This Agreement shall remain in term for a period of three (3) years commencing on the date
of signing and will automatically be extended for a period of three (3) years under the same terms
and conditions of this Agreement unless either party provides written notice of their intent not to
renew this Agreement at least one hundred and eighty (180) days prior to the expiration of the
Agreement. The parties understand and agree that, throughout the term of this Agreement, and
upon request of either party, the Board and The Academy will engage in good faith efforts to address
and resolve any issues or concerns related to this Agreement.

INDEMNITY: The Academy agrees to indemnify the Woodstock Board for any and all claims
concerning educational services provided by The Academy to Woodstock students and all claims
concerning the actions of The Academy employees.

LIABILITY INSURANCE: The Academy shall provide to the Woodstock Board a Certificate of
Liability Insurance for the premises at which educational services are being provided pursuant
to this Agreement, in the amount of $1,000,000 per accident and $500,000 property damage.
It is understood that said liability insurance shall be only for the premises of The Academy, or
such other locations at which educational services are being provided hereunder. The Academy
agrees to name the Woodstock Board as an additional insured on such policy.

RECORD ACCESS: In accordance with applicable law, it is agreed and understood that the
Woodstock Board, through its Superintendent, may request from and The Academy will provide,
such information or permit the inspection of such records as may be necessary to verify or confirm
any information submitted by or to the Woodstock Board in accordance with this Agreement,
including all charges due. All individual student records acquired by The Academy will be released
and available to the Woodstock Board at reasonable times. If the Woodstock Board provides The
Academy with a student’s cumulative folder, it shall be returned to the Woodstock Board
within one year of the student graduating or otherwise ceasing to attend the Academy.

EXCLUSIVE TERMS: This written Agreement contains the sole and entire Agreement between the
parties and supersedes any and all other contracts between them. The parties acknowledge and
agree that neither of them has made any representation with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement or any representation including the execution and delivery hereof except such
representation as specifically set forth herein, and each party acknowledges that each has relied on
its own that any statements or representations that may have heretofore been made by either of
them to the other are void and of no effect and that neither of them has relied thereon in connection
with its dealings with the other.

NO MODIFICATION — MODIFICATION IN WRITING: No waiver or modification of this
Agreement or of any covenant, condition or limitation herein contained shall be valid unless in
writing and duly executed by the parties to be charged therewith. Furthermore, no evidence of a
waiver or modification shall be offered or received in any proceeding between the parties arising out
of or affecting this Agreement or the rights or obligations of any party hereunder unless such waiver
or modification is in writing, duly executed as aforesaid. The provisions of this paragraph may not
be waived except as herein setforth.

NOTICES: Any notice, request, acknowledgement, consent, or communication (other than an
invoice) which any party hereto is required or permitted to give to the other party shall be delivered
by electronic mail, provided it is sent to the then-current email address of the Superintendent of
Schools or Head of School, and receipt is acknowledged by the recipient. Invoices shall be delivered
personally; sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested; or, sent by a recognized
overnight delivery service, to the recipient at the applicable address set forth below:

For the Board For The Academy
Superintendent of Schools Head of School
Woodstock Board of Education The Woodstock Academy
1477A Route 169 57 Academy Road
Woodstock, CT 06281 Woodstock, CT 06281
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18.

19.

20.

21.

REPRESENTATION: The Academy Bylaws, as may be amended from time to time, establish the
number of voting members on the Board of Trustees that the Woodstock Board of Education is
entitled to seat, and further establish those members’ committee assignments. As of the date of this
Agreement, but subject to any amendment of the bylaws, which are controlling, the Woodstock
Board of Education is entitled to one (1) voting member on The Woodstock Academy Board of
Trustees. The Woodstock Trustee of the Sending Towns will serve on the Executive and Finance
Committees.

COOPERATIVE OPPORTUNITIES: The Head of School, working on behalf of the Board of Trustees,
and the Superintendent, working on behalf of the Board, may promote whenever possible mutual
educational, cooperative, and/or financial opportunities and benefits that would strengthen both
parties and the larger community as a whole. These opportunities may include but are not limited
to: financial and facility support to Woodstock Public Schools and community organizations (such
as sharing of buses and student support services), sharing of professional development
opportunities and sharing staff when appropriate. It is the goal and the belief that through mutual
cooperation, the Board and the Academy will be able to provide better services to students.

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT: It is understood that the provisions of the Agreement shall not
contravene the decision-making authority of either of the parties of this Agreement or their
respective duties and prerogatives created bylaw.

EFFECTIVE. DATE: This Agreement shall become operative when approved by the Woodstock
Board of Education and by the Trustees of The Woodstock Academy.

GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be construed and governed by and under the laws of the
State of Connecticut.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day of

The Woodstock Academy Woodstock Board of Education

President, Board of Trustees Date Chairman, Board of Education

Date

Head of School Date Superintendent

Date
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Appendix B

oﬁ‘\'@
=\> o AGREEMENT
“@'L% . BETWEEN THE KILLINGLY BOARD OF EDUCATION AND
ofeS o % THE POMFRET BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR

e SECONDARY EDUCATIONAL SERVICES TO POMFRET STUDENTS

This agreement made this Q@Mday of?cﬁcem ber 2018 between the Board

of Education of the Town of Pomfret, acting herein by, Mrs. Kathleen Cerrone its

Chairperson, duly authorized hereafter referred to as “Pomfret,” and the Board of

Education of the Town of Killingly, acting herein by, Mr. John Burns its Chairperson,

duly authorized hereafter referred to as “Killingly.”

WHEREAS CT General Statute. 10-220 provides in part that:

(a) Each local or regional board of education shall maintain good public
elementary and secondary schools, implement the educational interests of
the state, as defined in section 10-4a and provide such other education
activities as in its judgment will best serve the interests of the school district;
provided any board of education may secure such opportunities in another
school district in accordance with provisions of the general statutes and shall
give all the children of the school district, including children receiving
alternative education, as defined in section 10-74j, as nearly equal advantages
as may be practicable; [... and] may arrange with the board of education of
any adjacent town for the instruction therein of such children as can attend in
such adjacent town more convenientlyl...]

and

WHEREAS Pomfret does not maintain a secondary or high school for its students in

grades nine through twelve, inclusive;

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between Pomfret and Killingly as
follows:

1. Killingly High School as a Designated School
As provided in Connecticut General Statute 10-33, Pomfret hereby recognizes

and designates Killingly High School as a designhated high school for instruction of



In the event of families moving into Pomfret, Killingly agrees to accept
students in grades nine (9), ten (10), eleven {11) and twelve (12) who are transfers
from other high schools,

In the event a current Pomfret resident student transfers to Killingly High
School from anather high school designated by Pomfret pursuant to Sec. 10-33, it
shall be on the same terms and conditions as other transfer students to the extent
Pomfret authorizes the payment of tuition for that student. In the event a student
from Pomfret is found to be lawfully allowed to attend Killingly High School
pursuant to Sec. 10-186 or other applicable statutes, either via transfer from
Pomfret’s other designated high school or from another town, Pomfret shall be
liable for tuition consistent with the terms of Section 3 of the existing contract.
Should a transfer student require special education services, payment for the same
shall be consistent with the terms of Section 8 of the existing contract.

It is agreed and understood, that neither Pomfret nor Killingly will permit
students to transfer between Killingly and Pomfret’s other desighated high schools
between October 1st and the end of the school year because of disruption to the
student’s academic program. Authorization for tuition to Killingly shall be in writing
and shall be submitted to Killingly prior to admission of the student to Killingly High

School.

6. - Payment

The tuition is to be paid in ten (10) monthly installments payable on the 15th
of the month of October through June. Killingly will send invoices for tuition costs
for all students from the town of Pomfret (excluding those enrolled in the
Vocational Agricuitural Program} on a ten (10) month basis commencing on October
1, 2019. Killingly will send invoices for payment based on verified enroliment of

students in grades nine (9}, ten (10}, eleven (11) and twelve {12). The payment for



the school year shall be based on October 1st verified enroliments. Enrollment

changes after October 1st shall not affect the tuition due for that school year.

7. Transportation

Pomfret shall be responsible for providing the daily transportation for all
students sent to Killingly. Killingly shall provide transportation to Pomfret resident
students, enrolled pursuant to this Agreement, who attend field trips and athletic
events and competitions to the same extent and in the same manner that it

provides such transportation for Killingly resident students.

8. Students Requiring Special Education

Killingly provides a wide range of special education services to the students
attending Killingly High School and will continue to provide these services as
required by the demands of increased special education student load or provisions
of state and/or federal statutes. Killingly agrees to accept Pomfret students
requiring special education on the same terms as Killingly students and to
participate in the PPT/IEP process as needed for such students consistent with the
requirements of special education regulations. The parties acknowledge however,
that Killingly High School may not be able to educate certain students who require
extensive special education and related services an agrees that certain of these
students will need to be educated in outside placements.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this agreement, Killingly will neither
indemnify nor hold Pomfret harmless regarding Special Education Due Process
procedures and litigation. Pomfret will indemnify Killingly and hold Killingly harmless
including attorney fees regarding special education services for Pomfret students.
Killingly shall cooperate with Pomfret to the extent reasonably necessary to assist

Pomfret with regard to such process procedures and litigation. This hold harmless



provision shall not be applicable to any due process procedures or litigation when
the claim is that Killingly failed to provide the services called for in the student’s IEP.
Pomfret will be responsible for reimbursing Killingly for the cost of special
education programs for Pomfret students. Special education tuition shall be pro-
rated on a period-by-period basis. It is determined that a student will be assigned
fifty percent (50%) or more of his/her time in either a resource room or self-
contained special education program, regular tuition costs shall be waived for that

school year and tuition costs shall be based on his special education program only.

9. Killingly Palicies — Students

Any Pomfret student attending Killingly High School is expected to comply
with any and all Killingly policies governing the performance and/or behavior of high
school students in all areas of the schools’ program. In the event that a Pomfret
student is expelled by Killingly Public Schoals, said student shall continue to be
counted as part of the Pomfret Board’s October 1 student census. The cost of
providing any alternative education to expelled student(s) shall be the responsibility
of Killingly, subject to the provisions of Section 8 hereof, regarding special
education. In providing alternative education to Pomfret students, Killingly will be

guided by Sec. 10-233(d) of the Connecticut General Statutes.

10. Budget Information

Killingly shall deliver to Pomfret no later than March 15th of the preceding
school year an estimate of the per pupil tuition costs for regular and special
education. Killingly will also share with Pomfret any and all budget data requested
for the calculation of the tuition rate. Killingly recognizes that Pomfret must depend
upon these estimates in preparing budgets for education purposes, and therefore

agrees that such estimates will be made in goad faith.



11. Capital Costs

Should, during the term of this agreement or any extension thereof, the town
of Killingly choose to make expenditures for capital improvements to the Killingly
High School building pursuant to Chapter 173 of the general statutes, Pomfret will
be assessed an additional per pupil charge each year of the agreement and any
extension thereof.

This per pupil charge shall be calculated as follows: the annual local cost
axclusive of state reimbursement to the town of Killingly including principal and
interest divided by the number of students in attendance at Killingly High School on
October 1st, The fee shall be made on a fump sum basis, subject to the same
invoicing provisions delineated in Section 6 of this agreement. This fee shall be
separate from the tuition charge and paid directly to the treasurer, Town of Killingly.

Should, during the term of this agreement, the town of Killingly choose to
make expenditures for a major expansion of Killingly High School, or build a new
high school pursuant to Chapter 173 of the general statues, Pomfret will be notified
at least one year in advance of such a building program in order that Pomfret may, if
it chooses, exercise its rights under Sections 10-33 and 10-35 of the Connecticut
General Statutes. (Attached)

In the event Killingly chooses to make expenditures for other capital

improvements, the terms of Section 11 of the existing contract shall apply.

12. Liability Insurance and Indemnity

Killingly shall provide to Pomfret a certificate of liability insurance for the
premises at which educational services are being provided pursuant to this contract
with Pomfret being named an additional insured. It is understood that said liability

insurance shall be only for the premises of the Kiflingly School or such other location
7



at which educational services are being provided hereunder. Pomfret agrees to
reimburse Killingly the additional costs of naming the Pomfret Board an additional

named insured.

13. Records Access

It is agreed and understood that at any time Pomfret may request and
Killingly will provide such information or permit the inspection of such records as
may be necessary to verify or confirm any information submitted to Pomfret in
accordance with this contract. All individual student records acquired by Killingly of

Pomfret students shall be released and available to Pomfret at reasonable times.

14. Exclusive Terms

This written contract contains the sole and entire agreement between the
parties and supersedes any and all other contracts between them. The parties
acknowledge and agree that neither of the has made any representation with
respect to the subject matter of this agreement or any representation including the
execution and delivery hereof except such representations as specifically set forth
herein, and each party acknowledges that each has relied on its own that any
statement of representations that may have heretofore been made by either of
them to the other are void and of no effect and that neither of them has relied

thereon in connection with dealings with the other,

15. Maodification Ineffective Except in Writing

No waiver or modification of this contract or of any covenant, condition, or
limitation herein contained shall be valid unless in writing and duly executed by the
party to be charged therewith. Furthermore, no evidence of any waiver or

modification shall be offered or received in any proceeding between the parties



arising out of or affecting this contract or the rights or obligations of any party
hereunder unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly executed as

aforesaid. The provision of this paragraph may not be waived except as herein set

forth.

16. Duration

This contract shall be effective as of date of signatures through June 30, 2024,
inclusive. This contract will automatically renew for subsequent five (5) year
renewals upon the same terms and conditions of this agreement unless either party
provides written notice of their intent not to renew at least one (1) year prior to the
expiration of this agreement. This contract may be modified in writing at any time

by the mutual consent of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals on this | &H““day
of Décen e 2018

POMFRET BOARD OF EDUCATION KILLINGLY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Chairperson hairperson
pate; | o= (1] 17 Date: /44?/15

/S‘%pﬁ;n Oﬂii}nan, Witness Steven R, Rioux, Witness
Superintendent of Schools Superintendent of Schools
Date: /&// a(r¢ Date: 12—/7«0’/’9




Connecticut Education Laws

Sec. 10-33. Tuition in towns in which no high school is maintained. Any local board of
education which does not maintain a high school shall designate a high school approved by the State
Board of Education as the schoo! which any child may attend who has completed an elementary school
course, and such board of education shall pay the tuition of such child residing with a parent or guardian
in such school district and attending such high school.

Sec. 10-35. Notice of discontinuance of high school service to nonresidents. Cooperative
arrangements and school building projects for school accommodations. (a) A board of education which
is providing educational facilities for nonresident high schoo! students and which desires to discontinue
furnishing such service to nonresident students shall natify the board of education of the school district
wherein such pupils reside that such facilities will not be so furnished, such notice to be given not less
than one year prior to the time when such facilities will cease to be so furnished, provided the board of
education not maintaining a high school may enter into an agreement with another board of education
to provide such facilities for a period not exceeding ten years, in which event the time agreed upen shall
not be changed except by agreement between the parties.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection {a} of this section, boards of education which
enter into a cooperative arrangement pursuant to section 10-158a for the purpose of a school building
project for school accommodations for students residing within the school districts that are members of
such cooperative arrangement, may enter into agreements to provide such school accommodations for
a period of not less than twenty years.



Appendix C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT

AND THE
BOARD OF EDUCATION OF POMFRET, CONNECTICUT

1)
This Agreement is made this \fi day of December, 2018, between the Board of Education of the
Town of Putnam, State of Connecticut (hereinafter referred to as the “Putnam Board™) and the
Board of Education of the Town of Pomfret, State of Connecticut (hereinafter referred to as the
“Pomfret Board”).

The parties to this Agreement, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and stipulations
set out herein, agree to the following mutually acceptable terms and conditions:

ik

PUTNAM BOARD DESIGNATION: As provided for in Section 10-33 of the
Connecticut General Statutes, the Pomfret Board recognizes Putnam High School as a
designated high school for eligible residents of the Pomfret school district.

PUTNAM SERVICES: Putnam High School will furnish educational facilities,
programs and activities for grades nine (9) through grade twelve (12) for high school
students residing in the Town of Pomfret, Connecticut, subject to all the requirements,
privileges, restrictions and awards accorded to the Putnam student body.

The Pomfret Board of Education shall notify the Putnam Board by June 1* of each
year, the anticipated number of enrollees for the subsequent school year.

STUDENTS: Any students residing in the Town of Pomfret and designated by the
Pomfret Board of Education who have successfully completed the 8™ grade and have
not completed the prescribed program for high school graduation shall be entitled to all
the privileges and advantages of attendance at Putnam High School.

Upon termination of this contract, or any extension thereof, all Pomfret resident
students then enrolled at Putnam High School shall be provided, by the Pomfret Board
and the Putnam Board, the option of completing their high school education at Putnam
High School, up to and including graduation, at the expense of the Pomfret Board.

4. REGULAR EDUCATION ENROLLMENT and TUITION PAYMENT

a. Pomfret District will pay to Putnam District tuition for each Pomfret resident
student enrolled in Putnam High School pursuant to this Agreement, Regular
Edycation Enrollment for budget purposes will be the enrollment as of October
1% of the current school year, ~

b.  Regular Education Tuition payment for each fiscal year will be based on the
enrollment from 4.a. above multiplied times the per student regular education



tuition as determined by the Putnam Board in collaboration with the Pomifret
Board for that fiscal year.

¢. The Putnam Board will invoice the Pomfret Board for the tuition costs of all
students from the Pomfret Board on a monthly basis, from October through
June of that school year,

5. SPECIAL EDUCATION TUITION AND SERVICES:

a. Putnam High School provides a wide range of special education services to its
students and may expand these services when required by increased special
education student load. Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, in
addition to the regular education per pupil tuition, the Pomfiet Board will be
responsible for reimbursing the Putnam Board for the costs of special education
programming and/or accommodations for Pomfret students who require services
and/or accommodations consistent with the requirements of eachstudent’s
individualized education program (“IEP”) or accommodation plan developed in
accordance with §504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or other state and federal
statutes. The cost of educating Pomfiet students who require special services
will be computed for each student in a timely manner in order that the Pomfret
Board may apply for partial state reimbursement as permitted by Connecticut
Statute. Such cost shall be determined by the Putnam Board. Prior fo October 1
of each year and following a determination by a planning and placement team
(PPT) meeting, if it is determined that a student will be assigned fifty percent
(50%), or more, of the student’s time in either a resource roor, or self-contained
environment, regular tuition cost shall be waived for that school year and tuition
costs shall be based on special education services only. Any increase or decrease
of assigned time following October 1 of each year shall result only in
adjustments in special education costs.

b. Putnam High School agrees to accept all Pomfret students requiring special
education services based on the PPT decisions and through the PPT process will
cooperatively develop Individual Education Plan’s (IEPs) for such students. The
parties acknowledge, however, that Putnam High School may not be able to
appropriately educate certain Pomfiet students who require extensive and/or
specialized education, or related services, and, therefore, the Pomfret Board shall
be responsible for providing an education for these students at the sole expense
of the Pomfret Board. Determination of such placement shall be made by a
legally constituted PPT, chaired by the Pomfret Director of Special Services with
the opportunity for input from all staff of Pomfiet District and Putnam District as
required by law.

6. EXPULSION: Pomfret students who may be expelled by the Putnam Board shall
continue to be counted as part of the census of Pomftet resident students enrolled at
Putnam High School during the period of expulsion, unless such student withdraws
during such period. The cost of providing any alternative education to expelled
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10.

il.

12.

students shall be the responsibility of the Putnam Board, subject to the provisions of
paragraph 5 hereof, regarding special education students. In providing alternative
education to Pomftet resident students, Putnam Board will be guided by the regulations
concerning an alternative educational program for expelled students.

TRANSPORTATION: The Pomfret Board shall be responsible for providing all the
daily transportation needs of its students to and from Putnam High School. Putnam
Board shall provide transportation to enrolled Pomfret resident student, enrolled
pursuant to this Agreement, who attend field trips and athletic events and competitions
to the same extent and in the same manner that it provides such transportation for
Putnam resident students.

LIABILITY INSURANCE: The Putnam Board shall provide to the Pomfret Board a
Certificate of Liability Insurance for the premises at which educational services are
being provided pursuant to this contract, in the amount of $1,000,000 per accident and
$500,000 property damage (with the Pomfret Board being named an additional
insured). It is understood that said liability insurance shall be only for the premises of
Putnam High School, or such other location at which educational services, or Putnam
High School activities, are being provided hereunder. The Pomfret Board agrees to
reimburse the contracting institution the additional costs of naming the Pomfret Board
as an additionally named insured, but not to exceed $1,500.00.

INDEMNITY: The Putham Board agrees to indemnify the Pomfret Board for any and
all claims concerning educational services provided by the Putnam Board to Pomfret
students and all claims concerning the actions of the Putnam Board employees.

RECORD ACCESS: The Putnam Board shall provide such information, or permit the
inspection of such records, as may be necessary to verify, or confirm, any information
submitted to the Pomfret Board in accordance with this contract, including charges due.
All individual student records acquired by the Putnam Board of Pomfret resident
students shall be released and available to the Pomfret Board at all reasonable times,
uniess expressly prohibited by state and/or federal laws, regulations or constitutions,

EXCLUSIVE TERMS: This written contract contains the sole and entire Agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject matter addressed herein and supersedes
any and all other contracts, understandings or agreements between them to the extent
related to the subject matter herein. The parties acknowledge and agree that neither of
them has made any representation with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement
or any representation including the execution and delivery hereof except such
representations as are specifically set forth herein, Each party further acknowledges
that, in reaching its decision on this Agreement, it has not relied on any statement or
representation, other than those contained herein, that heretofore may have been made
by either of them to the other. Any such statements or representations not contained
herein are void and of no effect.

MODIFICATION INEFFECTIVE EXCEPT IN WRITING: No waiver or modification
of this Agreement or of any covenant, condition or limitation herein contained shall be
valid unless in writing and duly executed by both parties. Furthermore, no evidence of
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

a waiver or modification shall be offered or received in any proceeding between the
patties hereunder unless such waiver or modification is in writing and duly executed.
The provisions of this paragraph may not be waived except as herein set forth.

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT: It is understood that the provisions of the Agreement shall
not contravene the decision-making authority of either of the parties of this Agreement
or their respective duties and prerogatives created by law, except as explicitly delegated
herein.

DURATION: This Agreement shall remain in force for a period of five (5) years
commencing on July 1, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2024 and will automatically be
extended for a period of five (5) years upon the same terms and conditions of this
Agreement unless either party provides written notice of its intention not to renew this
agreement at least one (1) year prior to expiration of the Agreement.

SEVERABILITY: The parties hereby understand and agree that if any part, term or
provision of this Agreement is held by any Court to be invalid, illegal or in conflict with
any applicable law, the validity of the remaining portions of this Agreement shall not be
affected and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as
if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held to be
invalid, illegal or in conflict with any applicable law.

NOTICES: All notices which may be issued pursuant to any term or provision of this
Agreement shall be in writing, delivered by First Class Mail, postage prepaid to the
following:

If to the Putnam Board of Education ~ Superintendent of Schools
" Putnam Board of Education
152 Woodstock Avenue
Putnam, CT 06260
With a copy to the Chair, Board of Education.

If to the Pomfret Board of Education: ~ Superintendent of Schools
Pomfret Board of Education
20 Pomfret Street
Pomftet Center, CT 06259
With a copy to the Chairman, Board of Education.

EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement shall become operative when approved by the
Putnam Board of Education and the Pomfret Board of Education.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the _ day of December,

PUTNAM BOARD Ol} EDUCATION POMFRET BOARD OF EDUCATION
Chair, Board of Education Chair, Board of Education



Appendix D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE WOODSTOCK ACADEMY
AND THE
BOARD OF EDUCATION OF POMFRET, CONNECTICUT

This Agreement is made this 21st day of January, 2014, between the Woodstock Academy (heteinafter
referred to as the “Academy’) and the Board of Education of the Town of Pomfret, State of Connecticut

(hereiuaftet referred to as the “the Pomfret Board").

Agreement

The parties to this Agreement, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and stipulations set out
herein, agree to the following mutually acceptable terms and conditions;

1.

ACADEMY DESIGNATION; As-provided for in Section T0-33 of die Connecticut General
Statutes, the Pomfret Board recognizes the Academy as a designated high school.

ACADEMY SERVICES: The Academy will funish educational facilities, programs and activities
for grades nine (9) through grade twelve (12) for high school students residing in the Town of
Pomfret, Connecricut; subject to all the requirements, privileges, reserictions and-awards accorded:

its student body.

The Pomfret Board of Education shall notify the Academy by June 1= of each yeat, the anticipated
number of enrollees for the ninth grade for the subsequent school year.

STUDENTS: Any students residing in the Town of Pomfret and recornmended by the Pomfret
Boatd of Education who has not completed the presctibed program for high school graduation
shall be enitled to all the privileges and advantages of attendance at Woodstock Academy.
Provided, the Superintendent of the Pomfree School system may in his/her discretion prohibit the
entollment of any student who has attained the age of twenty-one (21} years.

No decision on enrollment of Pomfret students at Woodstock Academy can be based on the high
school demographics in another sending town district.

Upon termination of this conract, or any extension thereof, all Pomfret students then enrolled ac
the Academy shall be provided, by the Pomfret Board and the Academy, the option of completing
their high school education at the Acaderny up to, and including, graduation at the expense of the
Pomfretr Board. )

REGULAR EDUCATION TUITION and TUITION PAYMENT:

2. Regular Education Enrollment for budget purposes for each prospective yeat will be the
enrollment as of the previous October I%.

b. -Regular Education Tuition payment for each prospective fiscal year will be based on the
enrollment from 4.a. above multiplied times the per student regular educarion tuition &5
determined by the Academy’s budget for each prospective fiscal year.

SPECTAL EDUCATION TUITION AND SERVICES:

a.  The Academy provides a wide range of special education services to its stadents and the
Academny will continue to-expand these services when required by increased special education



student load. The Pomfrer Board will be responsible for reimbursing the Academy for the
actual costs of special education programs for Pomfret students who require special education
services, consistent with the requirements of the student’s IEP, in addition to the regular
education tuitron for each student. The cost of educating Pomfret students who require

ecial services will be computed for each student in a timely manner in oxder that the
Pomfrec Board may apply for partial state reimbursement as permitted by Connecticut Statute,
Such cost shall be determined using the agreed upon method of dividing the prior year special
services enrollment into the following year Academy budget for special services to derive a
daily tuition rate per student. Prior to October 1 of each year and following 2 determination
by a Planning and Placement Team (PPT) meering, if it is determined that a student will be
assigned fifty (50) percent, or over, of the student’s time in either a resource room, or self-
contained environment, regular tuition cost <hall be waived for that schoo! year and tuition
costs shall be based on special education services only. Any increase or decrease of assigned
time following October I* of each year shall result only in adjustments in special education
COsts,

b, The Academy agrees to accept all Pomfret students requiring special education services based
on the PPT decisions and through the PPT process which cooperatively develop Individual
Education Plan’s (IEP’s) for such students. The parties acknowledge, however, that the
Academy may not be able to appropuiately educate certain Pomfret students who require
extensive and/or specialized education, or related services, and, therefore, the Pomfret Board
shall be responsible for providing an education for these students at the sole expense of the
Pomfret Board. Determination of such placement shall be made by a legally constituted PPT
with the opportanity for input from Woodstock Academy staff members as needed and
Pomfret’s Director of Student Services.

EXPULSION: Pomfter students who may be expelled by the Academy shall continue to be
counted as part of the Pomfret Board’s Octobet I* Pomfret student census. The cost of providing
any alternative education to expelled students shall be the responsibility of the Academy, subject to
the provisions of 'pmg:aph 5 hereof, regarding special edizcarion students. In providing alternative
education to Pomfret students, the Academy will be guided by the regulations concetning
homebound tutoring, in no case to exceed ten (10) hours per week, unless otherwise required by
law. Conn. Agencies Regs. 10-76d-15.,

TRANSPORTATION: The Pomfret Board shall be responsible for providing all the
transportation needs of its students to and from the Academy on a daily basis.

INVOICES: The Academy will invoice the Town of Pomfret for the tuition costs of all students
from the Town of Pomfret on a twelve (12) month basis, with the firsc payment due July I5% and
subsequent payments due on the 15* day of each successive month thereafter.

LIABILITY INSURANCE: The Academy shall provide to the Pomfret Board a Certificate of
Liability Insurance for the premises at which educational services are being provided putsuant to
this contract, in the amount of $1,000,000 per accident and $500,000 property damage (with the
Pomfret Board being named an additional insured). It is understood thar said liability insurance
shall be only for the premises of the Academy, or such other location ar which educarionat services
are being provided hereunder. The Pomfret Board agrees to reimburse the contracting institution
the additional costs of naming the Pomfret Board as an additionally named insured, but not to
exceed $1,500.00.
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13.

14.
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17.

INDEMNITY: The Academy agrees to indemnify the Pomfret Board for any and all claims
concerning educational services pmvidcd by the Academy to Pomftet students and all claims

conceming the actions of the Academy employees.

RECCRD ACCESS: The Academy will provide such information, or permit the inspection of
such records, as may be necessazy to verify, or confirm, any information submitced to the Pomfret
Board in accordance with this contract, including charges due. All individual student records
acquired by the Academy of Pomfret students shall be released and available to the Pomfret Board
at all reasomable times, unless expressly prohibited by state andy or federal Taws, regulations-or

constitutions.

ACADEMY BOARD REPRESENTATIVE: As provided n the by-laws of the Academy, the
Pomfret Boatd, by virtue of its designation of the Academy as its high school, shall be entitled to
nomnate two (2) of its members to serve on the Academy’s Board of Trustees (T rustees). The
Trustees farther agree to allow one of these members to sexve o the Academy’s Executive
Committee and one of these members to serve on the Academy’s Finance Committee during the
term of this agreement.

EXCLUSIVE TERMS: This written coutzact contains the sofe and entire Agreement between the
parties and sapesedes any and all other contracts berween them. The parties acknowledge and
agree that neither of them has made any representation with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement or any representation including the execution and delivery hereof except such
representation as specifically set forth herein.

MODIFICATION INEFFECTIVE EXCEPT IN WRITING: No seaiver or modification of
this Agreement ot of any covenant, condition or limitation herein contained shall be valid cnless in
writing and daly executed by the parties to be charged therewith. Furthermore, no evidence of a
waiver or modification shall be offered or received in any proceeding between the parties hereander
unless such waiver-or modification is in Writing, duly executed as aforesaid. The provisions of this
Pa.tagraph may Dot be waived except as herein set forth.

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT: It is understood that the provisions of the Agreement shall not
contravene the decision-making authority of either of the parties of this Agreement or their

respective duties and prerogatives created by law.

DURATION: This Agreement shall remain in force for 2 period of five (5) years commencing on
July I, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2018 and will automatically be extended for a period of five
(S) years upon the same terms and conditions of this Agreement unless either party provides
written notice of its intention NOT to ¥eReW this agreement at least one (T) yearprior to expiration
of the Agreement. -

NOTICES: All notices which may be issued pursuant to any term or provision of this Agreement
shall be m writing, delivered by First Class Mail, postage prepa.id to the following:

Tf to Woodstock academy: Headmaster, Woodstock Academy
57 Academy Road
Woodstock, CT 06281
With 2 copy to the President, Board of Trustees.



If to the Pomfret Board of Education: Superintendent of Schools
Pomfret Board of Education
2 Pomfrer Streer
Pomfret Cenrer, CT 06259
With a copy to the Chairman, Board of Education,

18. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement shall become operative when approved by the Pomfret
Boatd of Education and by the Trustees of the Woodstock Academy.

IN WITINESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the 2Tst day of January, 2014.

THE WOODSTOCK ACADEMY POMFRET BOARD OF EDUCATION
CMJE&Q&-M@(}J ? AN
President, Bod?d of Trustees Chaitman, Boatd’of Education



Appendix E

THE EAST LYME AND SALEM HIGH SCHOOL
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

By and Between

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF EAST LYME
AND
THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SALEM

Adopted 5/16/16, East Lyme and Salem Cooperative BOE Meeting
Effective date: July 1, 2019 — June 30, 2039




PREAMBLE

A cooperative agreement was originally signed on March 17, 1997 between the
boards of education of the towns of Salem and East Lyme. The agreement established East
Lyme High School as the official high school of Salem Public Schools. The towns entered
into a bonding process increasing the capacity of the East Lyme High School to
accommodate the increase in enrollment. The term of the agreement was set at twenty years
consistent with the bonding timeline. The agreement was amended throughout the years to
respond to the changes in the educational landscape. The most recent change included the
billing structure for the students with special education needs. The revised structure is
congruent with the contemporary practices of inclusion and differentiation. The premise for
this revision is a mutual belief that both Salem and East Lyme High students should have
the same access to services and opportunities provided by East Lyme High School
regardless of their place of residence. Salem and East Lyme have enjoyed a collaborative
and productive working relationship between the leaders of the district for many years.

INTRODUCTION

This Cooperative Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is the result of a joint effort
by teams from the East Lyme Board of Education (hereinafter “ELBOE”) and Salem Board
of Education (hereinafier “SBOE”) who made up the “Cooperative Agreement Committee”
hereby known as the Committee. The list of members below reflects broad representation
from each community. The boards of education of each town established the joint
committee and charged it with the following mission:

To renew a cooperative Agreement between the ELBOE and the SBOE that is:
a) educationally appropriate; and
b) beneficial to both communities
¢) in compliance with State statutes (Section 10-158a);

The Committee met throughout the 2013 and 2014 school years. In order to assure
equity, each town had one vote on any given issue. Therefore, each item in this Agreement
was approved by representatives from both Salem and East Lyme.

The Commiittee is dissolved with the final approval of this Agreement by both
towns’ boards of education.

Members (and representation) of the Committee:

East Lyme Salem

Board of Education Tim Hagen Steve Buck

Mary Ann Pudimat

Phil Texeira

George Jackson
Board Attormey Fred Dorsey Mark Sommaruga
Superintendents Jeffrey R. Newton Joseph Onofrio I
Interim Assistant Superintendent ~ Donna Gittleman
Director of Student Services Elizabeth Catarius
Business Director Maria Z. Whalen Kim Gadaree
ELHS Principal Michael Susi



AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING THE EAST LYME AND SALEM
HIGH SCHOOL COOPERATIVE

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on May 16, 2016 by and between the undersigned
ELBOE and SBOE, each acting by its respective Chairperson.

WHEREAS, the Town of East Lyme maintains a high school approved by the State Board
of Education; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Salem does not maintain & high school and the SBOE is required
by law to designate a high school where any resident child of Salem who is eligible for high
school may attend; and

WHEREAS, Salem high school students have been attending East Lyme High School
almost continuously since East Lyme High School was built in 1967, and the SBOE
designated East Lyme High School its high school of record in 1979; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of East Lyme and Salem to continue the long-standing
arrangement Whereby Salem students attend East Lyme High School for grades 9 through
12; and

WHEREAS, the ELBOE and SBOE agree that a cooperative agreement is a mutually
beneficial method to ensure continued availability of a high quality, cost effective,
secondary education for the students of both towns, and desire to be in compliance with
Connecticut General Statutes Sections:

e 10-33 which requires a board of education without a high school to designate a
State Board of Education approved high school for any child to attend that has
completed elementary education; and

e 10-158a, which authorizes any two or more boards of education to agree, in
writing, to establish cooperative arrangements to provide special services,
programs, or activities to enable such boards to carry out the duties specified
therein, and further authorizes such boards to establish a committee to supervise
such services, programs, or activities; and

WHEREAS, the cooperative agreement signed on March 27, 1997 remains in effect until
June, 30, 2019; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth
herein, the SBOE and ELBOE do hereby enter the Agreement and hereby agree as follows:



1. COOPERATIVE COMMITTEE

1.1 Establishment

As established under Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-158a, a Cooperative
Committee (hereinafter “Committee”) is hereby appointed and empowered by both boards
of education.

1.2 Membership
Membership shall consist of the full membership of each town’s board of education.

1.3 Responsibilities
1. to oversee the administration of this Agreement;

2. to develop amendments to this Agreement if needed; and

3. if the number of external students (non-Salem/non-East Lyme) exceeds 75, the
Committee shall be responsible for establishing enrollment parameters beyond
seventy-five (75), unless more are required by law. If Salem is at its maximum
enroliment, or if total enrollment at East Lyme High School, including Salem, and
external students exceeds 1,500, then the Committee shall be fully responsible for
setting the number of external students permitted to enroll.

1.4 Meetings

The Committee shall meet at least twice each year, once in January, and once on a date to be
agreed upon at the January meeting. Additional meetings may be called by the co-chairs.
The Committee shall also convene within two weeks of delivery of a written request to
meet, by either board, to the Chair of the other board. The Committee may hold its
meetings, regular or special, at such place and time as the officers of the Committes may
determine. All such meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Freedom of
Information Act. In the conduct of its meetings, the Committee shall be guided by Robert's
Rules of Order unless such provisions are inconsistent with this Agreement or are modified
through bylaws adopted by the Committee. A quorum of the membership of each board
must be present to constitute a quorum for a Committee meeting.

1.5 Officers
Chairs of each board of education shall serve as co-chairs of Committee meetings.

1.6 Voting
Each board of education shall have one vote which shall be cast by the Chair of each Board,
or his or her designee. Therefore, it will take two affirmative votes to pass a motion.

1.7 Special Education and Curriculum Alignment

The East Lyme High School administration will provide information to the SBOE in the
form of presentations, newsletters and electronic communication about the progress of East
Lyme High School students on standardized test results, initiatives, and other indicators of
student progress.



Salem students are encouraged to participate in transition activities (similar to those at East
Lyme Middle School) prior to entering East Lyme High School. These activities will
include but are not limited to visits to the high school in the eighth grade and open house
activities.

The special education leadership of both towns will collaboratively develop a plan to
administer the special education programs for students from Salem (See Appendix A). The
special education leaders will meet to discuss at least the following on a quarterly basis:
student special education programs, progress and transition (j.e., Salem to East Lyme High
School, East Lyme High School to 18-21 year old transition programs, post-secondary
education).

Parents, teachers and administrators of Salem are invited to participate as members of the
East Lyme Curriculum Council and subsequent standing committees. Salem and East Lyme
Public Schools staffs collaboratively develop and monitor the vertically articulated
curriculum with the collaboration of middle school teams from both districts. Teams from
both districts will meet regularly to review and revise the middle school curriculums. The
purpose of these meetings is to support students from both districts to enter the high school
with similar curriculum experiences.

2, RETAINED AUTHORITY

Overall governance of the School is maintained, as established by statute, under the
authority of the ELBOE. A member of the SBOE is a welcome participant in all public
deliberations of the ELBOE which involve East Lyme High School.

3. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS

The premise for the financial provisions is that Salem and East Lyme communities should
experience equivalent operating budget costs for students attending East Lyme High School.
The financial provisions establish two tuition rates: one for students receiving special
education services and one for students not receiving special education service. The
premise for both tuition rates is simply the appropriate average separate rate for operating
budget expenditure for an East Lyme student at East Lyme High School receiving education
with or without special education. District-wide costs are prorated per the enrollment of the
high school compared to the enrollment in the middle and elementary schools.

3.1 Tuition Calculation

The Cost Per Pupil - Base Tuition Rate (hereinafter “Base Rate™) for the term of this
agreement shall be based on East Lyme’s submission to the State of Connecticut, on form
EDO001 or equivalent, of expenses per student related to East Lyme High School, for the
school year occurring two years prior, excluding transportation, debt service, special
education, land and building costs, and including an inflation adjustment factor equal to
inflation rates for the most recent two-year period (current two-year total equal to positive
5% and subject to projected budget increases continuing throughout the term of this
Agreement), to bring the aud1ted EDOO1 expenses per student up to date for the coming
school year by January 15® of the current school year. This Base Rate will be calculated by
East Lyme’s Superintendent, or designee, in December of each school year for the following
school year, using the following methodology. (See Appendix B.)



Divide all regular education high school related expenses (except transportation to and from
home) by all students enrolled in East Lyme High School. This enrollment is calculated
using the October 1% PSIS enrollment or equivalent occurring two years prior. This shall be
the Base Rate included in each school district’s budgeting process for the following year’s
budget. The Base Rate is a projection. Any overcharge or undercharge in the actual per
student expenses, using this same methodology, will be reconciled as described in Section
3.7.

Any amount in excess of this calculation, if agreed to by both Superintendents, may be
substituted for the Base Rate. The purpose of such increase would be fto stabilize
reconciliation calculations, and therefore minimize required adjustments.

If East Lyme proposes to change the allocation methodology for reporting expenditures to
the State, and if such change adversely impacts Salem, Salem shall have the right to prior
approval or to pay tuition on the basis of the old methodology.

3.2 Special Education

The special education financial provisions are founded on the premise that East Lyme High
School students with special needs receive an appropriate program regardless of their zip
code. The delivery of special education services at East Lyme High School are designed to
support students in the least restrictive environment as defined by applicable state and
federal law. Special education students receive instruction through, among other things, co-
taught classrooms, resource rooms, individual counseling, and specialized classrooms such
as therapeutic and special needs. To this end, East Lyme High Schoot PPT teams will
request additional support from the East Lyme and Salem central office administration for
the following similar scenarios or situations:

1. Special education services within the scope of practice of special education and
related services staff located at East Lyme High School are included in the Cost
Per Pupil — Special Education Tuition Rate (hereinafter “Special Education
Rate”) paid by Salem. On an annual basis the Superintendents of Salem and East
Lyme shall meet to review and make appropriate changes to the scope of
services included in the special education tuition rate. (See Appendix C)

2. Additional costs for special education students who reside in Salem will include,
but not be limited to, the following: payment for contracted services for medical
personnel needed to accompany a child during the school day, e.g., a registered
nurse needed to monitor a tracheotomy or feeding tube; payment for services
provided by private and other public agencies, when such services are provided
outside East Lyme High School setting; payment for services provided by private
and other public agencies, when such services are provided outside of the school
day; payment for services provided by private and other public agencies when
such services are provided outside of the school year. Examples of such services
would be employment placement and job coaching services provided by an
organization such as LEARN or a private agency. The Special Education Rate
shall not include these special education contracted service expenditures.



3. Students placed in programs where student-specific expenditures exceed the East
Lyme special education tuition rate will require individual contracts between the
two school districts. For example, if Salem desires to place a student in the East
Lyme Medically Fragile program, Salem shall pay its proportional share of the
full cost of said program as determined by the Superintendent of Schools of the
East Lyme Public Schools. The cost of such programs will not be included in the
calculation of the Special Education Rate. In the event that a student from Salem
is determined to require specialized services not covered in this Agreement, the
Salem and East Lyme Superintendents shall together determine the “fair cost” of
those services to Salem. Salem’s share of those services shall not exceed the
proportional share of those services that the Salem student is receiving. The
Superintendents shall inform their respective Boards of Education when such a
financial agreement is required.

4. The Special Education Rate shall include the proportional share of any extended
school year services required for Salem students. ,

5. In all cases, if a student attends East Lyme High School for a portion of the
school day and then leaves to receive separate services from a private or outside
public agency, the Special Education Rate shall be prorated for a portion of the
school day that the student attends East Lyme High School. The portion shall be
determined in 25% increments (quarters) of the full Special Education Rate.

6. All paraprofessionals serving East Lyme High School students will be hired by
the ELBOE.

3.3 Projected enrollment levels of regular students and students receiving special education
attending East Lyme High School in the following school year shall be made by and
exchanged between the respective Superintendents, or their designees, for Salem and East
Lyme students, on or about December 15 of each school year, and shall be used in each
school district’s budgeting process for the following year’s budget.

3.4 Minimum Enrollment: Regardless of the number of students attending East Lyme High
School, Salem shall pay a Base Tuition to East Lyme for a minimum enrollment equal to
80% of the total Salem high school students enrolled in grades nine through twelve (9-12) at
any high school, with the exception of legally mandated schools of choice (e.g., Magnet,
Charter, vocational schools). Should Salem reach or exceed the Maximum Enrollment
described in Section 3.10, this provision shall not apply.

3.5 The Special Education Rate for Salem students receiving special education shall be
based on actual special education expenses incurred for all students receiving special
education at East Lyme High School and district-wide expenses fairly allocated to East
Lyme High School’s special education programs, divided by the total number of students
actually enrolled in special education programs at East Lyme High School. Adding to that
result is the reconciled Base Rate. The calculation of the actual per student costs of special
education at East Lyme High School shall include no expense included in Base Rate, nor
any expenses for externally purchased services or tuition, but shall include expenses at the
district level fairly allocated to the East Lyme High School special education program. This

7



calculation is based upon the October 1% PSIS enrollment or equivalent occurring {wo years
prior.

The Special Education Rate is equal to the combined following per pupil rates:
The Base Rate plus the High School Special Education Costs plus the
Districtwide Special Education Costs (prorated to the East Lyme

High School enrollment) equals the Special Education Rate.

3.6 Services Surcharge: To compensate East Lyme for services provided by East Lyme and
not included in the ED0O01, such as police, fire safety, water and sewer, a Services Surcharge
will be added to tuition rates, equal to $74.50 per student in the first year of this Agreement,
plus an increase in the per student charge of $1 per year for each subsequent year of this
Agreement. If these expenses are included in future ED001 submissions during the term of
this Agreement, this Services Surcharge shall then be subject to review and mutually agreed
adjustment as necessary.

3.7 Reconciliation Amount: Beginning in November of 2019, and each year thereafter, East
Lyme’s Superintendent of Schools, or his designee, shall compare the expenses reported on
the EDOO1 submission, using the same methodology as described in section 3.3, to
determine East Lyme High School’s actual per student expenses for the prior year, plus the
applicable Services Surcharge for that year, as described in Section 3.6, with the Base Rate
charged Salem for that year. At the same time, a reconciliation of the Special Education
Rate will be based on actual expenses of providing special education at East Lyme High
School, consistent with the methodology described in section 3.5, plus the applicable
Services Surcharge for that year, as described in Section 3.6. The difference between total
payments actually made by Salem for Base Rate and Special Education Rate with the
applicable Services Surcharge for that year, and the total actual costs for all Salem students
attending East Lyme, based on calculated costs per student for all regular and special
education students with the applicable Services Surcharge for that year, shall be divided by
10, and shall be the monthly Reconciliation Amount to adjust the payments in the following
school year.

3.8 Actual Monthly Payment Amounts: Salem shall pay to East Lyme in 10 monthly
payments, beginning in September, due on the last business day of the month, and for each
of the following 9 months ending in June, an amount equal to:

1. the sum of the Base Rate and the Services Surcharge, divided by ten and multiplied
by the actual number of regular education students attending East Lyme High School
on the first school day of each month in which a payment is being made, adjusting
the regular education enrollment upwards if necessary to assure that the total of
regular education students plus special education student enrollment in any month
shall in no event be less than the Minimum Enrollment, plus

2. the sum of the Special Education Rate and the Services Surcharge, divided by ten
and multiplied by the actual number of special education students attending East
Lyme High School on the first school day of each month in which a payment is
being made, plus or minus, as the case may be.

3. the Monthly Reconciliation Amount, if any.



East Lyme shall submit the billing to Salem by the 10" of each month, which will include
the enrollment for the month (as of the first school day of that month), and the names and
addresses of all Salem students counted in the enrollment for that month.

3.9 Late Fees: Any amounts unpaid as of the end of the month shall be overdue and shall be
assessed a late charge, equal to the greater of 1% per month or a percentage per month equal
to one-tenth of the prime rate then in effect at the billing date as published by Chase
Manhattan Bank in New York, or if unavailable, by such other bank as agreed to by the
Committee.

3.10 Maximum Enrollment: Salem’s Maximum Enrollment under the above financial terms
shall be a total of 300 students in any given month. In the event that East Lyme elects to
accept students from Salem beyond Salem’s Maximum Enrollment, the tuition rate for the
number in excess of 300 shall be established by the terms of this Agreement. In the event
East Lyme High School total enrollment, including Salem and external students, exceeds
1,500, without any new capacity created by expansion or renovation projects beyond the
construction project that was the subject of the 1999-2019 cooperative agreement, then
Salem’s Maximum Enrollment shall equal 20% of the total enrollment.

3.11 In-Year Transfers: In the event a Salem student ceases to reside in Salem while
attending East Lyme High School, Salem may elect to pay for that student to complete the
current semester. Such authorization shall be in writing and shall be submitted to the
ELBOE by the SBOE within 15 days after Salem’s Superintendent learns of the student’s
change of residence. If the SBOE elects not to be responsible for further payment, the
SBOE consents to allow the ELBOE to take any actions with respect to such students the
ELBOE deems necessary.

4.0 AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

4.1 This Agreement shall become effective when executed by both parties and shall
continue in effect for a period of twenty (20) years. This Agreement is effective from July 1,
2019 and shall continue through June 30, 2039.

4.2 On or before June 30, 2029, the parties will consider the extension of this Agreement
beyond June 30, 2039.

4.3 Either party may terminate this Agreement on June 30th of any year, by said party
giving written notice of termination to the other party at least one year prior to the effective
date of termination, as per Connecticut General Statues 10-158a.

4.4 Any penalty which may be imposed upon the parties by the State of Connecticut, the
State Board of Education, or other lawful authority for early termination of this Agreement
shall be paid by the party which terminated the Agreement.

4.5 If State-mandated enrollment of students from outside the Towns of Salem and East
Lyme prevents the attendance of all eligible Salem and East Lyme students, or if State-
mandated programs prevent Salem from fulfilling its minimum enrollment obligations, this



Agreement, including the payment schedules, will be reviewed and adjusted equitably so as
to maintain the integrity of as much of this Agreement as is possible.

4.6 After the termination of this Agreement, whether by action of a party or by lapse of
time, the Reconciliation Amount determined under section 3.7 shall be paid in monthly
installments beginning in September of the school year in which the payment is due.

4.7 The Agreement may need to be modified according to changes in state and federal laws.

4.8 The Agreement may be amended and/or extended only by written agreement between
the ELBOE and the SBOE.

4.9 During, or in preparation for the commencement of the Agreement, should any capital
projects, such as building renovations, additions, or construction, be necessary for the
execution of the terms of this Agreement, The ELBOE shall notify the SBOE of the need for
such project to execute the Agreement and shall initiate a request to call the Committee
together to discuss the need. Following the Committee’s review of the project, The SBOE
shall discuss the request for said project and respond in a timely fashion to the ELBOE
notification with one of the following:

a. A statement that the project is necessary to fulfill the Agreement and a
willingness to pay for a proportional share of the cost of said project, which shall be in
addition to its other financial commitments, as specified in section 3, Financial Provisions.
Such capital cost shall be added to the monthly payments otherwise due from the SBOE as a
part of this Agreement and shall be paid on the same terms and schedule as all other
payments provided for herein.

b. A request for negotiations on the matter of the shared cost. Should the ELBOE
and the SBOE fail to reach Agreement on the shared cost, the ELBOE shall cover the full
cost of the project and may give the Salem BOE notice that the ELBOE wishes to terminate
the Agreement not less than one full school year from the date of such notice.

5. MISCELLANEOUS

5.1 The high school building usage by either party shall be treated equally. It is understood
that Salem’s usage is limited to the high school facilities only and not the middle or
elementary school facilities.

5.2 Any and all disagreements arising under the terms and conditions of this Agreement
which cannot be resolved by the Cooperative Committee will be submitted for resolution to
the American Arbitration Association for binding arbitration, under the rules of the
Association.

EAST LYME BO FEDUCATION
By i £t 74 Date S——// 4/ 20/ b
/ r

SALEM BOARD OF EDUCATION
N A

By’:&ﬂ% Date 5'//4!//é
1

0



Appendix A.

East Lyme will provide all necessary special education services for Salem students
cligible under this Cooperative Agreement who attend East Lyme High School. East
Lyme will provide reasonable accommodations and appropriate special education and
related services in the least restrictive environment for students who are identified
consistent with state and federal law as requiring such accommodations and services.
It is understood, however, that East Lyme shail not be required to implement new
programs to provide for Salem exceptional students within its school program.
"Exceptional student" shall be defined as any Salem student who isin a program at East
Lyme High School and requires special programming or accommodations as a special
education student or a student accommodated under §504 or other state and federal
statutes. All initial placement, development of individual education programs (hereinafter
"IEP"Ss), subsequent IEP changes and manifestation determinations for exceptional
students shall be made by a duly designated planning: and placement team (hereinafter
"PPT"), or such other teams, if any, authorized by applicable state and/or federal statue,
chaired by East Lyme. Salem's Director of Special Programs shall be invited to attend
all such team meetings for exceptional students. All PPT/IEP procedures applicable to
East Lyme students shall apply to exceptional students, including scheduling, chairing
and otherwise providing for PPT meetings.

1. East Lyme staff will serve as case managers for exceptional students and will
prepare draft IEP documents, including proposed goals and objectives, for all PPT
meetings for exceptional students. East Lyme staff will also be responsible for the
preparation and dissemination of all final PPT/IEP documents following PPT
meetings. The Salem Superintendent of Schools, or his/her designee, will be sent a
copy of all such documents. Before the start of any PPT meetings for exceptional
students, Salem's Director of Special Programs will receive a copy of any draft
IEP documents.

2. East Lyme agrees to accept exceptional students and to prepare IEPs for them, if
the PPT, as referenced in Paragraph 1, above, determines that such exceptional
students may be appropriately educated in the least restrictive environment at
East Lyme High School, and to provide reasonable accommodations to
exceptional students in accordance with state and federal law. The parties
acknowledge, however, that the PPT may determine, consistent with state and
federal law, that certain exceptional students may not be able to be appropriately
educated in the least restrictive environment at the High School. In accordance
with the Agreement, Salem will be responsible for providing an education for these
students at Salem's sole cost. Legally constituted Planning and Placement
Teams, convened and chaired by East Lyme, with the opportunity for input
from those staff required by law from Salem and East Lyme, will make the
decisions for placement of exceptional students outside East Lyme High School,
or the return of previously outplaced exceptional students to East Lyme High
School. Programming for exceptional students who are placed outside East Lyme
shall be the responsibility of Salem,

11



Exceptional students shall be subject to all the same rules, regulations and
restrictions as East Lyme students attending the High School. It is specifically
understood that East Lyme shall have primary responsibility for the discipline of
all exceptional students pursuant to Section 10-233a et seq., as amended, of the
Connecticut General Statutes and consistent with state and federal laws govemning
the discipline of disabled students.

In any disciplinary matter that may result in the expulsion of an exceptional student,
East Lyme will provide Salem adequate written notice of the intent to take
such action or hold such meeting. Salem may designate a Board of Education
member and/or the Salem Superintendent to attend any meeting relating to such
disciplinary action. To the maximum extent allowed by law, this right to
attendance may extend to executive sessions or other meetings generally not open
to the public.

12



Stsp 1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Step 5

Appendix B.

East Lyme Public Schools

Summary of Salem Tuition Rate Calculation

Base Tuition Rate Calculation

Total Education Cost - Per ED001
Less: Total SPED cost

Total Base Enroliment Cost

X__ % of HS Students in district

Total Cost to run HS

Less: Transportation Cost

Total Cost to run HS, less Transportation

Number of HS Students

Total Cost per Pupil , less transportation

+ Surcharge - for services not included in ED001 (such as police, fire safety, etc.)

Total Cost per Pupil - Base Tuition Rate

Step 1

Step 2
Step 3

Step 4

HS Special Education Per Pupil Bage Rate

District Wide (DW) - SPED Costs

Less: 15% of Admin & Non-Cert. Salaries, Purchase Services & Equipment
Total DW Adjusted SPED costs

Number of Total DW SPED Students

HS - SPED Salary, Benefits & Supplies

Number of HS SPED Students
Cost Per Pupil - SPED

+ Surcharge

Total Cost Per Pupil - SPED

Step |

Premium Tuition Rate

Cost Per Pupil - Base Tuition Rate
Cost Per Pupil - SPED
Surcharge

Tota! Cost Per Pupil - SPED
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Appendix C.

Special Education Services

1. Special education services within the scope of practice of special education and
related services staff located at the school are included in the Cost Per Pupil —
Special Education Tuition Rate. These services include, but are not limited to:

Resource Room/Academic Support

Speech Language Therapy

Occupational Therapy

Physical Therapy

Counseling/Social Skills

Adaptive Physical Education

Therapeutic Program

Assistive Technology for TEP

Others deemed appropriate by the Planning and Placement Team meeting

These services will change from time to time as new technologies and remediation
programs are budgeted.

2. Students placed in specialized programs beyond the services provided above will be
billed at a rate for services. Specialized programs are defined as:

Medically Fragile Program
T.A.P. (Transition Alliance Program)

3. Services not included in #1 above may include:
Independent Educational Evaluations
Consultants specific to a student’s program
Extended Day
Extended School Year (ESY)
Specialized Nursing Services (tracheotomy, feeding tube, etc.)
FM equipment

14



BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION REQUEST
No.: 23-42 Date: June 5, 2023
Topic: New Business (D ) — Interim Tax Collection Plan

From: Joshua Kelly, Town Manager

Background: Due to the failed initial budget referendum, the Town does not yet know
what the final mill rate will be for FY 2024. Given this situation!, the Board of
Selectmen has two options:

1. Authorize the Tax Collector to issue 1% installment of personal property and real
estate bills for a mill rate (based on the new grand list) to levy taxes totaling last
year’s annual budget total (motor vehicle taxes must be deferred either way).

2. Defer the issuing of all property tax bills until after a budget has been formally
adopted.

There are pros and cons to each approach. Authorizing a partial bill to go out now will
mean that we have to issue a second tax bill once a new budget is adopted, something
that is costly to the Town and that nobody likes to see. Deferring the issuance of any
tax bill until after a budget has been formally adopted (or at least until a later date) will
impact cash flow. A quick review of funds by our Town Treasurer confirms we can
sustain the Town through at least August in this manner, perhaps September.

Requested Action: 1 ask that the Board of Selectmen take action on this matter. It is my
recommendation that the Board of Selectmen adopt Option #2 at the present time,
deferring the issuance of tax bills at least until after a second vote on the budget is held.

Fiscal Implications: Under State Statute, the Town has the right to levy property taxes
up to the mill rate as established by the Town of Winchester. Collection will be viable
whether two separate tax bills are issued or one tax bill is issued in a deferred manner.

Recommended Motion: “I move that the Board of Selectmen direct the Tax Collector to
defer the issuance of any tax bill until at least after a second referendum on the budget
can be held.”

Attachments: None.

L It is my recommendation that the Board of Selectmen consider including a specific
procedure in any future charter amendment so that this question does not have to be re-
answered by each new Board of Selectmen any time that a budget referendum fails.
Additionally, the current Charter forces a second budget referendum to occur, at the
earliest, in the last weeks of June, very close to the start of the new fiscal year. I
recommend that the Charter be examined for changes that would allow for a second
referendum to be held soomner.



BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION REQUEST
No.: 23-43 Date: June 05, 2023

Topic: New Business (E)- Refunds as Recommended by the Collector of Revenue
(with attachments)

From: Josh Kelly, Town Manaﬁer

Background: The Town Collector of Revenue has recommended that the refunds
described in the attached correspondence be authorized in accordance with Connecticut
General Statutes Section 12-129.

Requested Action: The Board of Selectmen should authorize the Town Manager to
approve the described refunds.

Fiscal Implications: The described refunds total $256.11
Manager’s Recommendation: 1 recommend that the Board of Selectmen authorize the
refunds recommended by the Collector of Revenue.

Recommended Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen authorize the refunds
recommended by the Collector of Revenue in the amount of $256.11.

Attachment:
Grand List MV 2019 Refunds
Grand List MV 2021 Refunds



Paae 1 of 1
The attached list represents taxes that have been corrected by authority of the provision of
Section 12-129 of the General Statutes, and by the Assessor or Public Works Director of the

Town of Winchester. The taxes/water and/or sewer amounts shown below have been paid
and requests received for refunds of the same.

LIST#GL YR TAX TYPE TAXPAYER AMOUNT OF REFUND/REASON
51134 2021 MV PETER $111.63
BROWN PO BOX 263 COFC
RIVERTON, CT 06065 o
60040 2019 MV RYAN $1 2.21
EULLERTO 12 MANCHESTER HEIGHTS OVERPAYMENT
~ WINSTED, CT 06098 o o o
80820 2021 MV DAVID $132.27
LAPOINTE 11 HILLSIDE AVE COFC
~ WINSTED, CT 06098 .
MV TOTAL REFUNDS BY TYPE $256.11
NUMBER OF REFUNDS 3 TOTAL REFUNDS $256.11

It is recommended that refunds in the amount as stated above be made to the taxpayers listed, in accordance with the
provisions of said General Statutes, Section 12-129.

6/1/2023
B - . Aattey Nebaey
Date of Report Ashley Kelsey, Gollector of Rgvenue

APPROVED FOR PAYMENT:
DATED: Town Manager

| have received from Town Accountant the above checks to cover the refunds as stated above.

Date: Collector of Revenue



BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION REQUEST
No.: 23-44 Date: June 05, 2023
Topic: New Business (F) - Proposed Line-Item Transfers (with attachment)

From: Joshua Kelly, Town Manager

Background: The Town of Winchester Charter (as amended) provides for the
intra-departmental transfer of funds:

Section 914.

INTRA-DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS Upon the
request of the Manager, but only within the last three (3) months of the fiscal
year, the Board of Selectmen may, by resolution, transfer any unencumbered
appropriation, balance, or portion thereof, from one department, commission,
board, or office to another. No transfer shall be made from any appropriation
for debt service and other statutory charges. Notwithstanding the above, no
transfer shall be made from any appropriation for an uncompleted capital
improvement or from a department sinking fund without approval of the Town
acting by referendum.

Requested Action: The Board of Selectmen should consider the proposed line- item
transfers.

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a
transfer of funds to cover FY23 year-end deficits.

Fiscal Implications:

FROM: Town Manager (111)

Line Description Amount

111-811-0000 Training & Education $328.00
Total $328.00
TO: Town Manager (111)

Line Description Amount
111-806-0000 Office Supplies $286.00
111-808-0000 Office Equipment $42.00

Total $328.00

Recommended Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer
of 8328.00 from (111-811-0000) Training & Education to $286.00 (111-806-0000) Office
Supplies, $42.00 (111-808-0000) Office Equipmentl.

el — - =

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a
transfer of funds to cover charges for Membership dues.

Fiscal Implications: none
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FUND TRANSFERS - TOWN OF WINCHESTER

Date prepared: 5/18/2023

1. DEPARTMENT REQUESTING TRANSFER 111 - Town Manager
2. TOTAL AMOUNT & FISCAL YEAR OF TRANSFER $328 FY 2023
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED FROM: Fund: DEPT# OBIJECT# OBIJECT# AMOUNTS
Training & Education 1 111 811 0000 $328
Total $328
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED TO: DEPT# OBIJECT# OBJECT# AMOUNTS
Office Supplies 1 111 806 0000 $286
Purchase/Maintenance Office Equipment 1 111 808 0000 $42
Total $328

3. REASON FOR REQUEST AND HOW SOURCE ACCOUNT CAN WITHSTAND TRANSFER:
(ANTICIPATED ITEMIZED EXPENDITURE WHICH REQUIRES INCREASE FUNDING)

Office Supply and Purchase/Maintenance Office Equipment lines are overburdened due to inflation related to supplies and
equipment. Some small relief is needed in these lines to carry us through the year. The Training & Education line has

not been totally expended due to the business of Town Hall this year and my inability to get all trainings
scheduled.

4. REQUESTING DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:

6?% 5/73/23

5. DIRECTOR OF FINANCE VERIFICATION OF FUNDING SOURCE'S ABILITY
TO FUND THIS REQUEST:

@W) shqlacas

6. TOWN MANAGER'S APPROVAL AND RECOMMENDATION:
(PER SECTIONS 914 AND 915 OF TOWN CHARTER) FURTHER COMMENTS:

e 5/75r%3

7. DATE SUBMITTED TO BOARD OF SELECTMEN é/é-/ﬂ >

8. DATE APPROVED BY BOARD OF SELECTMEN

CC: Town Manager, Director of Finance, Purchasing Director, Department Requesting Fund Transfer




BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION REQUEST
No.: 23-45 Date: June 05, 2023
Topic: New Business (G) - Proposed Line-Item Transfers (with attachment)

From: Joshua Kelly, Town Manager

Background: The Town of Winchester Charter (as amended) provides for the
intra-departmental transfer of funds:

Section 914.

INTRA-DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS Upon the
request of the Manager, but only within the last three (3) months of the fiscal
year, the Board of Selectmen may, by resolution, transfer any unencumbered
appropriation, balance, or portion thereof, from one department, commission,
board, or office to another. No transfer shall be made from any appropriation
for debt service and other statutory charges. Notwithstanding the above, no
transfer shall be made from any appropriation for an uncompleted capital
improvement or from a department sinking fund without approval of the Town
acting by referendum.

Requested Action: The Board of Selectmen should consider the proposed line- item
transfers.

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a
transfer of funds to cover FY23 year-end deficits.

Fiscal Implications:

FROM: Community Planning & Development (148)

Line Description Amount

148-898-0000 Software $833.00
Total $833.00
TO: Community Planning & Development (148)

Line Description Amount
148-197-0000 Overtime $382.00
148-811-0000 Training & Equipment $414.00
148-819-0000 Vehicle Allowance $37.00

Total $833.00

Recommended Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer
of $833.00 (148-898-0000) Software to $382.00 (148-197-0000) Overtime, $§414.00 (148-
811-0000) Training & Equipment and $37.00 (148-819-0000) Vehicle Allowance.

= = a2 —

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a
transfer of funds to cover charges for Membership dues.

Fiscal Implications: none
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FUND TRANSFERS - TOWN OF WINCHESTER

Date prepared: 6/1/2023

1. DEPARTMENT REQUESTING TRANSFER 148-Community Planning and Development
2. TOTAL AMOUNT & FISCAL YEAR OF TRANSFER $833 FY 2023
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED FROM: Fund: DEPT# OBIJECT# OBJECT# AMOUNTS
Software 1 148 898 0000 $833

Total $833
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED TO: DEPT# OBIECT# OBJECT# AMOUNTS
Overtime 1 148 197 0000 $382
Training and Education 1 148 811 0000 $414
Vehicle Allowance 1 148 819 0000 $37

Total $833

3. REASON FOR REQUEST AND HOW SOURCE ACCOUNT CAN WITHSTAND TRANSFER:
(ANTICIPATED ITEMIZED EXPENDITURE WHICH REQUIRES INCREASE FUNDING)

Overtime was used by Pam while staffing committees.

Travel was required to and from training sessions.
Vehicle Allowance was unbudgeted.

4. REQUESTING DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:

5. DIRECTOR OF FINANCE VERIFICATION OF FUNDING SOURCE'S ABILITY
TO FUND THIS REQUEST: _

Qj@ olirois

6. TOWN MANAGER'S APPROVAL AND RECOMMENDATION:
(PER SECTIONS 914 AND 915 OF TOWN CHARTER) FURTHER COMMENTS:

T

7. DATE SUBMITTED TO BOARD OF SELECTMEN

8. DATE APPROVED BY BOARD OF SELECTMEN

CC: Town Manager, Director of Finance, Purchasing Director, Department Requesting Fund Transfer



BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION REQUEST

No.: 23-46

Date: June 05, 2023

Topic: New Business (H) - Proposed Line-Item Transfers (with attachment)

From: Joshua Kelly, Town Manager

Background: The Town of Winchester Charter (as amended) provides for the

intra-departmental transfer of funds:

Section 914.

INTRA-DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS Upon the
request of the Manager, but only within the last three (3) months of the fiscal
year, the Board of Selectmen may, by resolution, transfer any unencumbered
appropriation, balance, or portion thereof, from one department, commission,
board, or office to another. No transfer shall be made from any appropriation
for debt service and other statutory charges. Notwithstanding the above, no
transfer shall be made from any appropriation for an uncompleted capital
improvement or from a department sinking fund without approval of the Town

acting by referendum.

Requested Action: The Board of Selectmen should consider the proposed line- item

transfers.

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a

transfer of funds to cover FY23 year-end deficits.
Fiscal Implications: none

FROM: Building Department (213)

Line Description Amount
213-806-0000 Office Supplies $750.00
213-809-0000 Maintenance of Office Equipment $750.00
213-811-0000 Training & Education $1,000.00
213-814-0000 Memberships, Dues, & $500.00

Subscriptions
213-821-0000 Maintenance of Vehicles $1,241.00
213-823-0000 Supplies & Materials $500.00
213-830-0001 Demolition of Buildings $4,000.00
Total $8,741.00

TO: Building Department (213)

Line Description Amount
213-193-0000 Secretarial/Support Staff $8,741.00

Total $8,741.00

Recommended Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer
of $750.00 from (213-806-0000) Office Supplies, 8750.00 (213-809-0000) Maintenance
of Office Equipment, $1000.00 (213-813-0000)Training & Education , §500.00 (213-811-
0000) Memberships, Dues& Subscriptions,$1,241.00 (213-821-0000) Maintenance of
Vehicles, $500.00 (213-823-0000) Supplies & Materials, 34,000.00 (213-830-0001)
Demolition of Buildings to (213-193-0000) Secretarial/Support Staff in the amount of

$38,741.00.
e =S

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a

transfer of funds to cover charges for Membership dues.
Page 1 of 2




Fiscal Implications: none
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FUND TRANSFERS - TOWN OF WINCHESTER

Date prepared: 6/1/2023

1. DEPARTMENT REQUESTING TRANSFER 213-Building Department
2. TOTAL AMOUNT & FISCAL YEAR OF TRANSFER $8,741 FY 2023
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED FROM: Fund: DEPT# OBJECT# OBJECT# AMOUNTS
Office Supplies 1 213 806 0000 $750
Maintenance of Office Equipment 1 213 809 0000 $750
Training and Education 1 213 811 0000 $1,000
Membership, Dues, and Subscriptions 1 213 814 0000 $500
Maintenance of Vehicles 1 213 821 0000 $1,241
Supplies and Materials 1 213 823 0000 $500
Demolition of Buildings 1 213 830 0001 $4,000

Total $8,741
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED TO: DEPT# OBIJECT# OBJECT# AMOUNTS
Secretarial/Support Staff 1 213 193 0000 $8,741

Total $8.741

3. REASON FOR REQUEST AND HOW SOURCE ACCOUNT CAN WITHSTAND TRANSFER:
(ANTICIPATED ITEMIZED EXPENDITURE WHICH REQUIRES INCREASE FUNDING)

Part-time work was required to assist Bill.

4. REQUESTING DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:

s

5. DIRECTOR OF FINANCE VERIFICATION OF FUNDING SOURCE'S ABILITY
TO FUND THIS REQUEST:

@ws whilwow

6. TOWN MANAGER'S APPROVAL AND RECOMMENDATION:
(PER SECTIONS 914 AND 915 OF TOWN CHARTER) FURTHER COMMENTS:

7. DATE SUBMITTED TO BOARD OF SELECTMEN

8. DATE APPROVED BY BOARD OF SELECTMEN

CC: Town Manager, Director of Finance, Purchasing Director, Department Requesting Fund Transfer



BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION REQUEST
No.: 23-47 Date: June 05, 2023
Topic: New Business (I) - Proposed Line-Item Transfers (with attachment)

From: Joshua Kelly, Town Manager

Background: The Town of Winchester Charter (as amended) provides for the
intra-departmental transfer of funds:

Section 914.

INTRA-DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS Upon the
request of the Manager, but only within the last three (3) months of the fiscal
year, the Board of Selectmen may, by resolution, transfer any unencumbered
appropriation, balance, or portion thereof, from one department, commission,
board, or office to another. No transfer shall be made from any appropriation
for debt service and other statutory charges. Notwithstanding the above, no
transfer shall be made from any appropriation for an uncompleted capital
improvement or from a department sinking fund without approval of the Town
acting by referendum.

Requested Action: The Board of Selectmen should consider the proposed line- item
transfers.

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a
transfer of funds to cover FY23 year-end deficits.

Fiscal Implications:

FROM: Recreation (812)

Line Description Amount

812-194-0000 General Labor $1005.00
Total $1005.00
TO: Recreation (812))

Line Description Amount
812-900-0002 Fringe Benefits-Medical Benefits $1,000.00
812-814-0000 Membership, Dues & Subscriptions $5.00

Total $1005.00

Recommended Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer
of $1005.00 from (812-194-0000) General Labor to (812-900-0002) Fringe Benefits-
Medical Benefits in the amount of $1,000.00, and (812-814-0000) Membership, Dues &
Subscriptions in the amount of $5.00.

s e e ———
In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a
transfer of funds to cover charges for Membership dues.

Fiscal Implications: none
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FUND TRANSFERS - TOWN OF WINCHESTER

Date prepared: 5/12/2023

1. DEPARTMENT REQUESTING TRANSFER 812-Recreation
2. TOTAL AMOUNT & FISCAL YEAR OF TRANSFER $1,005 FY 2023
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED FROM: Fund: DEPT# OBJECT# OBJECT# AMOUNTS
General Labor 1 812 194 0000 $1,005
Total $1,005
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED TO: DEPT# OBIJECT# OBJECT# AMOUNTS
Fringe Benefits - Medical Benefits 1 812 900 0002 $1,000
Membership, Dues, and Subscriptions 1 812 814 0000 $5
Total $1,005

3. REASON FOR REQUEST AND HOW SOURCE ACCOUNT CAN WITHSTAND TRANSFER:
(ANTICIPATED ITEMIZED EXPENDITURE WHICH REQUIRES INCREASE FUNDING)

Tanya receives a $1,000 stipend per the supervisor contract that was unbudgeted.
CT Parks and Rec Association due went up $5.

4. REQUESTING DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:

5. DIRECTOR OF FINANCE VERIFICATION OF FUNDING SOURCE'S ABILITY
TO FUND THIS REQUEST:

@%—wﬁd‘ wh 1022

6. TOWN MANAGER'S APPROVAL AND RECOMMENDATION:
(PER SECTIONS 914 AND 915 OF TOWN CHARTER) FURTHER COMMENTS:

T iz

7. DATE SUBMITTED TO BOARD OF SELECTM.

8. DATE APPROVED BY BOARD OF SELECTMEN

CC: Town Manager, Director of Finance, Purchasing Director, Department Requesting Fund Transfer



BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION REQUEST

No.: 23-48

Topic: New Business (J) - Proposed Line-Item Transfers (with attachment)

From: Joshua Kelly, Town Manager

Date: June 05, 2023

Background: The Town of Winchester Charter (as amended) provides for the
intra-departmental transfer of funds:

Section 914.

INTRA-DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS Upon the
request of the Manager, but only within the last three (3) months of the fiscal
year, the Board of Selectmen may, by resolution, transfer any unencumbered
appropriation, balance, or portion thereof, from one department, commission,
board, or office to another. No transfer shall be made from any appropriation
for debt service and other statutory charges. Notwithstanding the above, no
transfer shall be made from any appropriation for an uncompleted capital
improvement or from a department sinking fund without approval of the Town

acting by referendum.

Requested Action: The Board of Selectmen should consider the proposed line- item

transfers.

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a
transfer of funds to cover FY23 year-end deficits.

Fiscal Implications:

FROM: Senior Center (813)
Line

813-820-0000 Vehicle:

TO: Senior Center (813))
Line
813-822-0000 Electrici

Description

813-197-0000 Overtime

Gas, Oil & Grease

813-821-0000 Maintenance of Vehicles
813-800-0001 Healthy Aging Programs
813-841-0000 Celebrations

Description
ty

813-806-0000 Office Supplies
813-827-0000 Maintenance of Structures

Total

Total

Amount
$3,000.00
$2,000.00
$2,500.00
$1,500.00
$1,000.00

$10,000.00

Amount
$3,000.00
$2,000.00
$5,000.00

$10,000.00

Recommended Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen approve the line-item transfer
of $3,000.00 from (813-197-0000) Overtime, $2,000.00(813-820-0000) Vehicle: Gas, Oil
and Grease, $2,500.00 (813-821-0000) Vehicle Maintenance, 31,500.00 (813-800-0001)
Healthy Aging Programs and $1,000.00 (813-841-0000) Celebrations to $3,0000.00 (813-
822-0000) Electricity, $2,000.00 (813-806-0000) Office Supplies, and $5,000.00 (813-
827-0000 Maintenance of Structures.

e e —

In accordance with Section 914, Finance Director Ann Marie Rheault has requested a

transfer of funds to cover ch

Fiscal Implications: none

arges for Membership dues.
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FUND TRANSFERS - TOWN OF WINCHESTER

Date prepared: 6/1/2023

1. DEPARTMENT REQUESTING TRANSFER 813-Senior Center Family Services
2. TOTAL AMOUNT & FISCAL YEAR OF TRANSFER $10,000 FY 2023
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED FROM: Fund: DEPT# OBJECT# OBIJECT# AMOUNTS
Overtime 1 813 197 0000 $3.000
Vehicle: Gas, Oil, and Grease 1 813 820 0000 $2,000
Maintenance of Vehicles 1 813 821 0000 $2.500
Healthy Aging Programs 1 813 800 0001 $1,500
Celebrations 1 813 841 0000 $1,000

Total $10,000
ACCOUNT(S) TRANSFERRED TO: DEPT# OBJECT# OBJECT# AMOUNTS
Electricity 1 813 822 0000 $3.000
Office Supplies 1 813 806 0000 $2,000
Maintenance of Structures 1 813 827 0000 $5,000

Total $10,000

3. REASON FOR REQUEST AND HOW SOURCE ACCOUNT CAN WITHSTAND TRANSFER:
(ANTICIPATED ITEMIZED EXPENDITURE WHICH REQUIRES INCREASE FUNDING)

Market prices for electricity fuel surged throughout 2023 causing an overage.
Funding reallocation is requested for more office supplies.

Funding reallocation is requested for office carpeting, tree maintenance, emergency response buttons, and automatic bathroom doors.

4. REQUESTING DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:

5. DIRECTOR OF FINANCE VERIFICATION OF FUNDING SOURCE'S ABILITY
TO FUND THIS REQUEST:

LRGP Wl o

6. TOWN MANAGER'S APPROVAL AND RECOMMENDATION:
(PER SECTIONS 914 AND 915 OF TOWN CHARTER) FURTHER COMMENTS:

7. DATE SUBMITTED TO BOARD OF SELECTMEN

8. DATE APPROVED BY BOARD OF SELECTMEN

CC: Town Manager, Director of Finance, Purchasing Director, Department Requesting Fund Transfer



WINSTED
Sesrtior

CENTER

Happy, Healthy & Safe Adults Age 55+
80 Holabird Avenue, Winsted, CT 06098, 860-379-4252

To: Board of Selectmen

From: Jennifer Kelley, Winsted Senior Center Director & Municipal Agent
Subject: Director’'s Report

Meeting Date: June 5, 2023

Listed below you will find a list of program and services that were provided by the
Winsted Senior Center during May 2023. If you have any questions, please email me at
ikelley@townofwinchester.org.

May 2023
Finances:
Budget: $205,470.00
YTD Actual: $171,486.00

Percentage Spent:  86.2%

Arts and Crafts Class: 26 members participated in the soapmaking class.

Celebrations: 55 members attended the Mother’s Day luncheon with entertainment and 50
members attended the Memorial Day luncheon including Chief Chris and 3 officers at the
Center.

Community Health & Wellness Wednesday: Our new monthly program started. 8 members
attended “Covid’s Ugly Head” presentation.

Drumming Circle: 36 members participated in four classes.

Fitness Classes: 37 classes were held with 180 members participating.

Friday BINGO: 68 people attended our weekly Friday afternoon games on 3 afternoons.
Friendly Hands Food Bags: 143 bags were distributed to the 6 elderly housing sites, the Y
shelter and Winsted Senior Center.

Hartford HealthCare Neighborhood Health Clinic: 3 member and community residents were
seen for various medical services including Covid vaccines, flu shots, shingles, tetanus and
pneumonia shots.

Healthy Cooking Classes: 7 members participated in our monthly class.

Lunches Served: 660 Grab & Go and Sit-Down lunches were served on 19 days.

Membership: 335 older adults age 55+ have paid dues or are lifetime members this year.
Senior Center Van: 139 rides were provided on 16 days.

Trips: 16 members traveled the Log Cabin, Holyoke, MA for a luncheon and The Andrews Sisters
show. 8 members traveled to Chili’s Restaurant, Bristol, CT for a special lunch out.

Update: Director attended NCOA (National Council on Aging) Older Adult Mental Health
Symposium by ZOOM; Fit Together board meeting; and CHWC board meeting; and hosted local
directors meeting (Colebrook, New Hartford and Barkhamsted). Director was informed by the
State Unit on Aging that WSC is eligible to receive $37,475 in State ARPA money so getting
estimates for a new roof to add solar panels; automatic doors for restrooms; and personal
emergency response buttons for staff in various locations in the building.

/CZLLL&d/

Respectfully,

Jennifer Kelley
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Town of Winchester

CCM Discount Prescription Drug Program

2023/2022/2021

2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2023
2023

Jan-21
Feb-21
Mar-21
Apr-21
May-21
Jun-21
Jul-21
Aug-21
Sep-21
Oct-21
Nov-21
Dec-21
Year Total:
Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22
Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Jul-22
Aug-22
Sep-22
Oct-22
Nov-22
Dec-22

Year Total:
Jan-23
Feb-23

Year Total:

7 3 $164.89 $23.56 $39.06 $5.58 19%
13 5 $354.11 $27.24 $53.98 $4.15 13%
16 5 $483.36 $30.21 $182.21 $11.39 27%
11 5 $251.36 $22.85 $90.30 $8.21 26%
11 5 $344.55 $31.32 $97.85 $8.90 22%
16 6 $582.27 $36.39 $242.28 $15.14 29%
10 4 $322.17 $32.22 $118.20 $11.82 27%
14 5 $432.73 $30.91 $144.84 $10.35 25%
10 5 $318.03 $31.80 $133.78 $13.38 30%
13 6 $412.07 $31.70 $155.08 $11.93 27%
10 6 $304.16 $30.42 $164.06 $16.41 35%
9 5 $237.47 $26.39 $114.40 $12.71 33%
$4,207.17 $1,536.04
10 4 $371.12 $37.11 $199.20 $19.92 35%
9 5 $119.85 $13.32 $11.17 $1.24 9%
8 4 $154.86 $19.36 $85.52 $10.69 36%
6 3 $134.93 $22.49 $84.42 $14.07 38%
6 2 $122.77 $20.46 $98.38 $16.40 44%
7 2 $146.03 $20.86 $151.21 $21.60 51%
6 2 $164.13 $27.36 $178.32 $29.72 52%
6 2 $105.43 $17.57 $104.71 $17.45 50%
5 1 $100.80 $20.16 $130.36 $26.07 56%
6 1 $265.80 $44.30 $127.45 $21.24 32%
6 2 $248.89 $41.48 $124.16 $20.69 33%
5 1 $92.78 $18.56 $98.38 $19.68 51%
$2,027.39 $1,393.28
6 2 $98.41 $16.40 $99.74 $16.62 50%
6 2 $244.75 $40.79 $116.40 $19.40 32%

4
1,695

$343.16
$131,345.83

$28.60
$43.31

$216.14
$118,390.64

$18.01
$39.03

39%
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER - CITY OF WINSTED
Town Hall — 338 Main Street
WINSTED, CONNECTICUT 06098

January 27, 2023

Honorable Mayor Todd Arcelaschi
Members of The Board of Selectmen
Town Manager Joshua Kelly

Citizens of the Town of Winchester

The Finance Department is pleased to transmit the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
(ACFR) of the Town of Winchester for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The report includes
the independent auditors’ report as required by the Town Charter and the Connecticut Statutes.
The report is prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and
standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish, within 6 months of the
close of each fiscal year, a complete set of audited financial statements. This report is published
to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based on a comprehensive framework of internal control that has been
established for this purpose. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met, including producing financial statements that
are free of any material misstatements. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that
the cost of internal control should not exceed the anticipated benefits.

King, King & Associates, CPAs have issued an unqualified opinion on the Town of Winchester’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The independent auditor’s report is
located at the front of the financial section of this report.

State and federal “single audits” were also performed as required by state and federal law,
respectively. The purpose of these audits is to determine whether the Town of Winchester
complied with the laws and regulations and applicable compliance requirements of the major
state and federal assistance programs, and whether the Town maintained controls to assure
compliance.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). The MD&A is designed to complement this transmittal letter and should be read in
conjunction with it. The Town's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

The Town of Winchester is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.
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Profile of the Town of Winchester

The Town of Winchester, located in Litchfield County, is a political subdivision located
approximately thirty miles northwest of Hartford in the watersheds of the Farmington and
Naugatuck Rivers. It is bordered on the north by the Town of Colebrook, on the south by the
City of Torrington, on the east by the Town of Barkhamsted, and on the west by the Towns of
Norfolk and Goshen. It covers a land area of approximately thirty-four square miles. What is
commonly referred to as the City of Winsted is located within the Town of Winchester, but there
exists no separate government or other political distinction (the terms “Winchester’ and
“Winsted” are used interchangeably by area residents). Winchester was first settled in 1732 and
incorporated as a Town in 1771.

The Town sits at the crossroads of U.S. Route 44 and State Route 8. State Routes 20, 183 and
263 also traverse the Town. The Town has approximately eighty miles of Town roads, of which
approximately seventy-six miles are paved. State-controlled and maintained roads account for
an additional twenty-three miles.

The Town of Winchester is governed under a home-rule charter, as amended in 2019, that
provides a Manager/Selectmen/Town Meeting form of government with a seven-member Board
of Selectmen that also serves as the Board of Finance. Elections for the Board of Selectmen are
held in November in every odd-numbered year. The residents also have the powers and
privileges conferred and granted to Towns and Cities under the Constitution and the General
Statutes of the State of Connecticut.

The Town Manager is the full-time Chief Executive and Administrative Officer of the Town and
oversees the execution of all laws and ordinances governing the Town. The First Selectman, or
officially titled “Mayor,” presides over the Board of Selectmen and has full voting privileges on
the Board. The Board of Selectmen appoints members to various commissions and boards.

The Town’s annual Budget Meeting is held on the second Monday in May. Prior to adjournment
to Budget Referendum, the electors at the Budget Meeting review the budget as presented by
the Board of Selectmen and have the power to decrease, but not increase, any line-item of the
budget. The Budget Meeting is then adjourned to a referendum for approval. The approved
budget serves as the foundation for the Town’s financial planning and control.

The Town provides a full range of services, including general government operations; police and
fire protection; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets and other infrastructure;
health and welfare services; cultural and recreational activities; economic development support;
and education. Water and wastewater treatment and distribution are under the control of an
independent Water and Sewer Commission (appointed by the Board of Selectmen).

Factors Affecting Financial Condition
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is

considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town of
Winchester operates.

The Town of Winchester is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.
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Economic Condition and Outlook

Winchester is primarily a residential community with single-family homes. Most residents are
employed in the manufacturing, education, health and social services categories. Recent data
from the CT Data Collaborative indicates that Winchester's 2016-2020 median household
income was $63,882, as compared to the State of Connecticut's $79,855. The Town’s
population as of July 2021 was 10,217 according to State of Connecticut Department of Health
statistics.

In accordance with State of Connecticut statutes, the Town conducted a property revaluation in
2017. The next scheduled revaluation including a physical inspection of all properties, which
was not part of the 2017 revaluation, is slated for the October 2022 grant list.

As of June 30, 2022 the Town’s unassigned General Fund balance was $7,890,117, which
represents 23.0 percent of fiscal year 2022 General Fund expenditures. Moody’s Investor
Services assigned an Issuer Rating of A1 to the Town on September 6, 2019.

In fiscal year 2022, the Town spent $278,299 on approved projects utilizing American Rescue
Plan Act funds.

Major Initiatives
Land Use and Zoning Regulations

The Planning and Zoning Commission adopted in 2016 a complete revision of its zoning
regulations, which are expected to encourage economic growth through increased clarity and
modernization. In 2022, town staff and a working group of the Board of Selectmen reviewed
those regulations and the Town’s Inland Wetland regulations and ordinances, and converted
them to a uniform, searchable format online; that new online ordinance and regulation portal is
expected to go live in fiscal year 2023. Likewise, in fiscal year 2022 the Town began
implementation of a new online permitting portal which will allow residents to submit land use
permit applications online and track the progress of their approval process in real time. In
August 2021, the Town also hired a full-time Enforcement Officer to ensure that the adopted
regulations are enforced and applied evenly across town and to help the Town’s land use
regulatory agencies better review, comprehend, and act on applications that are submitted to
them.

Economic Development

The Economic Development Commission is committed to expanding the Town's commercial
and industrial base and constantly looks for opportunities to create readily marketable properties
in the Town'’s industrial and commercial zoned areas, including the adaptive reuse of former mill
sites. In fiscal year 2022, the Town hired a part-time Director of Economic Development to
pursue these efforts more vigorously.

The Town is pursuing grants for property development, facilities improvements, and recreational
funding. In 2016, the Town was awarded $1.5 million to extend the Sue Grossman Trail, a bike
and pedestrian greenway, into the downtown area, and the Town is expected to complete that
work in FY 2023.

The Town of Winchester is an equal opportunity prbvider, employer and lender.
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In FY 2022, the Town applied for and was awarded a $1.8 million grant from the State of
Connecticut for the reinvigoration of the Town’s Main Street pedestrian areas, namely near the
intersection of Main Street and Bridge Street. This grant will allow for the reconstruction of
Bridge Street, the replacement of many damaged sidewalks, and more.

Regional Outreach

The Town is a member of the regional planning organization, the Northwest Hills Council of
Governments (NHCOG). A popular and effective program among the twenty-one member towns
is the Public Works Equipment Cooperative, which enables member towns to share pieces of
heavy-duty equipment related to public works activities. The Town currently works hand-in-hand
with neighboring towns in emergency situations through mutual aid agreements and the Town
has also established shared service agreements for the Fire Marshal and Economic
Development personnel to the Town of Barkhamsted.

Brownfields

In 2015 the Town was awarded $600,000 in State of Connecticut grants for brownfield
assessment and remediation of a long-vacant and deteriorating town-controlled site: $100,000
was funded by the Department of Community and Economic Development's Municipal
Brownfield Assessment and Inventory (MBAI) program, and the remaining $500,000 was
received from the Office of Policy and Management’s Small Town Economic Assistance
Program (STEAP). The remediation of this property, now known as Winsted Edgeworks, is
complete. The site now hosts a local craft brewery and pub at 32 Lake Street, and the Town has
approved Zoning and Inland Wetlands permits for that business to expand and for other
businesses to be developed at the site. The State of Connecticut $1.8 million award to the Town
in fiscal year 2022 also provides a small amount of money for the remediation of brownfields at
35 Willow Street, a building that was recently purchased by a local businessman who hopes to
turn it into a new center of business.

Development

During the fiscal year, the Town saw the opening of more than twenty businesses in and around
Main Street. Through the American Rescue Plan Act funds and a previously obtained Building
Healthier Communities Grant from Hartford Healthcare, the Town was able to offer $250,000 in
Facade Improvement Forgivable Loans and $100,000 in Business Start-Up Forgivable Loans
that have tremendously helped the Town’s economic development in its downtown core.

Labor Contracts

During the fiscal year, the Town drafted agreements with both the UPSEU Supervisors Union
and the UPSEU Clerical Union that are expected to be adopted in FY 2023.

Infrastructure

Since July 2016, the Town has reconstructed and/or resurfaced more than 13 miles of local
roads. In May 2022, voters at referendum approved the borrowing of up to $24.7 million for the
reconstruction of approximately 20 different roads and bridges over the next five years and
allocating funds for the replacement of the Town’s ladder truck, $600,000 in sidewalk repairs
and replacement, and $1 million for improvements to drainage around Highland Lake.

The Town of Winchester is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.
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In September 2019 Town residents approved a $17.4 million referendum to renovate the Mary
P. Hinsdale School with $7 million of that cost being funded by the State of Connecticut. During
the fiscal year the Hinsdale School Renovation Committee awarded a construction contract for
the renovation and authorized architectural planning for the project. Groundbreaking occurred in
May 2021 and the project is targeted for completion in time to receive students for the 2022-
2023 school year.

Budgetary Controls

Under the direction of the Director of Finance, the Town continues to review and revise its
budgetary controls, and has implemented other changes, policies, and procedures
recommended by the independent auditor and other State and Federal regulatory agencies. The
objective of budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the electors at referendum. Budget administration is
performed by the Town Manager and the Director of Finance. The budget is legally enacted at
the department expenditure level, which serves as a management tool, budgetary control is
maintained at the department level. This is achieved through the use of a full encumbrance
system, which encumbers appropriations upon the issuance of purchase orders.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are recorded as budgetary expenditures and reported
as a reservation of the fund balance at June 30. Transfers within a department may be made
during the fiscal year upon approval by the Board of Selectmen. Transfers between
departments can only be made during the last three months of the fiscal year, once again, with
approval by the Board of Selectmen. Management cannot amend the budget.

Fiduciary Fund Operation

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds that the Town holds in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals or organizations. The Town of Winchester Town Employees’ Pension Trust
Fund is used to account for contributions, pension benefits and other costs that are associated
with the operations of the pension plan.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the hard work of the
Department of Finance, including Treasurer Cynthia Rines, other Town staff and Nancy O'Dea-
Wyrick, Director of Finance and Business Services for the Winchester Board of Education. |
would also like to thank the Board of Selectmen for its continued support in planning and
conducting the financial operations of the Town in a responsible and professional manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Ann Marie Rheault
Director of Finance

The Town of Winchester is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Winchester, Connecticut

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Winchester,
Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Winchester, Connecticut's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Winchester, Connecticut, as of June 30,
2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Winchester,
Connecticut and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of
Winchester, Connecticut's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the
financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.

SERVING BUSINESSES, INDIVIDUALS, NONPROFITS AND GOVERNMENTS

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Connecticut Society of Certified Public Accountants
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Winchester, Connecticut's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Winchester, Connecticut’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension and OPEB
schedules on pages 11-19 and 68-79 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Winchester, Connecticut's basic financial statements. The
accompanying combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and other supplemental
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and other supplemental
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor’'s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
27, 2023, on our consideration of the Town of Winchester, Connecticut’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Winchester, Connecticut’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Winchester,
Connecticut’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

%W é,_f@oaméw

King, King & Associates, P.C., CPAs
Winsted, CT
January 27, 2023
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

As management of the Town of Winchester, we offer readers of the Town of Winchester’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Winchester for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of the Town of Winchester exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $87,454,755 (net position). Governmental activities reflect an unrestricted net
position in the amount of $1,410,013 available to be used to meet ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. Business-type activities have an unrestricted net position of $3,599,631.

e The government's total net position including business-type activities increased by $8,417,088.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Winchester's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $15,202,683, a decrease of $2,844,178 in
comparison with the prior year.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned and total fund balances for the General Fund
were $7,890,117 and $9,549,942, respectively.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Winchester's basic
financial statements. The Town of Winchester's basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of Winchester’s finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town of Winchester's assets and
deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as a useful indicator whether the financial position of the Town of Winchester is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position is
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
future cash inflows (revenues) and outflows (expenditures).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of Winchester that
are principally supported by grants and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Town of Winchester include
education, public safety, general government and public works.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 20-21 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of
Winchester, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town of Winchester can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town of Winchester maintains twenty-eight (28) individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Sewer
Assessment Fund, Federal and State Education Grants Fund, ARPA Fund, Water & Sewer Capital
Improvements Fund, and Hinsdale Renovation Project. Data from the other governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregate presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Town of Winchester adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-25 of this report.
Proprietary Funds: The Town maintains two proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same
type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water Pollution Control Authority.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town of Winchester's own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-30 of this report.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the financial statements can be found on pages 31-67 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial

position. In the case of the Town of Winchester, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $87,454,755 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Current and Other Assets  $ 23,508,417 $ 23,707,425 $ 3,940,632 $ 3,904,287 $§ 27,449,049 $ 27611712
Capital Assets 60,175,358 49,904,392 25,675,056 25,379,877 85,850,414 75,284,269

Total Assets 83,683,775 73,611,817 29,615,688 29,284,164 113,299,463 102,895,981

Deferred Outflows

of Resources 3,297,085 2,798,727 - 9,858 3,297,085 2,808,585
Long-term Liabilities 17,227,391 18,513,732 341,658 539,147 17,569,049 19,052,879
Other Liabilities 7,336,401 4,968,088 168,312 211,424 7,504,713 5,179,512

Total Liabilities 24,563,792 23,481,820 509,970 750,571 25,073,762 24,232,391
Deferred Inflows

of Resources 4,068,031 2,445 087 - - 4,068,031 2,445,087
Net Position:

Net Investment

in Capital Assets 54,339,358 47,648,554 25,506,087 25,019,997 79,845,445 72,668,551
Restricted 2,599,666 2,504,253 - - 2,599,666 2,504,253
Unrestricted 1,410,013 330,830 3,599,631 3,523,454 5,009,644 3,854,284

Total Net Position $ 58,349,037 $ 50,483,637 $ 29,105,718 $ 28,543,451 § 87,454,755 §$ 79,027,088

$79,845,445 of the Town’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets, less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Town’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

$1,310,924 of the restricted portion of the Town of Winchester's net position represents net position
restricted for Community Development, $156,458 is restricted for Brownfields Pilot Program, $272,884
is restricted for Grants & Donations, $314,436 is restricted for Anti Blight, and $240,160 is restricted
for other purposes. The remaining restricted portion, $304,804, represents net position restricted for
purposes of trust. Unrestricted net position in the amount of $1,410,013 may be used to meet
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Winchester's Governmental Activities are able to
report positive balances in all categories of net position, for the government as a whole.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
REVENUES
General Revenues:
Property Taxes $ 25468796 $ 24683726 $ - $ - $ 25468,796 $ 24,683,726
Unrestricted Grants & Contributions 697,502 592,243 - - 697,502 592,243
Unrestricted Investment Income 37,193 19,897 2,531 2,580 39,724 22,477
Other General Revenues, Net 109,370 69,753 - - 109,370 69,753
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 1,324,120 1,283,796 3,680,174 3,727,985 5,004,294 5,011,781
Operating Grants and
Contributions 13,831,558 15,806,665 - - 13,831,558 15,806,665
Capital Grants and
Contributions 8,604,203 2,672,166 - - 8,604,203 2,672,166
Total Revenues 50,072,742 45,128,246 3,682,705 3,730,565 53,755,447 48,858,811
EXPENSES
Governmental Activities:
General Government 4,640,204 3,546,158 - - 4,640,204 3,546,158
Public Safety 4,966,600 5,791,474 - - 4,966,600 5,791,474
Public Works 3,739,445 2,920,338 - 3,739,445 2,920,338
Health 813,080 620,927 - 813,080 620,927
Library 233,971 229,383 - - 233,971 229,383
Parks and Recreation 448,910 380,722 - - 448,910 380,722
Waste Disposal and Recycling 209,038 202,950 - 209,038 202,950
Interest on Long-Term Debt 42,049 62,670 - - 42,049 62,670
Education 26,101,545 27,203,135 - - 26,101,545 27,203,135
Business-Type Activities:
Waterworks - - 1,970,973 1,941,434 1,970,973 1,941,434
Sewer - - 2,172,544 2,020,811 2,172,544 2,020,811
Total Expenses 41,194,842 40,957,757 4,143,517 3,962,245 45,338,359 44,920,002
Change in Net Position Before
Transfers, and Contributions
to Permanent Funds 8,877,900 4,170,489 (460,812) (231,680) 8,417,088 3,938,809
Transfers (1,023,079) (263) 1,023,079 263 - -
Change in Net Position 7,854,821 4,170,226 562,267 (231,417) 8,417,088 3,938,809
Beginning Net Position, restated 50,494,216 46,313,411 28,543,451 28,774,868 79,037,667 75,088,279
Ending Net Position $ 58,349,037 $ 50483,637 $ 29,105,718 $ 28543451 §$ 87,454,755 $ 79,027,088

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the Town of Winchester's net position by $7,854,821. Fifty-one
percent (51%) of the revenues of the Town were derived from property taxes, followed by forty-six
percent (46%) from grants and contributions, three percent (3%) from fees for services, and less than

one percent (1%) from other.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Major revenue factors include:

$605,000 increase in Property Taxes primarily due to increase in the grand list.

$5,932,000 increase in Capital Grants and Contributions due to federal and state grant funding
for Hinsdale School Renovation Project, Drinking Water Project, and other capital
improvement projects.

$1,925,000 decrease in Operating Grants and Contributions primarily due to changes in the
revenue recognized for the Teachers’ Retirement System.

For Governmental Activities, 63% of the Town's expenses relate to education, 14% relate to public
safety and health, 9% relate to public works, and the remaining 14% relates to government and
community services, administration, and other areas.

Major expense factors include:

$1,094,000 increase in General Government expense primarily due to recognized pension
expense.

$819,000 increase in public works expense from general road repair, and other repair and
maintenance work.

$825,000 decrease in Public Safety expense primarily due to changes in expenditures
recognized for the Municipal Employee Retirement System.

$1,100,000 decrease in Education expense primarily due to the changes in expenditures
recognized for the Teachers’ Retirement System.

Chart 1 presents the costs of each of the five largest programs, as well as each program's net cost
(total cost less revenues generated by the activities). The Net Cost shows the financial burden that
was placed on the Town's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Chart1
Governmental Activities - Cost of Services
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
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June 30, 2022

Chart 2 presents the various sources of revenue that fund Town operations. The percentages
indicate what part of the whole each segment represents.

Chart 2
Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

0.22%
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B Property Taxes - 50.86%
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® Investment Interest - 0.07%

® Other - 0.22%

Business-Type activities

Business-type activities increased the Town of Winchester's net position by $562,267. Ninety-nine
percent (99%) of the revenues of the business-type activities were derived from charges for services
and less than one percent (1%) was from investment income. Key elements of enterprise fund
performance are as follows:

e Capital Contributions from the Water & Sewer Capital Improvements Fund funded by grants
from the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund and Department of Transportation.

Charts 3 and 4 reflect the water/sewer utility operations for fiscal year 2022 regarding sources of
revenue and classes of expenses.

Chart 3
Revenues - Business-Type Activities

Water Fees
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Chart 4
Expenses - Business-Type Activities (in thousands)
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Winchester uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the Town of Winchester's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the Town of Winchester’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Winchester's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $15,202,683, a decrease of $2,844,178 in comparison with the
prior year.

General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Winchester. At June 30,
2022, the General Fund’s fund balance was $9,549,942 of which $483,092 was committed to
education (BOE nonlapsing) and $893,346 was committed to capital improvements. There was also
$83,387 assigned to general government encumbrances, and $200,000 assigned fund balance
subject to Board of Selectman’s approval. The remaining $7,890,117 is classified as unassigned
General Fund balance. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the
unassigned and total fund balances to total fund expenditures. At June 30, 2022, unassigned and total
General Fund balances represented 23.0% and 27.8% of total budget basis General Fund
expenditures, respectively. See page 72 for budgetary basis data.

The fund balance of the Town of Winchester's General Fund decreased by $973,828 during the
current fiscal year.

Federal and State Education Grants Fund. The Federal and State Education Grants Fund
revenues and expenses were $2,919,340. Grant revenues in the fund are recognized when they are
expended. Major grant revenue recognized in the current fiscal year were from the following grants
ESSER, Title | — Improving Basic Programs, Alliance District, Excess Cost, and the Commissioner
Network.

ARPA Fund. The ARPA Fund is a new created fund to track the expenditures related to the
American Rescue Plan Act grant. The Fund balance increased by $3,418 due to interest earned on
unearned revenue.
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June 30, 2022

Sewer Assessment Fund. The fund balance of the Sewer Assessment Fund decreased by
$26,820 during the current fiscal year due to collections of $53,621, less the transfer out of
$80,441.

Water & Sewer Capital Improvements Fund. The fund balance of the W&S Capital
Improvements Fund decreased by $531,707 during the current fiscal year due to significant
work on the Water Main Project. There is a deficit fund balance of ($490,740) at the end of the
current fiscal year due mainly to $432,302 in debt funded construction costs incurred through
June 30, 2022 not yet received from the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund.

Hinsdale Renovation Project. The fund balance of the Hinsdale Renovation decreased by
$3,004,538 during the current fiscal year due to significant work on the project. There is a fund
balance of $1,179,123 at the end of the current fiscal year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The General Fund Budgetary Highlights are as follows:
e $209,000 of other local revenues in excess of budget.
o $669,000 of property taxes, interest and lien fees collected in excess of budget.
e $284,000 of expenditure savings in the General Government function.
e $168,000 of expenditure savings in the Public Works function.
e Transfer of $1,075,000 to the Capital Improvements Fund.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The Town of Winchester's reported value in capital assets for its governmental
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2022, amounts to $85,850,414 (net of accumulated
depreciation). The reported value in capital assets includes land and buildings, vehicles,
machinery and equipment. Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the
following:

e Hinsdale School Renovation project commencement.
» Vehicle and equipment replacements (Public Works and Public Safety.)

e Drinking Water project commencement.

2022 2021
Govemmental Activities:
Land $ 25,839,045 $ 25,839,045
Construction in Progress 14,372,000 3,282,538
Buildings 2,027,079 2,092,436
Improvements 2,768,081 2,833,914
Machinery and Equipment 4,144,859 4,059,108
Infrastructure 11,024,294 11,797,351

$ 60175358 $ 49,904,392
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2021

$

85,476
297,707
15,059,192
1,290,566
762,387
7,884,549

2022
Business-type Activities:

Land $ 85,476
Construction in Progress 1,439,527
Buildings 14,348,376
Improvements 1,236,031
Machinery and Equipment 922,521
Infrastructure 7,643,125

$ 25,675,056

$ 25379,877

Additional information on the Town of Winchester's capital assets can be found in Note 3 on pages
42-43 of this report.

Long-Term Debt: The Town of Winchester has the following obligations:

Note

Bonds

Other

Total

Date Purpose Rate %
6/8/2021 Hinsdale Project Variable
8/14/2008 Public Improvements 4.02
1/31/2008 Clean Water Fund Loans 2.00

Original
Issue Qutstanding Maturity

$ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000 June 2024

$ 6,316,000 836,000 Aug. 2023

642,019 168,969 Jan. 2027
$ 6,004,969

The Town of Winchester's total borrowings decreased by $454,854 during the current fiscal year,
primarily due to regular principal payments. Additional information on the Town of Winchester's long-
term debt can be found in Note 3 on pages 44-46 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Winchester’s finances
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Director of Finance, Town of Winchester, 338 Main Street, Winsted, CT 06098.

Recent price inflation and supply chain disruptions.
COVID-19 pandemic impact on the state economy.

19

Recent economic development impact on Grand List growth.
Continued capital investment to address aging infrastructure and equipment.

Uncertainty of State municipal aid grants continuing at historical funding levels.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Cash

Receivables, Net of Allowance

Other Assets

Internal Balances

Prepaids

Capital Assets:
Assets Not Being Depreciated
Assets Being Depreciated, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows - Pension and OPEB
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued ltems
Performance Bonds
Due to Other Governments
Unearned Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due In More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows - Prepaid Property Taxes
Deferred Inflows - Pension and OPEB
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Community Development
Restricted for Anti Blight
Restricted for Grants & Donations
Restricted for Other Purposes
Restricted for Purposes of Trust:

Nonexpendable

Expendable
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
17,117,127 2,861,613 $ 19,978,740
88,097 - 88,097
6,176,349 294,326 6,470,675
5,271 901,566 906,837
116,873 (116,873) -
4,700 - 4,700
40,211,045 1,525,003 41,736,048
19,964,313 24,150,053 44 114,366
83,683,775 29,615,688 113,299,463
3,297,085 - 3,297,085
3,297,085 - 3,297,085
5,393,355 168,312 5,561,667
88,097 - 88,097
153,130 - 153,130
1,701,819 - 1,701,819
785,879 118,338 904,217
16,441,512 223,320 16,664,832
24,563,792 509,970 25,073,762
115,607 - 115,607
3,952,424 - 3,952,424
4,068,031 - 4,068,031
54,339,358 25,506,087 79,845,445
1,310,924 - 1,310,924
314,436 - 314,436
272,884 - 272,884
396,618 - 396,618
187,376 - 187,376
117,428 - 117,428
1,410,013 3,599,631 5,009,644
58,349,037 29,105,718 $ 87,454,755
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Receivables, Net of Allowance
Prepaids
Due from Other Funds
Other Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued ltems
Performance Bonds
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Governments
Uneamed Revenue
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned Revenue:
Prepaid Property Taxes
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes and Interest
Sewer Assessment Charges
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

Federal and Water & Sewer Hinsdale Nonmajor Total
State Education ARPA Capital Improv. Sewer Renovation ~ Governmental Governmental
General Grants Fund Fund Fund Assessment Project Funds Funds

$ 13,444,779 $ - $§ 1,363626 $ - 8 - $ 121642 $ 2,187,080 $ 17,117,127
88,097 - - - - - - 88,097
1,270,435 334 - 482,456 48,037 2,039,196 2,335,891 6,176,348
4,700 - - - - - - 4,700
1,385,352 390,735 - 916,228 - 1,925,112 1,708,588 6,326,015

- - - - - - 5,271 5,271

$ 16,193,363 § 3910689 $ 1383626 § 1398684 § 48,037 § 4085850 § 6,236,830 §$ 29,717,559
$ 1,320497 $ - 8 65632 $ 738297 § - $ 2906827 $ 362,102 § 5,393,355
88,097 - - - - - - 88,097
4,311,865 - 3,745 1,161,127 734,564 - 7,841 6,209,142

- - - - - - 153,130 153,130

- 391,069 1,290,831 - - - 19,919 1,701,819

5,720.459 391,069 1,360,208 1,889.424 734,564 2.906.827 542,992 13,545,543
115,607 - - - - - - 115,607
807,355 - - - - - - 807,355

- - - - 46,371 - - 46,371

922,962 - - - 46,371 - - 969,333

- - - - - - 187,376 187,376

- - 3,418 - - - 2,408,872 2,412,290

1,376,438 - - - - 1,179,123 3,097,590 5,653,151
283,387 - - - - - - 283,387
7,890,117 - - (480.740) {732,898) - - 6,666,479
9,549,942 - 3,418 (490.740) (732,898) 1,178,123 5,693,838 15,202,683

$ 16,183,363 § 391,068 § 13636826 § 1398684 § 48,037 $ 4085950 §$ 6,236,830 § 29,717,559

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Fund balances reported in governmental funds Balance Sheet $ 15,202,683

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the government- wide
Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Capital Assets 96,259,312
Depreciation (36,083,954)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Property taxes and interest receivable greater than 60 days 807,355
Sewer assessments and interest receivable greater than 60 days 46,371
Certain changes related to pensions are deferred and amortized over time. (655,339)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the fund statements.

Bonds payable (836,000)
General Obligation Note (5,000,000)
Net Pension Liability (4,686,027)
Net Pension Liability - MERS (2,485,014)
OPEB liability (2,717,786)
Claims and judgments (659,957)
Compensated Absences (842,607)
Net position of governmental activities $ 58,349,037

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal and Water & Sewer Hinsdale Nonmajor
State Education ARPA Capital Improv. Sewer Renovation Govemmental
General Grants Fund Fund Fund Assessment Project Funds Total
Revenues
Property Taxes, Interest and Lien Fees $ 25258971 § - % - % - % - $ - $ - $ 25,258,971
Intergovernmental Revenues 10,357,955 2,919,340 278,299 519,798 - 7,710,846 1,520,661 23,306,899
Interest and Dividends 24,856 - 3,354 - - 3,751 5,232 37,193
Charges for Services 629,380 - - - 53,621 - 242,013 925,014
Licenses, Fees and Permits 370,103 - - - - - - 370,103
Olher Revenue 107,889 - - - - - 348,053 455,942
Total Revenues 36,749,154 2,919,340 281,653 519,798 53,621 7.714,.597 2,115,959 50,354,122
Expenditures
Current:
General Govemment 3,456,345 - 78,845 - - - 15,312 3,550,502
Library 233,971 - - - - - - 233,971
Miscellaneous 838,921 - - - - - - 838,921
Waste Disposal and Recycling 209,038 - - - - - - 209,038
Public Safety 4,203,767 - 171,563 - - - 362,367 4,737,697
Public Works 2,338,302 - 19,416 - - - - 2,357,718
Health 339,834 - - - - - 500,232 840,066
Parks and Recreation 300,744 - 8,475 - - - 117,115 426,334
Education 21,888,300 2,919,340 - - - - 547,477 25,355,117
Program and Project Expenditures 467,343 ] - - - - - 467,343
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 403,116 - - - - - - 403,116
Interest 58,933 - - - - - - 58,933
Capital Qutlay - - - 1,552,505 - 11,272,710 1,356,281 14,181,496
Total Expenditures 34,738,614 2,918,340 278,269 1,552,505 - 11,272,710 2,898,784 53,660,252
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures 2,010,540 - 3,354 (1,032,707) 53,621 (3,558,113) (782,825) (3,306,130)
Other Financing Sources/{Uses)
Transfers In 30,814 - 64 501,000 - 553,575 3,015,182 4,100,635
Transfers Out (3,015,182) - - - (80.441) - (553,639) (3.649.262)
Totat Other Financing Sources/(Uses) (2.984,368) - 64 501,000 (80.441) 553,575 2,461,543 451,373
Net Change in Fund Balances (973,828) - 3,418 (531,707) (26,820) (3,004,538) 1,678,718 (2,854,757)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, Restated 10,523,770 - - 40,967 (706,078) 4,183,661 4,015,120 18,057,440
Fund Balances at End of Year § 9540042 $ - 8 3418 §_ (490,740) § (732898) $ 1179123 § 5693838 § 15,202,683

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Capital expenditures
Depreciation expense

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenue in the funds
Property taxes and interest collected accrual basis change
Sewer assessment and interest revenue accrual basis change

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
General obligation bond principal payments

Amortization of deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB benefits
Amortization of deferred inflows related to pension and OPEB benefits

Certain benefits are expended in the funds when resources are used, but
are expensed in the Statement of Activities when the liability is incurred.
Net Pension Liability
Net Pension Liability - MERS
OPEB liability
Claims and judgments
Compensated Absences

Change in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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$ (2,854,757)

11,775,805
(1,504,839)

209,825
(48,575)

420,000

498,358
(1,507,337)

(1,214,295)
1,375,295
538,362
65,349

101,630

$ 7,854,821



TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022

Waterworks Sewer Total
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,117,503 $ 744,110 $ 2,861,613
Rents and Assessments Receivable, Net 112,735 142,398 255,133
Interest Receivable 20,207 18,986 39,193
Accrued Utility Revenue 466,090 435,476 901,566
Total Current Assets 2,716,535 1,340,970 4,057,505
Noncurrent Assets:
Due from Other Funds 261,385 868,898 1,130,283
Nondepreciable Capital Assets 1,475,775 49,228 1,625,003
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Deprecation 12,187,799 11,962,254 24,150,053
Total Noncurrent Assets 13,924,959 12,880,380 26,805,339
Total Assets $ 16,641,494 $ 14,221,350 $ 30,862,844
Deferred Outflows of Resources - - -
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued ltems $ 74,440 3 93,872 $ 168,312
Due to Other Funds 623,523 623,633 1,247,156
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 44 138 74,200 118,338
Total Current Liabilities 742,101 791,705 1,533,806
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 54,091 35,817 89,908
Clean Water Fund Loans - 133,412 133,412
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 54,091 169,229 223,320
Total Liabilities 796,192 960,934 1,757,126
Deferred Inflows of Resources - - -
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 13,663,574 11,842,513 25,506,087
Unrestricted 2,181,728 1,417,903 3,599,631
Total Net Position $ 15,845,302 $ 13,260,416 $ 29,105,718

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Waterworks Sewer Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 1,852,440 $ 1,738,171 $ 3,590,611
Fines, Penalties and Interest 48,508 41,055 89,563
Total Operating Revenues 1,900,948 1,779,226 3,680,174
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 1,251,152 1,199,735 2,450,887
Maintenance 37,485 97,427 134,912
Depreciation Expense 496,617 675,286 1,171,903
Administration 185,719 185,719 371,438
Total Operating Expenses 1,970,973 2,158,167 4,129,140
Operating Income/(Loss) (70,025) (378,941) (448,966)
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest Income 1,927 604 2,531
Interest Expense - (14,377) (14,377)
Total Nonoperating Expenses 1,927 (13,773) (11,846)
Income/(Loss) before Transfers, and
Capital Contributions (68,098) (392,714) (460,812)
Transfers:
Transfers In - 80,441 80,441
Transfers Out (320,000) (211,814) (631,814)
Total Transfers (320,000) (131,373) (451,373)
Capital Contributions 1,253,866 220,586 1,474,452
Change in Net Position 865,768 (303,501) 562,267
Net Position - Beginning of Year 14,979,534 13,563,917 28,543,451
Net Position - End of Year $ 15,845,302 3 13,260,416 3 29,105,718

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Waterworks Sewer Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 1,896,621 $ 1694658 $ 3,591,279
Receipts from Interfund Services 12,289 12,289 24,578
Payments to Employees (194,676) (183,339) (378,015)
Payments to Suppliers (1,331,007) (1,290,534) (2,621,541)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities ' 383,227 233,074 616,301
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Advance/(Repayment) from General Fund 34,217 (57,876) (23,659)
Advance/(Repayment) from Sewer Assessments - (28,791) (28,791)
Advance/(Repayment) from Proprietary Funds (9,651) 9,651 -
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities 24,566 (77,016) (52,450)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Principal Payments on Bonds Payable - (150,000) (150,000)
Principal Payments on Clean Water Fund Loans - (34,854) (34,854)
Principal Payments on General Fund Bonds Payable - (28,000) (28,000)
Advance/(Repayment) from W & S Cap Fund 314,926 173,396 488,322
Purchase of Capital Assets - - -
Transfer (to)/from Other Funds (320,000) (183,814) (503,814)
Interest Paid on Bonds Payable and Clean Water Fund Loans E (10,883) (10,883)
Highland Lake Assessments - 80,747 80,747
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (5,074) (153,408) (158,482)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Income 1,927 604 2,531
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,927 604 2,531
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 404,646 3,254 407,900
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,712,857 740,856 2,453,713
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 2,117,503 § 744,110 § 2,861,613
Reconciliation of Operating Income/{Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(Loss) $ (70,025) % (378,941) § (448,966)
Adjustments to Reconcile Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 496,617 675,286 1,171,903
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 7,370 - 7,370
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Rents Receivable (14,757) (39,371) (54,128)
(Increase) Decrease in Interest Receivable (1,780) (2,614) (4,394)
(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Utility Revenue 24,499 (30,294) (5,795)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (49,740) 6,628 (43,112)
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Benefits (8,957) 2,380 (6,577)
Total Adjustments 453,252 612,015 1,065,267
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 383227 $ 233,074 $ 616,301
Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activity:
Capital Contributions from Other Funds $ 1,253,866 $ 220,586 $ 1,474,452

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

28



TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2022

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments, at Fair Value:
Short-Term Investments
Mutual Funds
Total Investments, at Fair Value

Accrued Income
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Restricted for Pension Benefits
Total Net Position

Pension

Trust
Fund

307
8,952,442

8,952,749

21,339

8,974,088

8,974,088

$

8,974,088

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

29



TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Pension
Trust
Fund
Additions
Contributions:
Employer $ 725,000
Plan Members 72,177
Total Contributions 797 177
Net Investment Income:
Net Appreciation/(Depreciation) in Fair
Value of Investments (1,913,723)
Interest and Dividends 508,692
Investment Expenses (64,090)
Total Net Investment Income (1,469,121)
Total Additions (671,944)
Deductions
Benefits 945,650
Total Deductions 945,650
Change in Net Position (1,617,594)
Net Position at Beginning of Year 10,591,682
Net Position at End of Year $ 8,974,088

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Town of Winchester, Connecticut, was incorporated in 1771. The Town operates under a
Selectmen-Town Manager form of government and provides the following services as authorized by
its charter: public safety, public works, health, welfare, parks, recreation, and elementary and
secondary education. The financial statements include all of the funds of the Town that meet the
criteria for inclusion as set forth in Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards No. 14 issued
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the reporting
entity include the primary government and its component units, entities for which the government is
considered to be financially accountable, all organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and other organizations which by the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government would cause the financial statements to be incomplete or
misleading if excluded. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the government’s operations; therefore, data from these units are combined with
data of the primary government. Based on these criteria, there are no component units requiring
inclusion in these financial statements.

The Winchester Housing Authority (the Authority) has been determined to be a related organization of
the Town of Winchester, Connecticut, as the governing body of the Authority is appointed by the
Town. The Authority is not included in this report, as the Town is not obligated to finance any deficit
that the authority may incur, nor does the Town significantly subsidize the Authority; the Town obtains
no financial benefit, nor can it impose its will upon the Authority.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Town's
accounting policies are described below.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements, with the exception of the agency funds which have no measurement focus. Revenues are
recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period.

Property taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. In
determining when to recognize intergovernmental revenues (grants and entitlements), the legal and
contractual requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance. Revenues are recognized
when the eligibility requirements have been met. Only the portion of special assessments receivable
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash
is received by the Town.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The Federal and State Education Grants Fund is to account for revenues and expenditures of
various education grants.

The ARPA Fund is to account for revenue and expenditures related to the American Rescue
Plan Act grant.

The Water & Sewer Capital Improvement Fund is to account for capital projects related to the
Waterworks & Sewer Funds.

The Sewer Assessment Fund is used to account for the sewer assessment revenues and
expenditures related to the Highland Lake sewer project.

The Hinsdale Renovation Project is used to account for the renovation of the Hinsdale School.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Waterworks Fund is used to account for the financial operations of the Winsted
Waterworks. All necessary activities to provide such services are included in this fund,
including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and billing and
collection. The Water and Sewer Commission, as empowered by the Town Charter, oversees
the operation of the Winsted Waterworks.

The Sewer Fund is used to account for the financial operations of the Town's sewer utility. All
activities necessary to provide such services are included in this fund, including, but not limited
to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and billing and collection. Authority over
the operations of the Sewer Fund is with the Water and Sewer Commission. :

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

The Pension Trust Fund is used to account for the activities of the Town’s defined benefit plan
which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the enterprise funds and
various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
proprietary funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity

Cash Equivalents - The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes.
The Town maintains separate accounts with depositories where necessary. Cash applicable to a
particular fund is readily identifiable. Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in various
interest-bearing accounts, certificates of deposit, and pooled investment funds that may be deemed to
be cash equivalents based on maturity date or availability of conversion to cash. Cash and cash
equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value and have maturities of three months
or less. This definition also applies to the proprietary statement of cash flows.

Investments - In general, State of Connecticut Statutes allow the Town to invest in obligations of the
United States of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or other
interests in any custodial arrangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment
company or investment trust, in obligations of any state or political subdivision rated within the top two
rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in obligations of the State of
Connecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three rating categories of any nationally
recognized rating service. Other trust funds may also invest in stocks, bonds, or other securities
selected by the Trustee.

The Short-Term Investment Fund (“STIF”) is a money market investment pool managed by the Cash
Management Division of the State Treasurer's Office created by Section 3-27 of the Connecticut
General Statutes (‘CGS”). Pursuant to CGS 3-27a through 3-27f, the State, municipal entities, and
political subdivisions of the State are eligible to invest in the fund. The fund is considered a “2a7-like”
pool and, as such, reports its investments at amortized cost (which approximates fair value. The pool
is overseen by the Office of the State Treasurer. The pool is rated AAAm by S & P Global Ratings.
This is the highest rating for money market funds and investment pools. The pooled investment
funds’ risk category cannot be determined since the Town does not own identifiable securities but
invests as a shareholder of the investment pool. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same
as the value of the pool shares.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, the Town is required to measure the fair value of its
assets and liabilities under a three-level hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities to which an entity has access to
at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs and information other than quoted market indices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include:
a. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.
b. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active;
c. Observable inputs other than quoted prices for the assets or liability;
d. Inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by
correlation or by other means.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs should be used to
measure the fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available.

Observable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability developed from sources independent of the reporting entity; and unobservable
inputs reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information
available in the circumstances.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

Investments are carried at fair value and are presented in Note 3.

Inventories - All inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Receivables and Payables - Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the
noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as
“due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities
and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment and infrastructure, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life of more than two years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend its life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives.

Assets Years
Buildings, Structures and Improvements 50
Equipment 7-15
Distribution reservoirs and standpipes 50
Infrastructure 7-100

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the statement of financial position
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) until then. The Town reports the deferred charge on refunding in this category. A
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded
or refunding debt. The Town also reports increases of Deferred Pension Expense in this category.
Deferred pension expense results from differences between expected and actual experience,
changes in assumptions or other inputs. These amounts are deferred and included in pension
expense over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees
that are provided with benefits through the pension plan (active and inactive employees).
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In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has two items that
qualify for reporting in this category. The Town reports decreases of Deferred Pension Expense in this
category. Deferred pension expense results from differences between expected and actual
experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs. These amounts are deferred and included in
pension expense over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all
employees that are provided with benefits through the pension plan (active and inactive employees).
For governmental funds, the Town reports unearned and unavailable revenue, which arises only
under the modified accrual basis of accounting. The governmental funds report unearned revenue
from prepaid property taxes and unavailable revenues from several sources: property taxes and
sewer assessments. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period during which the amounts become available.

Long-Term Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities
in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing
sources, and discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from actual debt proceeds, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Compensated Absences - A limited amount of vacation earned may be accumulated by employees
until termination of their employment, at which time they are paid for accumulated vacation. Sick leave
may be accumulated by employees in accordance with union contracts until retirement, termination or
death, at which time they are paid for a percentage of their accumulated sick leave.

All vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they
have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Fund Equity and Net Position — Equity in the government-wide financial statements is defined as
“net position” and is classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduces this category.

Restricted Net Position — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents the net position of the Town, which is not
restricted for any project or other purpose.

36



TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The equity of the fund financial statements is defined as “fund balance” and is classified in the
following five separate categories:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - Indicates amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form, or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Examples are items that are not expected to be converted to cash including prepaid
expenditures and permanent fund principal.

Restricted Fund Balance - Indicates amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. The
spending constraints placed on the use of fund balance amounts are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - Indicates amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal budgetary action of the Board of Selectman and
Town Meeting in accordance with provisions of the Connecticut General Statutes.

Assigned Fund Balance - For all governmental funds other than the General Fund, this
represents any remaining positive amounts not classified as nonspendable, restricted or
committed. For the General Fund, this includes amounts constrained for the intent to be used
for a specific purpose by the Winchester Board of Selectmen or department head as specified
in the Town Charter.

Unassigned Fund Balance - Represents the remaining fund balance after amounts are set
aside for all other classifications. If another governmental fund has a fund balance deficit, it is
reported as a negative amount in unassigned fund balance.

The Town has not established a formal policy for its use of restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, unassigned) fund balance; however, the Town generally used restricted fund balance first if
the expenditure meets the restricted purpose, followed by committed, assigned and unassigned
amounts.

The Town has not formally enacted legislation or Board policies establishing stabilization funds.

The Town’s Policy on Fund Balance is to maintain an unassigned General Fund Balance of at least
ten percent of current General Fund expenditures. At June 30, 2022, the unassigned General Fund
Balance represented 23.0% of the 2022 General Fund budget basis expenditures. See page 72 for
budget basis data.

Property Taxes

The Town's property tax is levied each July 1 on the assessed value as of the prior October 1 for all
real property, motor vehicles and commercial personal property located in the Town. Assessed values
are established by the Town Assessment Board at 70% of estimated market value. A physical
revaluation of all real property is required to be completed every ten years, and a statistical
revaluation is required to be completed every five years. The Town had a revaluation of its property as
of October 1, 2017. The Town's property tax is levied each June on the assessed value listed on the
prior October 1 Grand List for all taxable property located in the Town. A mill rate was applied to the
Grand List. Taxes not paid within 30 days of the due date are subject to an interest charge of 1.5%
per month. Liens are placed on delinquent accounts in June following the levy date.
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Taxes are due in two equal installments on the July 1 and January 1 following the levy date, although
a 30-day grace period is provided. Uncollected property taxes are recorded as receivables, net of an
allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts.

Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available. Available means due or past due
and receivable within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. The Town defines the current period to mean within 60
days after year-end. Property taxes receivable not expected to be collected during the available
period are reflected in deferred revenue in the fund financial statements. The entire receivable is
recorded as revenue in the government-wide financial statements. Property taxes collected prior to
June 30 that are applicable to the subsequent years' assessment are reflected as advance tax
collections in both the fund financial statements and the government-wide financial statements.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information
Budgets are authorized annually by the Board of Selectmen.

Program budgets are established for funds not budgeted normally. The procedures establishing the
budgetary data reflected in the financial statements are as follows:

e Prior to March 16, the Town Manager submits to the Board of Selectmen a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

e Public hearings are conducted at locations throughout the Town to obtain taxpayer comments.

e The budget is reviewed at the annual Town budget meeting and sent to referendum for
enactment by vote of the general public.

¢ Upon request of the Town Manager, but only within the last three months of the fiscal year,
only the Board of Selectmen may, by resolution, transfer any unencumbered appropriation,
balance or portion thereof from one department, commission, board or office to another.
Management cannot amend the budget.

e The control level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is the
departmental level. The Board of Selectman must approve transfers within a department.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the close of the fiscal year, except for those
appropriations which are made for capital improvements.

The budgets are prepared on a modified-accrual basis of accounting except for encumbrances.
Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the
year in which the purchase order is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at year-end
are reflected in budgetary reports as expenditures in the current year.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of Selectmen.
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NOTE 3 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-402).
Deposits may be made in a “qualified public depository” as defined by Statute or in amounts not
exceeding the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit in an “out of state bank,” as
defined by the Statutes, which is not a “qualified public depository.”

The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2022:

Governmental Proprietary
Funds Funds Total
Cash $ 14910414 $ 2861613 $ 17,772,027
Cash Equivalents 2,206,713 - 2,206,713
Restricted Cash 88,097 - 88,097

Total $ 17205224 $ 2861613 § 20,066,837

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Town'’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Town’s custodial credit risk policy is to only use banks
that are in the State of Connecticut. The State of Connecticut requires that each depository maintain
segregated collateral in an amount equal to a defined percentage of its public deposits based upon
the bank’s risk-based capital ratio. The following is a reconciliation of the Town’s deposits subject to
custodial credit risk:

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash $ 20,066,837
Less: Cash Equivalents (STIF) (2,206,713)

$ 17,860,124

At year-end, the Town’s carrying amount of deposits subject to custodial credit risk was $17,860,124
and the bank balance was $18,044,515. Of the bank balance, Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation insured $9,806,764.

As of June 30, 2022, $8,237,751 of the Town’'s bank balance of $18,044,515 was exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 7,338,976
Uninsured and collateral held by
pledging bank's Trust department

not in the Town's name 898,775
Total $ 8,237,751

Cash Equivalents

At June 30, 2022, the Town’s cash equivalents (Short-Term Investment Fund “STIF”) amounted to
$2,206,713. STIF is rated AAAm by S & P Global Ratings and has an average maturity of under 60
days.
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Investments
As of June 30, 2022, the Town had the following investments:

Investment Maturities (Years)

Credit Not Less More Than

Rating Amount Applicable Than 1 1-10 10

Investment Type

Short-Term Investments N/A $ 307 $ - $ 307 $ - 8 -
Money Market Funds N/A 397,147 397,147 - - -
Mutual Funds N/A 7,497,146 7,497,146 - - -
Exchange Traded Funds N/A 1,058,149 1,058,149 - - -
Total Investments $ 8952749 $ 8952442 3 307 $ - 3 -

N/A - Not Applicable

The Short-Term Investments and Mutual Funds are reported in the Pension Trust Fund.

The following is a summary of assets measured at fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
June 30, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
2022 (Level 1) (Lewel 2) (Level 3)
Description

Short-Term Investments $ 307 $ 307 $ - % -
Money Market Funds 397,147 19 397,128 -
Mutual Funds 7,497,146 6,157,084 1,340,062 -
Exchange Traded Funds 1,058,149 1,058,149 - -
Total $ 8,952,749 $ 7215559 $ 1,737,190 $ -

Interest Rate Risk- The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Credit Risk-Investments- The Town has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices
due to credit risk other than State Statutes governing investments in obligations of any State or
political subdivision or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision.

Concentration of Credit Risk- The Town has no policy limiting an investment in any one issuer that is
in excess of 5% of the Town’s total investments.

Custodial Credit Risk- Custodial credit risk for an investment is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty (the institution that pledges collateral or repurchase agreement securities to the
Town or that sells investments to or buys them for the Town), the Town will not be able to recover the
value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
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Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the Town'’s individual major funds and nonmajor and fiduciary funds in

the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Federal and W&S Capital Hinsdale Nonmajor
General State Education Sewer Improvements Renovation and Other
Fund Grants Fund Assessment Fund Project Waterworks Sewer Funds Total
Receivables:
Property taxes $ 731,241 % - $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - % - $ $ 731,241
Interest, Liens, and Fees 248,970 3,928 - 20,207 18,986 292,091
Sewer assessment - - 44,109 - - - - - 44,108
Intergovernmental - 334 - 482,456 2,039,196 - - 1,288,949 3,810,935
Loans * - - - - 1,046,942 1,046,942
Rents and assessments - 128,641 150,603 - 279,244
Accounts 368,224 - - - - - - 368,224
Gross receivables 1,348,435 334 48,037 482,456 2,035,196 148,848 169,589 2,335,891 6,572,785
Less allowance for
uncollectibles:
Property taxes (53,000) (53,000)
Interest, Liens, and Fees (25,000) - - - (25,000)
Rents and assessments - (15.906) (8,205) - (24.111)
Total allowance (78.000) - - - - (15,906) (8,205 (102,111}
Net Total Receivables $ 1270435 § 334 § 48,037 § 482456 § 2038156 § 132942 § 161,384 § 2335881 § 6470675

* Not expected to be collected within one year.

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unavailable revenue and unearned revenue

reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned

General Fund:
Delinquent property taxes receivable $ 599,417 $ -
Delinquent interest, liens, fees receivable 207,938 -
Prepaid Property Taxes - 115,607

Education Grants Fund:
Unexpended Grant Receipts

ARPA Fund:

Unexpended Grant Receipts

Grants & Donations Fund:
Unexpended Grant Receipts

Sewer Assessment:
Assessments receivable not yet due 42,443 -

Delinquent interest, liens, fees receivable 3,928 -

391,069

1,290,831

19,919

Total Unavailable/Unearned Revenue for
Governmental Funds $ 853,726 $ 1,817,426
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Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation, net

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Governmental Activities capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Business-Type Activities capital assets, net

Beginning Decreases & Ending

Balances Increases Adjustments Balances
25,839,045 $ -3 - $ 25,839,045
3,282,538 11,089,462 - 14,372,000
29,121,583 11,089,462 - 40,211,045
5,573,746 - - 5,573,746
4,518,379 62,185 - 4,580,564
11,929,504 605,094 - 12,534,598
33,340,295 19,064 - 33,359,359
55,361,924 686,343 - 56,048,267
3,481,310 65,357 - 3,546,667
1,684,465 128,018 - 1,812,483
7,870,396 519,343 - 8,389,739
21,542,944 792,121 - 22,335,065
34,579,115 1,504,839 - 36,083,954
20,782,809 (818,496) - 19,964,313
49,904,392 $ 10,270,966 $ - $ 60,175,358
85476 $ - $ - % 85,476
297,707 1,141,820 - 1,439,527
383,183 1,141,820 - 1,525,003
35,540,811 - - 35,540,811
3,106,355 5,925 - 3,112,280
6,538,158 244743 (26,171) 6,756,730
16,593,016 81,964 - 16,674,980
61,778,340 332,632 (26,171) 62,084,801
20,481,619 710,816 - 21,192,435
1,815,789 60,460 - 1,876,249
5,775,771 77,238 (18,800) 5,834,209
8,708,467 323,388 - 9,031,855
36,781,646 1,171,802 (18,800) 37,934,748
24,996,694 (839,270) (7,371) 24,150,053
25,379,877 $ 302,550 $ (7,371) $ 25,675,056
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General Government $ 181,726
Public Safety 223,713
Public Works 983,564
Education 80,857
Parks and Recreation 34,979

Total Depreciation Expense
Governmental Activities $ 1,504,839

Business-type activities
Waterworks $ 496,616

Sewer 675,286
Total Depreciation Expense
Business-Type Activities $ 1,171,902

Construction Commitments

The Town has several active construction projects as of June 30, 2022. At year-end, the Town’s
commitments are as follows:

Spent to Remaining
Date Commitment
Mary P. Hinsdale School Renovation $ 13,640,501 § 1,092,257
Whiting St - Reconstruction - 1,350,359
Sue Grossman Trail - 1,354,547
Water Main Replacement Project 853,354 1,185,858

3 14,493,855 § 4,983,021

The Town accepted a bid of $13,068,000 in March 2021 for renovation of the Hinsdale School.
Subsequent change orders and contracted architect services have increased the project commitment
to $14,665,000. A September 2019 referendum authorized the project at a total cost of $17,425,000 of
which $16,889,000 was allocated to construction and architect fees.

A portion of Whiting Street will be reconstructed utilizing a $501,229 State of Connecticut Responsible
Growth and Transit Grant. A bid for construction work was awarded in June 2022 for work to be
completed in fiscal year 2023.

Expansion of the Sue Grossman Trailway will be funded through a 1.55 million grant from the State of
Connecticut. Construction work is schedule for fiscal year 2023.

The Water Main replacement project is being partly funded through the Connecticut Drinking Water
State Revolving Fund. Replacement of the water mains began in fiscal year 2022 and is slated to be
complete in fiscal year 2023. A may 2021 referendum authorized $2,200,000 for the construction
work.
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Interfund Transfers, Receivables, and Payables

Transfer from:
Sewer Grants & Capital
General Assessment Sewer Water Donation Improvements
Transfer to: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
General Fund $ - $ - $ 30814 § - $ - 8 - $ 30,814
Capital Improvements Fund 3,015,182 - - - - - 3,015,182
Hinsdale Renovation Project - - - - 553,575 553,575
W&S Capital Improvements Fund - - 181,000 320,000 - - 501,000
ARPA - - - - 64 64
Sewer Fund - 80,441 - - - - 80,441
$ 3015182 § 80,441 $ 211,814 § 320,000 $ 64 § 553,575 $ 4,181,076

Transfers are used to account for the financing by the General Fund of various programs and
activities in other funds and bond payments in the Sewer Fund paid from sewer assessment.

Interfund receivables and payables are a result of temporary loans and/or advances to various funds.
The amount due from Sewer Assessments to the Sewer Fund, are not expected to be repaid within

one year. The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Due To:
Federal Water & Sewer
and State Hinsdale Capital
General Nonmajor Education Renovation Improvements Water Sewer
Due From: Fund Funds Grants Fund Project Fund Fund Fund Total

General Fund $ - § 1,708588 $ 390,735 § 1925112 $ - $ 153,09 $ 134334 $§ 4,311,865
Nonmajor Funds 7,841 - - - - - - 7,841
W&S Capital Improvements Fund 1,151,127 - - - - - 1,151,127
ARPA Fund 3,745 - - - - - - 3,745
Sewer Assessments - - - - - - 734,564 734,564
Sewer Fund 163,370 - B - 351,974 108,289 - 623,633
Water Fund 59,269 - 564,254 B - 623,523

$ 1385352 $ 1,708588 § 390735 § 1825112 § 916,228 $ 261,385 §

868,898 § 7,456,298

Long-Term Debt

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Long-Term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds $ 1,256,000 $ - $ 420,000 $ 836,000 $ 420,000
General obligation note 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 -
Compensated absences 944,237 - 101,630 842,607 300,111
Heart and hypertension 725,306 - 65,349 659,957 65,768
Net Pension Liability 3,471,732 1,214,295 - 4,686,027 -
Net Pension Liability-MERS 3,860,309 - 1,375,295 2,485,014 -
OPEB liability 3,256,148 - 538,362 2,717,786 -
Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 18513732 $ 1214295 $ 2500636 $ 17,227,391 $ 785,879
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Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Business-Type Activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds $ 150,000 §$ - 3 150,000 $ - $ -
Plus deferred amounts:
[ssuance premiums
on refunding 6,058 - 6,058 - -
Total bonds payable 156,058 - 156,058 - -
Clean water fund loans 203,823 - 34,854 168,969 35,557
Compensated absences 179,266 - 6,577 172,689 82,781
Total Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 539,147 § - $ 197489 $ 341658 $ 118,338

For the governmental activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally
liqguidated by the General Fund.

General Obligation Bonds and Note

The Town issued a general obligation note to provide funds for the renovation, improvements, and
additions to the Mary P. Hinsdale Elementary School. The note is for up to $10,000,000 with a
maturity date of June 7, 2024. The interest on the note is a variable rate based on the SIFMA index
plus the applicable margin determined at the beginning of each interest period. The applicable margin
is based on the Town'’s current credit rating. The initial applicable margin is 0.55%. At June 30, 2022
the Town has drawn down $5,000,000 and a remaining $5,000,000 authorized and available balance.

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the Town for which full faith and credit are pledged
and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable properties located within the Town. General
obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Principal
Date of Original Interest Date of Annual Outstanding
Description Issue Issue Rate Maturity Principal June 30, 2022
General Purposes:
Public Improvements 8/14/2008 6,316,000 4.02% 8/15/2023 $ 416,000 - 425,000 $ 836,000

All bonds are general obligation bonds secured by the general revenue raising powers of the Town,
and payment will be provided by General Fund revenues, except for proprietary fund type bonds,
which are expected to be paid from the receipts of the related fund, and Highland Lake Sewer Fund
Bonds, which are expected to be paid by revenues of the Sewer Assessment Fund.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds and note are as follows:

Year Governmental Activities
Ending Principal Interest
2023 $ 420,000 $ 25,165
2024 5,416,000 8,362
Total $ 5,836,000 $ 33,627
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Clean Water Fund Notes

The Town is currently participating in a capital project (Wastewater Design Project) under the State of
Connecticut Clean Water Fund established in accordance with Section 22a-477 of the General
Statutes of Connecticut. The Clean Water Fund is administered by the State Department of
Environmental Protection and provides grant and loan funds to municipalities for “eligible water quality
project costs.” The notes were converted to permanent financing on January 31, 2008, and the
balance as of June 30, 2022, was $168,969. The notes carry an interest rate of 2%.

Project loan obligations payable to the State of Connecticut mature as follows:

Year Business-Type Activities
Ending Principal Interest
2023 $ 35558 § 3,055
2024 36,275 2,337
2025 37,007 1,605
2026 37,754 858
2027 22,375 150

Total $ 168,969 § 8,005

Clean Water Fund notes will be repaid by sewer user fees.

Bonds and Notes Authorized and Unissued

At June 30, 2022 there was $38,009,925 authorized and unissued bonds and notes for costs related
to capital projects. $7,109,925 related to the renovations, improvements, and additions to the Mary P.
Hinsdale Elementary School, $6,200,000 for costs related to replacements and improvements to
water mains and water storage tanks, and $24,700,000 for costs related to various capital
improvements to roadways, sidewalks and highland lake drainage systems, and the acquisition of fire
apparatus.
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NOTE 4 - FUND BALANCE ASSIGNMENTS

The components of fund balance for the governmental funds at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Sewer W&S Capital Hinsdale Nonmajor
General Assessment ARPA Improvements Renovation Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Project Funds Total
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Winchester Memorial Park Fund $ - $ -3 -8 - % - % 8,300 § 8,300
Jane A Nisbet Fund - - - - - 250 250
Town Park Fund - - - - - 6,911 6,911
Forest View Cemetery Fund - - - - - 138,267 138,267
Winchester Center Cemetery Fund - - - - - 33,648 33,648
Total Nonspendable $ - % - 3 - 8 - $ - $ 187376 § 187,376

Restricted for:
Small Cities $ -9 - % - $ -8 - $1310924 $ 1,310,924
ARPA Fund - - 3,418 - - - 3,418
Brownfields Pilot Program - - - - - 156,458 156,458
Elderly Enrichment Part | Fund - - - - - 10,874 10,874
Cemetery Association Trust Fund - - - - - 669 669
Soldiers Monument Restoration Fund - - - - - 27,665 27,665
Anti Blight Fund - - - - - 314,436 314,436
Winchester Memorial Park Fund - - - - - 6,093 6,093
Champs Fund - - - - - 81,525 81,525
Grants & Donations Fund - - - - - 272,884 272,884
Winchester School Trust Fund - - . - - 95,398 95,398
Forest View Cemetery Fund - - - - - 4,965 4,965
Winchester Center Cemetery Fund - - - - - 5,962 5,962
Winchester Bond Sinking Fund - - - - - 18 18
Forest View Cemetery Chapel Trust - - - - - 630 630
Jane A Nisbet Fund - - - - - 7,534 7,534
Town Park Fund - - - - - 92,874 92,874
Student Activity Fund - - - - - 11,273 11,273
Beverly Pass Fund - - - - - 8,690 8,690
Total Restricted §$ - § - $ 3418 3 - 8 - $ 2408872 $§ 2412290

Committed to:
(ndustrial Park #2 Fund $ - % - § - § - § - $ 232737 $§ 232,737
Cafeteria Fund - - - - - 98,542 98,542
City Sidewalks Fund - - - - - 859 859
Education 483,092 - - - - - 483,092
Hinsdale Renovation Project - - - - 1,179,123 - 1,179,123
Capital Improvements 893,346 - - - - 2,765,452 3,658,798
Total Committed $§ 1,376,438 § - $ - 8 - $ 1179123 §$ 3,097,590 § 5,653,151
Assigned - General Government $ 283387 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - § 283387
Unassigned $ 7890117 $ (732,898) § - $ (480,740) $ - $ - $ 6666479
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NOTE 5 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Contribution Plan

As of July 1, 2014, non-union employees and newly hired union positions are eligible to participate in
a Defined Contribution retirement plan administered by the Town. The deferred compensation plan
currently has 24 participants enrolled in the plan. The Town will match employee contributions up to
6% of eligible compensation. The total expense to the Town for the year ended June 30, 2022 was
$151,736. Contributions are made to accounts in the participant's name, there are no assets
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 73, paragraph 4.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Town of Winchester is the administrator of a single-employer public employee
retirement system (PERS) established and administered by the Town to provide pension benefits for
its municipal employees. The Plan provides retirement, death, and disability benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. The PERS is considered to be part of the Town of Winchester’s financial reporting
entity and is included in the Town'’s financial reports as a Pension Trust Fund. The plan does not
issue a stand-alone financial report. The Retirement Administration Board has the authority to make
rules and regulations for the administration of the plan. The Board consists of the Town Manager, two
citizens at large, and two non-supervisory employees of the Town appointed by the Board of
Selectmen. The Town manager’s seat is ex-officio (non-voting).

Classes of Employees Covered and Current Membership — Supervisors hired prior to December 20,
2012, Public Works employees hired prior to December 1, 2014, Secretaries/Administrators hired
prior to December 4, 2014, and Dispatchers hired prior to December 11, 2015 (except Police Officers
covered by CMERS, those covered by the State of Connecticut Teachers Retirement System, and
alternative funding source employees) at least 21 years of age and having six months of service are
eligible. One year of credited service is earned for each calendar year during which 1,000 hours is
worked. Current membership consists of the following:

Active plan members 24
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries receiving benefits 55
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits __ 9
Total plan participants _88

Benefits Provided - Employees are 100% vested after five years of continuous service as long as their
contributions remain in the fund upon termination. Employees who retire at the normal retirement age
65 or 5 years of service (age 55 or 10 years of services for BOE members); or upon meeting the rule
of 75 (age plus years of service = 75) receive a retirement benefit for life of 2% times years of credited
service (maximum of 25 years for BOE; 35 years for all other employees) of the average of the three
highest consecutive years of compensation out of the last 10 years prior to retirement. No cost of
living adjustments are included. Members can withdraw or discontinue their contributions at any time
during their service with the Town. They can re-join the plan after one year from the date the
participant elected to withdraw or discontinue their contributions. Members’' contributions are also
returnable on termination or upon death while active. The balance of contributions is returnable after
retirement (less any benefits paid) provided in each case that no death benefits are otherwise paid.

Contributions - The contribution requirements of the Town are established and may be amended by
the Board of Selectmen, as suggested by the actuarial valuations. The actuarial method used to
develop the annual funding percentage for all benefits is the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method.
The Town currently contributes at the actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 39.75% of annual
covered payroll. Plan participants from the Board of Education are required to contribute 2.5% of their
earnings up to the Social Security base and 5% of earnings over the Social Security base. All others
must contribute 5% of earnings. Costs to administer the plan are paid by the Pension Trust Fund and
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are included in the actuarially determined contribution. Investment management fees are also paid
out of the Pension Trust Fund.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting - The Town of Winchester Pension Plan’s financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member and employer contributions are recognized as
revenues in the period in which employee services are performed. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. For purposes of
measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions,
and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the plan and
additions/deductions to/from the Town’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by the Town’s Pension Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Investment Policy — The Pension Plan’s policy in regards to the allocation of invested assets is
established and may be amended by the Retirement Administration Board. It is the policy of the
Town'’s board to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through the prudent diversification of
the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset classes. The pension plan’s investment policy
discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from
dramatically shifting asset class allocations over short time spans.

Method Used to Value Investments - All funds are invested at Morgan Stanley and administered
through First State Trust Company, and are reported at fair value. Investment income is recognized
as earned.

There were no investments that represented 5% or more of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position.
Money-weighted Rate of Return — For the year ended June 30, 2022 the annual money-weighted rate
of return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was (13.72) percent.
The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense,
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Currently there is no Deferred Retirement Option Plan.

Net Pension Liability of the Town
The components of the net pension liability of the Town at June 30, 2022, were as follows:

Schedule of Net Pension Liability

2022
Total pension liability $ 13,660,116
Plan fiduciary net position 8,974,089
Net pension liability (asset) $ 4,686,027
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 65.70%
Covered payroll 1,523,321
Net pension liability as a % of covered payroll 307.62%
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The annual required contribution for the current year was
determined as part of the January 1, 2021 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial
cost method. The funding policy consists of two parts, normal cost plus an amortization of the plan’s
Unfunded Actuarial Liability. For the January 1, 2022 valuation, a closed amortization period of 18
years was used. Significant actuarial assumptions used include: (1) rate of return on investments of
6.75% per year, (2) projected salary increases of 2.40% per year, and (3) a normal retirement age at
the later of age 65 or 5 years of service. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized
over 18 years. Mortality was based on Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Amount-Weighted Mortality
Table projected to valuation date with Scale MP-2021. An expenses study has not been performed.

Discount Rate — The long-term expected rate of return on investments may be used to discount
liabilities to the extent that the plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions are projected to be
sufficient to cover expected benefit payments and administrative expenses for current plan members.
Projections of the plan’s fiduciary net position incorporate all cash flows for contributions from the
employer and employee and administrative expenses. Professional judgment should be applied to the
projections of contributions in circumstances where a) contributions amounts are established by
statute or contract or b) a formal written policy exists. Consideration should also be given to the most
recent five-year contribution history as key indicators of future contributions. It should not include cash
flows for future plan members.

If the amount of the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be greater than or equal to the benefit
payments and administrative expenses made in that period, the actuarial present value of payments
should be discounted using the long-term expected rate of return on those investments. A 20-year,
high quality (AA/Aa or higher), tax-exempt municipal bond yield or index rate must be used to discount
benefit payments for periods where the fiduciary net position is not projected to cover the expected
benefit payments and administrative expenses.

Plans that are projected to have a sufficient fiduciary net position indefinitely will use the long-term
expected return on investments to determine liabilities but will have to substantiate their projected
solvency. Plans that are projected to not have a sufficient fiduciary net position (i.e., assets are not
sufficient to cover future benefit payments and administrative expenses) will be required to use a
blended single equivalent discount rate, which may be significantly lower that the long-term expected
rate of return on investments and will result in higher liabilities. GASB permits alternative methods to
evaluate sufficiency of the plan’s fiduciary net position. Based on the plan’s current net pension
liability and current contribution policy, the plan’s projected fiduciary net position will be sufficient to
cover projected benefit payments and administrative expenses indefinitely. Therefore, since the fund
is not projected to run out of money, we have used the 6.75% interest rate assumption to discount
plan liabilities.

Current 1% Decrease 1% Increase
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
6.75% 5.75% 7.75%

Net pension liability as of June 30, 2022 $4,686,027 $5,958,234 $3,586,920

Valuation Date and Roll Forward Process — The plan used the January 1, 2021 valuation to calculate
the Actuarially Determined Employer Contribution for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The January
1, 2022 Total Pension Liability was increased by service cost, interest, and decreased by benefit
payments to estimate the Total Pension Liability as of June 30, 2022. The Total Pension Liability as of
June 30, 2022 was also adjusted to reflect any material plan changes after the valuation.
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Target Allocation and Expected Rate of Return
June 30, 2022

Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation  _Rate of Return * Weighting
U.S. Large Cap 20.00% 4.00% 0.80%
U.S. Mid Cap 9.00% 5.10% 0.46%
U.S. Small Cap 6.00% 5.10% 0.31%
International-Developed 10.00% 5.60% 0.56%
Emerging Markets 7.00% 8.30% 0.58%
Domestic Government Fixed 10.00% 2.00% 0.20%
Global High Yield 5.00% 3.60% 0.18%
International Fixed 5.00% 0.80% 0.04%
Global Inflation Adjusted 5.00% 6.80% 0.34%
Real Estate 5.00% 4.40% 0.22%
Hedge Strategy 10.00% 5.20% 0.52%
Commodities 5.00% 3.00% 0.15%
Cash 3.00% 1.00% 0.03%
100.00% 4.39%

Long-Term Inflation Expectation 2.40%
Long-Term Expected Nominal Return 6.79%

* Long-term returns are provided by Morgan Stanley. The returns are geometric means.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return are developed.
Best estimates of the real rates of return for each major asset class are included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation.

The information is based on geometric means and does not reflect additional returns through
investment selection, asset allocation and rebalancing. An expected rate of return of 6.75% was used.
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Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liablity Net Position Liability
(@) (b) (a)- (b)
Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 14,063,414 $ 10,591,682 $ 3,471,732
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 166,246 - 166,246
Interest 929,105 - 929,105
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience (581,984) - (581,984)
Changes in Assumptions 29,070 - 29,070
Employer Contributions - 725,000 (725,000)
Member Contributions - 40,003 (40,003)
Net Investment Income - (1,429,940) 1,429,940
Benefit Payments (945,735) (945,735)
Administrative Expenses - (6,921) 6,921
Net Changes (403,298) (1,617,593) 1,214,295
Balance at June 30, 2022 $ 13,660,116 $ 8,974,089 $ 4,686,027
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 65.70%
Covered Payroll $ 1,523,321
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 307.62%

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense (gain) of $387,134. As of
June 30, 2022, the Town reported deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pension from

the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 283,560 $ -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
of Pension Plan investments 1,043,701 -
Differences between expected and actual experience - 166,281
Changes of assumptions 8,306 -
Total $ 1,335,567 $ 166,281

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to Town contributions after the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent
year. Other amounts reported as net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to pension will

be recognized in the pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2023 $ 110,015

2024 227,291
2025 120,691
2026 427,729

$ 885,726
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Connecticut State Teacher’s Retirement System

Plan Description: Teachers, principals, superintendents, or supervisors engaged in service of public
schools are provided with pensions through the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System (the
“System”). The System is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Board (CTRB). Chapter 167a of the State Statutes
grants authority to establish and amend the benefited terms to the CTRB Board. The CTRB issues a
publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.ct.gov.

Benefit Provisions: The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Employees are eligible
to retire at age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited service
including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Normal Retirement: Retirement benefits for the employees are calculated as 2% of the average
annual salary times years of credited service (maximum benefit is 75% of average annual salary
during the 3 highest years of salary). In addition, amounts derived from accumulation of the 6%
contributions made prior to July 1, 1989, and voluntary contributions are payable.

Early Retirement: Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service including 20 years of
Connecticut service, or age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 15 years of Connecticut
service with reduced benefit amounts.

Disability Retirement: Employees are eligible for service-related disability regardless of length of
service. Five years of credited service is required for non-service-related disability or eligibility.
Disability benefits are calculated as 2% per year of service times the average of the highest three
years of pensionable salary, as defined per the plan, but not less than 15% of average annual
salary, nor more than 50% of average annual salary.

Contributions: Per Connecticut General Studies Section 10-183z, contribution requirements of active
employees and the State of Connecticut are approved, amended, and certified by the State Teachers
Retirement Board and appropriated by the General Assembly.

Employer (School Districts): School District employers are not required to make contributions to
the plan. The statutes require the State of Connecticut to contribute 100% of each school districts’
required contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount, that, when combined with
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits earned by employees
during the year, with any additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees: Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual salary to the System as
required by the CGS Section 10-183b(7). For the year ended June 30, 2022 the certified
teachers’ contribution to the Connecticut Teachers Retirement Board was $396,450. Covered
payroll for the town for the year ended June 30, 2022 was approximately $5,663,576.

53



TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred OQutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions: At June 30, 2022 the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows due to the statutory requirement that the
State pay 100% of the required contribution. The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate
share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension
liability that was associated with the Town were as follows:

Town's proportionate share of the net $
pension liability

State's proportionate share of the net

pension liability associated with the Town 17,581,944
Total $ 17,581,944

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. At
June 30, 2022, the Town had no proportionate share of the net pension liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized benefits expense and contribution revenue of
$1,472,207 in the governmental funds for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State. In
the government-wide financial statements, the Town recognized $1,134,955 for pension expense
related to actuarial liabilities for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State.

Actuarial Assumptions: The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based
on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015. The
total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement.

Inflation 2.50 Percent
Salary increases, including inflation 3.00-6.50 Percent
Long-term investment rate of return, 6.90 Percent

net of pension investment expense,
including inflation.

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for males and
103% for females as ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-2019 for the period after
service retirement.

Future Cost-of-Living increases for members who retired prior to September 1, 1992, are made in
accordance with increases in the Consumer Price Index, with a minimum of 3% and a maximum of
5% per annum. For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System before July 1,
2007, and retire on or after September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made that are
consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a
maximum of 6% per annum. If the return on assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the
maximum increase is 1.5%. For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System
after July 1, 2007, pension benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those provided for
Social Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 5% per annum. If the
return on assets in the previous year was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is 3%, and if the
return on the assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.0%.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension investments was determined using a log-normal
distributions analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The current capital market assumptions and the target asset allocation as provided by the
Treasurer's Office are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity Fund 20.00% 5.60%
Developed Market Intl. Stock Fund 11.00% 6.00%
Emerging Market Intl. Stock Fund 9.00% 7.90%
Core Fixed Income Fund 16.00% 2.10%
Inflation Linked Bond Fund 5.00% 1.10%
Emerging Market Debt Fund 5.00% 2.70%
High Yield Bond Fund 6.00% 4.00%
Real Estate Fund 10.00% 4.50%
Private Equity 10.00% 7.30%
Alternative Investments 7.00% 2.90%
Liquidity Fund 1.00% 0.40%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate and that State contributions will be made at the actuarially
determined rates in future years. Based on those assumptions, the pension’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The Town’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability is $0 and therefore the change in the discount rate would only impact
the amount recorded by the State of Connecticut.

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description: All Town employees not covered by the Town’s defined contribution plan, the
Town’s defined benefit pension plan, or the teacher retirement system participate in the Municipal
Employees’ Retirement System (MERS). This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee
retirement system (PERS) established by the State of Connecticut and administered by the State
Retirement Commission to provide pension benefits for the employees of participating local
government authorities. Chapters 7-425 to 7-451 of the State of Connecticut General Statutes, which
can be amended by legislative action, establishes MERS benefits, member contribution rates and
other plan provisions. MERS is considered to be part of the State of Connecticut’s financial reporting
entity and is included in the State’s financial reports as a pension trust fund. Those reports can be

obtained at www.ct.gov.
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Benefit Provisions: The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits, and annual cost-of-
living adjustments to plan members and their beneficiaries. Employees are eligible to retire at age 55
with 5 years of continuous service, or 15 years of active aggregate service, or 25 years of aggregate
service. |n addition, compulsory retirement is at age 65 for police and fire members.

Normal Retirement: For members not covered by social security, retirement benefits are
calculated as 2% of average final compensation, times years of service. For members covered by
social security, retirement benefits are calculated as 1.5% of the average final compensation not in
excess of the year’s breakpoint plus 2% of average final compensation in excess of the year's
breakpoint, times years of service. Maximum benefit is 100% of average final compensation and
the minimum benefit is $1,000 annually.

Early Retirement: Members must have 5 years of continuous or 15 years of active aggregate
service. Benefits are calculated as a service retirement allowance on the basis of the average of
the three highest paid years of service to the date of termination. Deferred to normal retirement
age, or an actuarially reduced allowance may begin at the time of separation.

Disability Retirement — Service Connected: Employees who are totally and permanently disabled
and such disability has arisen out of and in the course of employment with the municipality.
Disability due to heart and hypertension in the case of fire and police, is presumed to have been
suffered in the line of duty. Benefits are calculated as a service retirement allowance based on
compensation and service to the date of the disability with a minimum benefit (including worker’s
compensation benefits) of 50% of compensation at the time of disability, are eligible after 25 years
of credited service including 20 years of Connecticut service, or age 55 with 20 years of credited
service including 15 years of Connecticut service with reduced benefit amounts.

Disability Retirement — Non-Service Connected: Employees who have 10 years of service and are
totally and permanently disabled. Benefits are calculated as a service retirement allowance based
on compensation and service to the date of the disability.

Death Benefit: Employees who are eligible for service, disability, or early retirement and married
for at least 12 months preceding death. Benefits are calculated based on the average of the three
highest paid years of service and creditable service at date of death, payable to the spouse.
Benefit is equal to 50% of the average of the life annuity allowance and the reduced 50% joint and
survivor allowance.

Contributions - Member: Contributions for members not covered by social security are 6% of
compensation; for members covered by social security, 3.25% of compensation up to the social
security taxable wage base plus 6%, if any, in excess of such base.

Contributions — Employer: Participating employers make annual contributions consisting of a normal
cost contribution, a contribution for the amortization of the net unfunded accrued liability and a prior
service amortization payment, which covers the liabilities of MERS not met by member contributions.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions: At June 30, 2022, the Town reports a total liability of $2,485,014 for government-wide
financials for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured
at June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation at that date. The Town’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the Town’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative
to the projected contributions of all participants, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Town’s
proportion was 4.93%.
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense in the government-wide
financial statements of $417,938. As of June 30, 2022, the Town reported deferred inflows and
outflows of resources related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 444072 % -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings - 1,093,266
Difference between expected and actual experience 193,274 335,906

Changes in assumptions 324,172 -
Change in proportional share 241,137 7,548
Total $ 1,202,655 § 1,436,720

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to Town contributions after the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent
year. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in the
pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2023 $ 100,112
2024 (212,458)
2025 (247,872)
2026 (317,919)
$ (678,137)

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2021, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.50 Percent
Salary increases, including inflation 3.50-10.00 Percent
Long-term investment rate of return, 7.00 Percent

net of pension investment expense,
including inflation.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Combined Mortality Table adjusted to 2006 and projected
to 2015 with Scale MP-2017 and projected to 2022 with Scale BB for General Employees for the
period after retirement and for dependent beneficiaries. The RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table
adjusted to 2006 and projected to 2015 with Scale MP-2017 and projected to 2022 with Scale BB is
used by Police and Fire for the period after retirement and for dependent beneficiaries. For disabled
retirees, the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table projected to 2020 by Scale BB is used.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2012 — June 30, 2017.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a statistical
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 20.00% 5.30%
Developed Market International 11.00% 5.10%
Emerging Market International 9.00% 7.40%
Core Fixed Income 16.00% 1.60%
Inflation Linked Bond 5.00% 1.30%
Emerging Market Debt 5.00% 2.90%
High Yield Bonds 6.00% 3.40%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.70%
Private Equity 10.00% 7.30%
Alternative Investments 7.00% 3.20%
Liquidity Fund 1.00% 0.90%

Total  100.00%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions
will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at the
actuarially determined contribution rates in the future years. Based on those assumptions, the
pension’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the
Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as
well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00%)
than the current rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
6.0% 7.0% 8.0%
Net Pension Liability as of June 30, 2022 $ 4352317 $ 2485014 $ 909,208
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NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description. The Town allows certain retired employees and their spouses to remain on the
Town’s health insurance plan until age 65. Certified Board of Education employees age 50 with 25
years of service or age 55 with 20 years of service or age 60 with 10 years of service are eligible.
Town employees are eligible at age 55 with 10 years of service or Rule of 75. There are no assets
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 73.

Funding Policy. Retired Certified Board of Education employees pay 100% of the premiums. The
Board of Education pays for 50% of each retiree’s annual Health Savings Account contribution, which
equals $750 for single coverage and $1,500 for 2 person or family coverage. All other Town retirees
pay 100% of the premiums and 100% of any Health Savings Account contributions. The Town pays
the full cost of insurance for one current retiree per a specific settlement agreement.

Effective June 2017, a Voluntary Employee Benefits Association (VEBA) trust was to be established
by the Police Union, which is designed to provide medical benefits to police retirees. Per the Police
Union labor contract, the primary funding source for this trust is a $10 per hour surcharge on all
outside details, which is paid by the contractor engaging the police to be present on the job site. The
Town has no future funding requirements to police retiree medical benefits. At June 30, 2022 one
current police retiree has medical coverage with the Town until age 65 per a specific settlement
agreement.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by
the benefit terms:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits I
Active plan members 120
127

Total OPEB Liability: The Town'’s total OPEB liability of $2,717,786 was measured as of June 30,
2022 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs. The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2020 valuation was
determined using the following assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Measurement Date June 30, 2022 for June 30, 2022 Reporting Date

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Salary

Salary Increases 2.4% (Prior 2.6%)

Discount Rate 3.54% (Prior 2.16%) Which is based on the 20-bond GO index
effective as of June 30, 2022.

Mortality Rates Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Amount-Weighted Mortality Tables,

projected to the valuation date with Scale MP-2020.
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at 6/30/21 $ 3,256,148
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 92,514

Interest 70,767

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 19,725

Changes of Benefit Terms -

Changes in Assumptions (575,734)

Benefit Payments (145,634)
Net Changes (5638,362)
Balance at 6/30/22 $ 2,717,786

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the
total OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town'’s total OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.54%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(4.54%) than the current discount rate:

Current 1% 1%
Discount Rate Decrease Increase
3.54% 2.54% 4.54%

Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2022  § 2,717,786  § 3,115,635 $ 2,400,079

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The following
presents the total OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town'’s total OPEB liability would be
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (5.50%
decreasing to 3.40%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.50% decreasing to 5.40%) than the current
healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare

Cost Trend

Rates 1% Decrease 1% Increase

Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2022  $ 2717786  $ 2,341,975 $ 3,190,849

OPEB Expense: For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $60,907.
As of June 30, 2022, deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to OPEB are reported as
follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 303,034 §$ 849,152
Changes of assumptions 455,829 603,942
Total $ 758,863 § 1,453,094
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
the OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2023 $ (90,494)

2024 (90,494)

2025 (90,494)

2026 (90,494)

2027 (90,494)
Thereafter (241,761)
$  (694,231)

Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement System - OPEB

Plan Description - Teachers, principals, superintendents or supervisors engaged in service of public
schools are provided with benefits, including retiree health insurance, through the Connecticut
Teachers’ Retirement System—a cost sharing multiemployer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the TRB. Chapter 167a of the State Statutes grants authority to establish and amend
the benefit terms to the TRB. TRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at

www.ct.gov.

Benefit Provisions - The Plan covers retired teachers and administrators of public schools in the State
who are receiving benefits from the Plan. The Plan provides healthcare insurance benefits to eligible
retirees and their spouses. Any member that is currently receiving a retirement or disability benefit
through the Plan is eligible to participate in the healthcare portion of the Plan. Subsidized Local
School District Coverage provides a subsidy paid to members still receiving coverage through their
former employer and the TRB Sponsored Medicare Supplemental Plans provide coverage for those
participating in Medicare, but not receiving Subsidized Local School District Coverage.

Any member that is not currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to continue
healthcare coverage with their former employer. A subsidy of up to $110 per month for a retired
member plus an additional $110 per month for a spouse enrolled in a local school district plan is
provided to the school district to first offset the retiree’s share of the cost of coverage, any remaining
portion is used to offset the district's cost. The subsidy amount is set by statute, and has not
increased since July of 1996. A subsidy amount of $220 per month may be paid for a retired member,
spouse or the surviving spouse of a member who has attained the normal retirement age to
participate in Medicare, is not eligible for Part A of Medicare without cost, and contributes at least
$220 per month towards coverage under a local school district plan. Employees are eligible to retire at
age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited service including at
least 25 years of service in Connecticut. Any member that is currently participating in Medicare Parts
A & B is eligible to either continue health care coverage with their former employer, if offered, or enroll
in the plan sponsored by the system. If they elect to remain in the Plan with their former employer,
the same subsidies as above will be paid to offset the cost of coverage.

Contributions - Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z (which reflects Public Act 79-436
as amended), contribution requirements of active employees and the State of Connecticut are
amended and certified by the TRB and appropriated by the General Assembly. The State pays for
one third of plan costs through an annual appropriation in the General Fund.

School district employers are not required to make contributions to the Plan. The State of
Connecticut’'s estimated allocated contribution to the Plan on behalf of the Town was $34,644.
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The cost of providing plan benefits is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis as follows: active teachers’
pay for one third of the Plan costs through a contribution of 1.25% of their pensionable salaries, and
retired teachers pay for one third of the Plan costs through monthly premiums, which helps reduce the
cost of health insurance for eligible retired members and dependents.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2021 using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Real Wage Growth 0.50%

Wage Inflation 3.00%

Salary increases 3.00-6.50%, including inflation

Long-term investment rate of return 3.00%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,

including inflation
Municipal bond index rate:

Measurement Date 2.16%

Prior Measurement Date 2.21%
The projected fiduciary net position is projected to be depleted in 2023.

Single equivalent interest rate
Measurement Date 2.17%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,

including price inflation
Prior Measurement Date 2.21%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,
Including price inflation

Healthcare cost trend rates:
Medicare 5.125% for 2020 decreasing to an ultimate
Rate of 4.50% by 2023.

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 healthy Retiree Table(adjusted 105% for males and
103% for females as ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-2019 for the period after
service retirement.

Long-Term Rate of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on plan assets is reviewed as part
of the GASB 75 valuation process. Several factors are considered in evaluation the long-term rate of
return assumption, including the Plan’s current asset allocations and a log-normal distribution analysis
using the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of
investment expense and inflation) for each major asset class.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined by weighing the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The assumption
is not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation
assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years.
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The target asset allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset

class are summarized in the following table:
Expected 10-Year

Target Geometric Real  Standard
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return  peviation
U.S. Treasuries (Cash Equivalents) 100.0% -0.42% 1.78%
Price inflation 2.50%
Expected rate of return (Rounded nearest 0.25%) 2.00%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.17%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate was performed in accordance with GASB 75. The
projection’s basis was an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2020. In addition to the
actuarial methods and assumptions of the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation, the following actuarial
methods and assumptions were used in the projection of cash flows:

e Total payroll for the initial projection year consists of the payroll of the active membership
present on the valuation date. In subsequent projection years, total payroll was assumed to
increase annually at a rate of 3.00%.

e Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the current member contribution rate.
Employee contributions for future plan members were used to reduce the estimated amount of
total service costs for future plan members.

e Annual State contributions were assumed to be equal to the most recent five-year average of
state contributions toward the fund.

Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be depleted in 2023
and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the determination of the single equivalent
rate.

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The following
presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using current cost trend rates, as well as what the Plan’s
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percntage point higher than current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Lower Current 1% Higher
Trend Rates Trend Rates Trend Rates
Initial Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 4.125% 5.125% 6.125%
Ultimate Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 3.50% 4.50% 5.50%
Total OPEB Liability $ 1,604,352 $ 1,915,521 $ 2,341,036
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Discount Rates - The following presents the net
OPEB liability, calculated using the current discount rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point
higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.17%) (2.17%) (3.17%)
Net OPEB liability $ 2,344,531 $ 1,915,521 $ 1,581,119

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions: At June 30, 2022 the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows due to the statutory requirement that the State pay
100% of the required contribution. The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was
associated with the Town were as follows:

Town's proportionate share of the net $ -
OPERB liability

State's proportionate share of the net

OPERB liability associated with the Town 1,915,521
Total $ 1,915521

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. At
June 30, 2022, the Town had no proportionate share of the net OPEB liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense and revenue of $34,644 in
the governmental funds for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State. In the
government-wide financial statements, the Town recognized ($70,734) for OPEB expense related to
actuarial liabilities for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State.

NOTE 7 - OTHER INFORMATION

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered
by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties, except for worker's
compensation, which is handled through an interlocal risk pool. Settled claims for these risks did not
exceed commercial insurance coverage for the current year or three prior years.
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A schedule of changes in the claims liability for heart and hypertension judgments for the years ended
June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020, is presented below:

Accrued Current Year Accrued Accrued
Liability Claims and Liability Liability
Beginning of Changes in Claim End of
Fiscal Year Estimates Payments Fiscal Year
2019-20 $ 857,261 § - % 65,349 § 791,912
2020-21 791,912 - 66,606 725,306
2021-22 725,306 - 65,349 659,957

Interlocal Risk Pool

The Town is a member of the Connecticut Interlocal Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), an
unincorporated association of Connecticut local public agencies which was formed in 1980 by the
Connecticut Conference of Municipalities for the purpose of establishing and administering an
interlocal risk management program pursuant to the provisions of Section 7-479a et. seq. of the
Connecticut General Statutes. The Workers’ Compensation Pool provides statutory benefits pursuant
to the provisions of the Connecticut Workers’ Compensation Act. CIRMA currently has 203 members
in the Workers’ Compensation Pool. CIRMA’s Workers’ Compensation Pool retains up to $1,000,000
per occurrence. Claims over $1,000,000 are reinsured. The pooling agreement allows CIRMA to
make additional assessments to make the pool self-sustaining. The Town cannot estimate the amount
of such additional assessments and has not been notified that any assessments are forthcoming.
CIRMA publishes its own financial report, which can be obtained from: CIRMA, 900 Chapel Street,
New Haven, CT.

Contingent Liabilities

There are various suits and claims pending against the Town, none of which, individually or in the
aggregate, is believed by counsel to be likely to result in judgment or judgments that could materially
affect the Town’s financial position.

The Town may be subject to rebate penalties to the federal government relating to various bond note
issues. The Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The Town participates in Regional Refuse District No. 1, a transfer station that was formally a landfill.
The District has been informed that its landfill is on the Superfund list and has been named a
potentially responsible party by the Environmental Protection Agency. The District has settled its
liability for the Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study, and the EPA has approved a long-term
natural attenuation and monitoring program as the final remedy for the site. The annual financial
obligation for this long-term work was funded by amounts obtained in grant funds and assessed to all
PRP’s and set aside in a trust fund for these activities. At this point, it is premature to estimate the
final cost of the program, as the total cost of post closure care is an estimate and subject to changes
resulting from inflation, deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws and regulations. The
towns served by the District are required to pay any shortfall in the District's budget. The Town of
Winchester, CT is responsible for approximately 51% of any such shortfall.
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NOTE 8 -PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Town reclassified the Student Activity Funds from
Fiduciary Funds to Special Revenue Funds. The effects of this reclassification are below:

Fiduciary Special Revenue
Funds Funds
Custodial Student Activity
Funds Funds
Net position as previously reported as June 30, 2021 $ 10,579 $ -
To reclassify fund to proper fund type (10,579) 10,579
Net position as restated at July 1, 2021 3 - $ 10,579

NOTE 9 -UPCOMING PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Pronouncements Issued, But Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements that
have effective dates that may impact future financial presentations. Management has not currently
determined what, if any, impact implementation of the following statements may have on the financial
statements:

GASB Statement No. 91 — Conduit Debt Obligations — The primary objectives of this statement are to
provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in
practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The requirements of this statement are
effective for the Town’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 94 — Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements — The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by
addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). The
requirements of this statement are effective for the Town'’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 96 — Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements — This
Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription
asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and
(4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are
based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The requirements of
this statement are effective for the Town'’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2022.
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GASB Statement No. 99 — Omnibus 2022 - The objectives of this Statement are to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial
guarantees. The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP
distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging
governments, clarification of certain provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminology
updates related to Statement 53 and Statement 63 are effective upon issuance. The requirements
related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for the Town'’s reporting period beginning July 1,
2022. The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of
derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective for the Town’s reporting period
beginning July 1, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 100 — Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - The primary objective of this
Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and
error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable
information for making decisions or assessing accountability. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for the Town’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 101 — Compensated Absences - The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and
measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the
recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously
required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the Town'’s reporting period
beginning July 1, 2024.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT Page 1 of 4
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Taxes
Property Taxes $ 24,140,000 $ 24,140,000 24,596,184 $ 456,184
Property Taxes - Prior Years 300,000 300,000 442,682 142,682
Supplemental Tax - - 81 81
Interest and Lien Fees 150,000 150,000 220,024 70,024
Total Taxes 24,590,000 24,590,000 25,258,971 668,971
Intergovernmental Revenue
State of Connecticut - General Government 1,012,570 1,012,570 1,007,147 (5,423)
State of Connecticut - Board of Education 7,823,991 7,823,991 7,843,957 19,966
Total Intergovernmental Revenues 8,836,561 8,836,561 8,851,104 14,543
Other Local Revenues
Licenses, Fees and Permits
Cemeteries 35,000 35,000 39,275 4,275
Town Clerk 200,000 200,000 328,873 128,873
Charges for Services
In Lieu of Taxes - Housing Authority 39,000 39,000 39,858 858
Building Department 112,000 112,000 197,442 85,442
Planning and Zoning 6,000 6,000 11,100 5,100
Inland Wetlands Commission 3,000 3,000 6,110 3,110
Zoning Board of Appeals 3,000 3,000 9,430 6,430
Police Department 19,000 19,000 13,869 (5,131)
Fire and Ambulance 56,200 56,200 58,641 2,441
Sale of Land and Equipment 100,000 100,000 - (100,000)
Park and Recreation Department 20,000 20,000 20,500 500
Sewer-Water Administration 270,000 270,000 270,000 -
Sewer Debt Service 226,552 226,552 226,551 )]
Other 60,345 60,345 137,130 76,785
Total Other Local Revenues 1,150,097 1,150,097 1,358,779 208,682
Total Revenues $ 34,576,658 $ 34,576,658 35,468,854 $ 892,196
Other Financing Sources
Fund Balance- Unassigned 229,000 229,000 - (229,000)
Fund Balance- BOE Nonlapsing 85,000 119,780 - (119,780)
Total Other Financing Sources $ 314,000 $ 348,780 - $  (348,780)

See accountant's report.
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Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES
General Government

Board of Selectmen $ 47155 $ 46,807 $ 43,147 $ 3,660
Town Clerk 223,532 220,032 186,324 33,708
Treasurer 48,937 49,578 49,182 396
Accounting Department 493,722 493,722 467,466 26,256
Election Expenditures 71,518 71,518 53,427 18,091
Insurance 456,422 424,083 427,984 (3,901)
Town Counsel 125,000 125,000 113,352 11,648
Town Manager 219,800 214,456 211,329 3,127
Building Department 265,337 265,337 221,951 43,386
Assessor 208,077 198,077 185,276 12,801
Board of Tax Review 2,841 2,841 2,740 101
Tax Collector 183,094 183,094 176,757 6,337
Planning and Zoning 6,688 6,688 3,579 3,109
Building - Town Hall 229,558 261,672 253,051 8,621
Inland Wetland Commission 3,660 8,660 6,575 2,085
Zoning Board of Appeals 3,230 3,230 1,803 1,427
Laurel City Commission 15,000 15,348 15,348 -
Northwest Conservation District 1,840 1,840 1,840 -
Purchasing/Data Processing 270,352 282,852 282,537 315
Probate Court 6,860 6,860 1,530 5,330
Senior Citizens 217,816 217,816 185,211 32,605
Rural Transit District 2,397 2,397 2,397 -
Vacation and Sick Pay Accrual 158,000 158,000 156,357 1,643
Highland Lake 44,158 44,158 33,884 10,274
Economic Development Commission 8,500 8,500 2,994 5,506
School Crossing Guards 60,455 60,455 48,891 11,564
Conservation Commission 1 1 - 1
Unemployment Compensation 18,000 18,000 (312) 18,312
Cemeteries 99,615 102,115 101,769 346
Soldiers Monument Commission 6,700 6,700 4,873 1,827
Planning and Community Development 180,948 175,948 170,413 5,535
Civil Service Commission 20,765 20,765 2,326 18,439
Farmington River Watershed 852 852 852 -
Other Town Properties 22,500 26,893 25,746 1,147
Friends of Main Street 9,000 9,000 9,000 -

Total General Government $ 3,732,330 $ 3,733,295 $ 3,449,599 $ 283,696

See accountant's report.
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Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Library $ 233,971 § 233,971 $ 233,971 $ -
Miscellaneous 962,81 1 834,1 99 834,199 =
Contracted Printing 5,000 5,000 4,722 278
Waste Disposal and Recycling 209,038 209,038 209,038 -
Public Safety
Police Department 3,276,667 3,298,721 3,296,194 2,527
Fire Department 428,556 428,556 421,703 6,853
Dog Account 41,894 46,005 44,941 1,064
Civil Preparedness 10,747 10,747 10,020 727
Winchester Fire Department 48,000 48,000 47,384 616
Ambulance 91,000 91,000 91,000 -
Social Services 1,000 1,742 1,266 476
Dispatch 284,765 284,765 283,035 1,730
Total Public Safety 4,182,629 4,209,536 4,195,543 13,993
Public Works
Public Works Department/Highways 2,257,387 2,229,639 2,071,829 157,810
Street Lighting 140,000 140,000 129,981 10,019
Total Public Works 2,397,387 2,369,639 2,201,810 167,829
Health
Department of Health 131,377 131,377 127,494 3,883
Youth and Family Services 29,940 29,940 29,940 -
Paramedic 183,000 183,000 182,400 600
Total Health 344,317 344,317 339,834 4,483
Parks and Recreation
Park and Recreation Department 344,850 344,850 304,702 40,148
Education
Board of Education 20,261,686 20,381,466 20,381,449 17
Retirement and Pension Contribution $ 438,852 $ 475,635 $ 467,343 $ 8,292

See accountant's report.
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 392,000 $ 392,000 $ 392,000 $ -
Interest 39,235 39,235 39,235 -
Sewer Plant Principal Retirement 28,000 28,000 28,000 -
Sewer Plant Interest 3,758 3,758 3,758 -
Sewer Principal Retirement 184,854 184,854 184,854 -
Go Ban Interest- PW Projects 25,000 25,000 - 25,000
Sewer Interest 9,940 9,940 9,939 1
Total Debt Service 682,787 682,787 657,786 25,001
Contingency 20,000 20,000 - 20,000
Total Expenditures 33,815,658 33,843,733 33,279,996 563,737
Other Financing Uses
Transfer out to Capital Projects 1,075,000 1,081,705 1,075,000 6,705
Total Transfers 1,075,000 1,081,705 1,075,000 6,705
Total 34,890,658 34,925,438 34,354,996 570,442
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $ - - 1,113,858 $ 1,113,858

See accountant's report.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Budgetary Information and Accounting

The budgets are prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting except for encumbrances.
Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper change against a budget appropriation in the
year in which the purchase order is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at year-end
are reflected in budgetary reports as expenditures in the current year.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Open encumbrances are reported
as reservations of fund balances since the commitments will be honored in subsequent years.
Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities in the governmental funds.

Budgetary/GAAP Reconciliation

Accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ from those
used to present financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP basis”). The differences consist primarily of payments made by the
State of Connecticut “on-behalf’ of the Town into the State Teachers’ Retirement System, which are
not recorded for budgetary purposes, the revenues and expenditures for Water/Sewer Debt Service
are shown in the General Fund for budgetary purposes and in the Proprietary funds for the GAAP
statements, and expenditures from the BOE nonlapsing fund are shown for GAAP and not budgetary
purposes. The budget as presented has been amended by the Board of Selectmen throughout the
year.

A reconciliation of General Fund amounts presented on the budgetary basis to amounts presented on
the GAAP basis is as follows for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Total Total Other Financing
Revenue Expenses Sources (Uses)
|etary Basis $ 35468,8564 $ 33279996 §$ (1,075,000)
"On-behalf" payments -
State Teachers Retirement Fund 1,506,851 1,506,851 -
Adjustment for Encumbrances - 147,504 -
Capital Improvements Fund Transfer - - (1,940,182)
Reclass Water/Sewer Debt Service (226,551) (195,737) 30,814
P Basis $ 36,749,154 $ 34738614 $ (2,984,368)
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Schedule of Investment Returns
Last Nine Fiscal Years*

Annual Money-Weighted
Rate of Return, Net of

Year Ended June 30: Investment Expense
2014 14.55%
2015 3.03%
2016 -3.13%
2017 10.65%
2018 6.98%
2019 4.91%
2020 0.88%
2021 25.14%
2022 -13.72%

*This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years'
information will be displayed as it becomes available.

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Last Five Fiscal Years*

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost

Interest

Changes in Benefit Terms

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes of Assumptions

Benefit Payments

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning
Total OPEB Liability - Ending

Covered-Employee Payroll

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
$ 92514 $ 63363 § 47,018 3 64139 3 64,036
70,767 62,481 85,500 139,182 132,053
19,725 327,637 6,202 (1,286,990) (18,120)
(575,734) 125,441 398,638 82,678 (129,193)
(145.634) (172.275) (152.188) (132.688) (149.467)
(538,362) 406,647 385,170 (1,133,679) (100,691)
3,256,148 2,849,501 2,464,331 3,598,010 3,698,701
§ 2,717,786 §$ 3,256,148 § 2849501 §$ 2464331 § 3,598,010
$ 7838089 $ 7654384 $ 6523499 $ 6358187 § 7,137,686
34.67% 42.54% 43.68% 38.76% 50.41%

There are no assets that are being accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75 to pay benefits.

*This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available.

Notes to Schedule
Measurement Date
Valuation Date

Inflation Rate

Discount Rate

Actuarial Cost Method
Salary Increases

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

June 30, 2022
July 1, 2020

2.40% (Prior 2.60%)
3.54% (Prior 2.16%)
Entry Age Normal (level percent of salary)
2.40% (Prior 2.60%)
6.50% in 2020, reducing by 0.25% each year to an ultimate rate of 4.40%

per year rate for 2029 and later.

(Prior 7.00% in 2018, reducing by 0.5% each year to an ultimate rate of 4.60%

per year rate for 2023 and later.)

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT

Schedule of Town's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability
- Teachers' Retirement System
Last Five Fiscal Years*

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability

Town's percentage of the net OPEB liability

Town's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

State of Connecticut's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

associated with the Town
Total

Town's covered-employee payroll

Town's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll.

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

$ - . - -8 .
1,915,521 3,311,234 3,266,243 3,228,211 3,799,976

$ 1,915521 3,311,234 $ 3,266,243 3,228,211 $ 3,799,976
= e

$ 5,663,576 5,456,788 $ 5372594 5,218,621 $ 5,362,820
0.00% 0,00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

6.11% 2.50% 2.08% 1.49% 1.79%

*This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available.

Notes to Schedule
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Investment Rate of Retum
Price Inflation

Entry age

Level percent of payroll over a closed period
30 years

Market value of assels

3.00%, net of investment related expense including price inflation

2.50%

See accountant’s report
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Supplemental, Combining
Individual Nonmajor Fund
Statements, and Schedules



Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for particular purposes.

Industrial Park #2 Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures for the marketing and sales of
lots in the Town’s second industrial park.

Cafeteria Fund - To account for the Child Nutrition Program. Revenues consist of sales of food and
grant subsidies for nutrition.

Small Cities - To account for federal grant revenues from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development and subsequent loans to entities for various grant years.

Brownfields Pilot Program - To account for a grant from the U.S. E.P.A. and related expenditures to
study and redevelop several potentially contaminated manufacturing sites.

City Sidewalks Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures relating to the maintenance of
sidewalks.

Elderly Enrichment Part | Fund - To account for the revenues and expenditures relating to day
services for developmentally disabled individuals.

Cemetery Association Trust Fund - To account for the revenues and expenditures relating to the
maintenance of the Forest View Cemetery.

Anti-Blight Fund — To account for the revenues and expenditures relating to the clean-up of blighted
properties inside the Town.

Soldiers Monument Restoration Fund - To account for the revenues and expenditures relating to the
renovation of the monument structure at the soldiers monument park.

CHAMPS Fund — To account for activity of an after-school enrichment program.

Winchester School Trust Fund - To account for beneficiary funds received from the W. H. Batcheller
Trust to provide scholarships on an annual basis to local youth who excel in the school system.

Winchester Bond Sinking Fund - To account for funds established for the retirement of debt. The fund
balance must exceed $75,000 before any funds can be utilized.

Forest View Cemetery Chapel Trust Fund - To account for the revenues and expenditures for the
repairs and maintenance of the chapel located on the grounds of the Forest View Cemetery.

Crippled Children Trust Fund - This fund was established to provide funds for disabled children.

Beverly Pass Fund - This fund was established as a scholarship fund.

Grants & Donations Fund — To account for revenue and expenditures from estate bequeaths, citizen
donations, and funds arising from organizations declaring a non-taxable status, as well as fee-based
recreation programs.




Capital Non-Recurring Funds

Capital Improvements Fund - This fund is used to account for various long-term capital projects.

Permanent Funds

Forest View Cemetery Fund - This fund was established to accumulate donations and other
resources, the income on which is used for the operation and maintenance of the Town'’s Forest View
Cemetery and to purchase cemetery land.

Winchester Center Cemetery Fund - This fund was established to accumulate donations and other
resources, the income on which is used for the operation and maintenance of the Winchester Center
Cemetery and to purchase cemetery land.

Winchester Memorial Park Fund - This fund was established to provide funds to make repairs and
improvements to the Town of Winchester parks.

Jane A Nisbet Fund - This fund was established to accumulate interest with the income used for the
operation and maintenance of the Forest View Cemetery.

Town Park Fund - To account for funds contributed to the Town, the income on which is used for
repairs and maintenance of the Town parks.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Schedule of Water and Sewer Rents Levied, Collected, and Outstanding
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Water Rents:

New Levy and
Levy Uncollected Transfers Adjusted Levy Collections Water Rents
as of Balance, Lawful to and Uncollected Interest Receivable
July 1, July 1. 2021 Corrections Suspense Balance Rents and Liens Total June 30, 2022
2020 $ 1,882,122 $ (9,533) § - $ 1872589 $ 1765214 $ 19,248 § 1,784,462 §$ 107,375
2019 91,958 (108) - 91,850 85,882 16,343 102,225 5,968
2018 10,336 - - 10,336 7,583 2,253 9,836 2,753
2017 4,001 - - 4,001 769 472 1,241 3,232
2016 2,705 - - 2,705 178 199 377 2,527
2015 1,764 - - 1,764 - - - 1,764
2014 945 - - 945 (28) 28 - 973
2013 1,553 - - 1,553 - - - 1,553
2012 316 - - 316 - - - 316

$ 1,995700 $ (9,641) $ - $ 1,986,059 $ 1,859,598 $ 38,543 $ 1,898,141 $ 126,461

Sewer Rents:

New Levy and
Levy Uncollected Transfers Adjusted Levy Collections Sewer Rents
as of Balance, Lawful to and Uncollected Interest Receivable
July 1, July 1, 2021 Corrections Suspense Balance Rents and Liens Total June 30, 2022
2020 $ 1570979 $ (440) $ - $ 1570539 $ 1,492943 $ 23999 $ 1,516,942 $ 77,596
2019 73,481 (137) - 73,344 69,127 11,754 80,881 4,217
2018 12,875 - - 12,875 4,645 1,882 6,527 8,230
2017 3,279 - - 3,279 567 364 931 2,712
2016 2,584 - - 2,584 120 158 278 2,464
2015 1,780 - - 1,780 - - - 1,780
2014 1,217 - - 1,217 (72) 72 - 1,289
2013 1,705 - - 1,705 - - - 1,705
2012 712 - - 712 - - - 712

$ 1,668,612 $ (577) $ - $ 1,668,035 $ 1,567,330 $ 38,229 $ 1,605,559 $ 100,705

See accountant's report.
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Statistical Section Information

The objectives of statistical section information are to provide financial statement users with
additional historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in using the information in the
financial statements, notes to financial statements, and required supplementary information to
understand and assess economic conditions.

Statistical section information is presented in the following categories:

Financial trends information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing
how financial position has changed over time.

Revenue capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing
the factors affecting the ability to generate own-source revenues (property taxes, charges
for services, etc.)

Debt capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing debt
burden and the ability to issue additional debt.

Demographic and economic information is intended 1) to assist users in understanding
the socioeconomic environment and 2) to provide information that facilitates comparisons
of financial statement information over time and among governments.

Operating information is intended to provide contextual information about operations and
resources to assist readers in using financial statement information to understand and
assess economic condition.

The accompanying tables are presented in the above order. Refer to the Table of Contents for
applicable page number locations.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in the tables is derived from the annual comprehensive
financial reports for the relevant year.
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Debt Statement
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Table 11

Direct Debt
General Obligation Bonds $ 836,000
Notes and Loans Payable 5,168,969
Total Direct Debt 6,004,969
Total Net Direct Debt (a) 5,836,000
Overlapping Debt -
Total Net Overall Debt $ 5,836,000

(a) - Excludes leases and self-supporting water and sewer debt
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT Table 12
Current Debt Ratios
June 30, 2022
1 Population 10,217
Net Taxable Grand List (10/1/20) (70%) $ 737,289,000
Estimated Full Value $ 1,053,270,000
2 Equalized Net Taxable Grand List (2020) $ 1,061,929,000
2 Per Capita Income $ 36,542
Total Total Net Total Net
Direct Debt Direct Debt Overall Debt
$ 6,004969 $ 5,836,000 $ 5,836,000
Per Capita $ 587.74 $ 57120 $ 571.20
Ratio to Net Taxable Grand List 0.81% 0.79% 0.79%
Ratio to Estimated Full Value 0.57% 0.55% 0.55%
Ratio to Equalized Net Taxable Grand List 0.57% 0.55% 0.55%
Debt per Capita to Money Income per Capita 1.61% 1.56% 1.56%

1 US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census.

2 State of Connecticut Municipal Fiscal Indicators, Office of Policy and Management 2015-2019
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TOWN OF WINCHESTER, CONNECTICUT
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 13

Personal Education

Income Per Capita Level in
Fiscal | Population | (thousands Personal Median Years of School Unemployment
Year (1) of dollars) Income (2) | Age (3) | Schooling(4) | Enroliment (5) Rate (6)
2013 11,216 $ 325758 | $ 29,044 43 12+ 654 8.6%
2014 11,189 324,973 29,044 44 12+ 637 6.0
2015 11,013 323,584 29,382 44 12+ 584 54
2016 10,929 343,990 31,475 47 12+ 545 5.6
2017 10,829 336,240 31,050 47 12+ 565 5.9
2018 10,754 329,535 30,643 47 12+ 554 3.9
2019 10,739 347,546 32,363 48 12+ 535 3.8
2020 10,655 357,582 33,560 48 12+ 559 9.3
2021 10,224 361,132 35,322 48 12+ 536 8.2
2022 10,217 373,350 36,542 47 12+ 594 4.0

(1) U.S. Census Bureau

(2) U.S. Department of Commerce, State of Connecticut

(3) U.S. Census Bureau, Department of Health and Human Services

(4) Town of Winchester, Board of Education.

(5) Town of Winchester, Board of Education. Enroliment includes grades K-6

(6) State of Connecticut, Department of Labor
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